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Financial Summary

B REE

RMB’000
AREE : T7T

Revenue

Gross profit

Profit before tax

Profit for the year

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Earnings per share cents (Basic)

REVENUE

RMB’000
ARH T

TV advertising services
Digital advertising services
Outdoor advertising services
Other advertising services

Total
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For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020  Year on year (%)

BZE20214F #HE2020%F

12A31H 12H31H
LEE IFFE B (%)
Wz 441,051 446,993 -1.33%
EA 17,299 40,299 -57.07%
BRI A A 4,302 4,376 -1.69%
F A5 F 463 2,826 -83.62%

FREANREE
Ryt 463 2,826 -83.62%
FREFENM (BEA) 0.11 0.71 -84.51%
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For the For the

year ended year ended

31 December 31 December
2021 2020  Year on year (%)

HZE2021%F HZE2020%F

12A831H 12H31H
LFEE IFFE RILE (%)
EEESRS 91,821 233,432 -60.66%
HTESER®E 221,491 89,200 148.31%
PONESRRY 112,325 72,079 55.84%
HiESRS 15,414 52,282 -70.52%
5t 441,051 446,993 -1.33%
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

PROFESSIONAL HONOURS AND AWARDS

Award-winning work:
Project Cooperation Case — Fotile “Dream Home” (7 A (2 ABERER))

Award:
China International Advertising Festival Advertiser Gala — 2021 Annual
Gold Case for Content Marketing

Time period:
December 2021

Awarded by:
The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival

Award description:

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and the most influence in China. “CIFA Advertiser Awards (%=
4%)” is the first high-standard award specifically created for advertisers in
China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded industry ceremony
during the China International Advertising Festival every year. Based
on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with the guiding
principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends and selects
high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative spirit and
significance to the advertising industry in China.

The award-winning work demonstrates the industry's recognition of the
Company's professional strength and services in content marketing.

Award-winning entry:
Project Cooperation Case — 2021 Casarte "The Super Launching" (2021
REF GBREMHE))
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Awards and Recognition
BRIFEREY

NN

Award:
China International Advertising Festival Advertiser Gala — 2021 Annual
Gold Case for Integrated Marketing

Time period:
December 2021

Awarded by:
The Organising Committee for the China International Advertising Festival

Award description:

China International Advertising Festival is the most authoritative,
professional and national event of the advertising industry with the largest
scale and the most influence in China. “CIFA Advertiser Awards (&% =
#2)” is the first high-standard award specifically created for advertisers in
China’s advertising industry. It is also a star-studded industry ceremony
during the China International Advertising Festival every year. Based
on related laws, regulations and policies in China and with the guiding
principle of “fairness, justice and openness”, it recommends and selects
high-quality cases within the industry that have innovative spirit and
significance to the advertising industry in China. The award-winning work
gained unanimous recognition from the industry in terms of integrated
marketing and creative implantation communication.
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Chairlady’s Statement

PAST BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE BUSINESS
OUTLOOK OR CORPORATE STRATEGY

In 2021, despite the impact of the pandemic and many uncertainties,
China's economy recovered steadily across all sectors of the entire
society, supported by effective national policies and measures to
prevent and combat the pandemic. The advertising market, after the
negative impact of the pandemic in 2020, has shown overall restorative
growth. Advertising is a barometer of the economy, and the growth of
the advertising market reflects the confidence of enterprises in China's
economy, the continued recovery of the real economy and the resilience
of China's economic development.

Looking ahead to 2022, China's economic development will still face many
uncertainties due to the recurrence of the pandemic and the complex
and volatile international macroeconomic environment; at the same time,
the triple pressure of shrinking demand, supply shocks and weakening
expectations in China is becoming more and more obvious, leading to
increased internal and external pressure on China's economic growth
and posing higher requirements and greater challenges to the country's
macroeconomic policies. All of these had put tremendous pressure
and serious challenges on the development of the advertising industry.
However, we remain confident and optimistic about the medium to long-
term prosperity of the China's economy. To proactively cope with market
changes and operational pressures, the Group will continue to implement
measures to enhance efficiency, meet market challenges, enhance brand
value for our customers and strive to maintain stable operations during the
economic downturn cycle.

In 2022, the Group will continue to maintain its strengths in television
communications, maintain its existing quality customers and strengthen
the development of new customers by adhering to a customer-oriented
product and service strategy, and enhance the brand influence of its
customers through efficient communications in television advertising.
In terms of digital advertising and digital marketing, we will continue to
increase our Internet advertising services in line with the current trend
of Internet media development and advertisers' demand for placement.
Meanwhile, we will continue to enhance our integrated Internet service
capabilities through integrated digital content marketing on the Internet,
providing one-stop digital marketing solutions to our customers to
enhance their placement effectiveness and brand influence on the Internet.

As the situation of pandemic prevention and control continues to improve,
market demand will also gradually pick up and consumer audiences will
be willing to spend more time outdoors, outdoor advertising has assumed
a greater role in brand-oriented advertising for corporate clients. We will
continue to adjust and optimise our business structure in accordance
with the actual communication needs of our clients. We will increase our
brand communication services for outdoor advertising and provide our
clients with a variety of scenes and integrated communication solutions
for scenes. At the same time, we will continue to explore and follow up
on new technologies, make use of them to explore new forms of media
advertising, develop new advertising businesses to open up market
space, provide new advertising value to our clients and explore new profit
growth points.

ARBEXBRRRAFEBR LN THR
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Chairlady’s Statement

We are confident that we can continue to create value for our corporate
clients and society through our professional and efficient communication
services and operating strategies that keep pace with the times. We
are grateful for the continued support and trust of our shareholders and
client partners, and we will continue to work with you to build the future
together.

Wang Xin
Chairlady

Beijing, the PRC
30 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Market overview

In 2021, the economy of China continued to recover due to the
stabilisation of the pandemic and the support of the country's
macroeconomic policies, in 2021 China's GDP growth rate is 8.1%,
representing a two-year average growth of 5.1% (source: National Bureau
of Statistics). Year 2021 was a key year for recovery from the pandemic,
and the advertising market has recovered well despite the occasional
attacks of pandemic. The overall advertising market grew by 11.2% year-
on-year in 2021, with several key channels of communication improving
compared to 2020. In terms of industry performance, the beverages,
cosmetics and personal products industries saw significant growth and
all exceeded their 2019 levels. (Source: CTR Media Intelligence, "China
Advertising Market Review 2021"). The growth in the advertising market
shows that advertisers have good expectations of the market. CTR's
advertiser marketing surveys over the years have shown that advertisers'
confidence in themselves, their industry and the overall market situation
has increased significantly in 2021 compared to the previous two years,
and the advertising market is expected to have more room for growth in
2022.

In 2021, the Group focused on its traditional strengths and core
competencies in content marketing in accordance with the changing
situation of the pandemic and the actual communication needs of its
customers, while adjusting and optimising its business structure to
increase its integrated marketing for Internet variety shows and integrated
communication for outdoor scenes, with a view to providing professional
and efficient content marketing and quality integrated communication
services to its customers, thereby promoting the stable development of
the Company.

Business review
TV advertising services

The Group provides professional and personalised TV advertising
solutions to its customers and delivers high-quality advertising displays
within their budgets, and maximises the effectiveness of advertising.
During the Reporting Period, while facing an especially challenging
COVID-19 pandemic-impacted market, we integrated our advantages
and enhanced our competitiveness through the optimisation on the
media resource portfolio, and leveraged more advertising placements
from brand customers with customised advertising strategies and
more comprehensive and in-depth communication services. During the
Reporting Period, the Group provided TV advertising media services
such as advertising placements of brands or products, implantation
design of advertisements to customers, including a well-known domestic
brand beverage seller and a large domestic telecommunications service
provider, respectively, which gained recognition from various well-known
customers.

hISHE

20214 - ARBERZEBEMIEFIBEMBER ZEBERE
Rk - BB NIBEER - 2021 F R BHGDPIZR A
8.1% MEFHIEES A% (BIERR : BRFAD) °
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11.2% @ &5+ BHEERBEE020F BB AR -
WITERBELEE - 88 - bk - EARRITELIRALRE
B 19838 7 20195 K (BB RR « CTRENE (20214
FEEESTSEOE))  BEMBEBEEREERBHES
THMEMEHRI  CTREEZFNES T L EPAEH
K201 FEEEHEE - FTETEULRTENEERR
R D FEE A AT A RAFAMILE » TERT2022F E&
BHEHE R R IR o

2021 FAREBRIBRIBEELBERME LN EREEEFFR
RERAERETEATEHZOBT N - REFREREL
EBEE  MAEBBHEEES2HNPINGRESEHE
£ BINREPRHEESHMNATEHNEERES
ERERRTS - {EMEB R RIBERER

X
BREERYE
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ETERBENTSRE  RMEEEFERE  BBECRE
BERAGIRFEF N WA ESHERE N2 T3 (R
MERBERBERIEZ mIEE P OEERT - RS
W REEDFIRABEA KNG MAERAEEHREN—
RAREERBHEEPIERRERERERSENR  BES
ARG EEEEREREBRT - RISTREANBEFOR
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

In terms of content marketing business, the Group has been actively
improving its creative design and communication capability to complete
content placement ideas, content integration planning, secondary
communication marketing and implementation action plans for various
customers, so as to enhance customers’ brand value by content
integration. During the Reporting Period, the Group successively provided
services to major advertiser customers, including a leading home
appliances manufacturer in China with its headquarter located in Qingdao
and a leading kitchen appliances manufacturer with its headquarter
located in Ningbo, involving projects cooperation, namely the cooperation
between a leading home appliances manufacturer in China (headquartered
in Qingdao) and Shenzhen Satellite TV on a knowledge speech program
on celebrating New Year’s Eve, and the cooperation between a leading
kitchen appliances manufacturer advertiser with its headquarter located in
Ningbo and a provincial Satellite TV station in Shanghai on a a large-scale
home redevelopment program.

Due to the decline in consumer demand as a result of the recurrence of
the pandemic, advertisers have been more cautious in placing television
advertisements and advertising budgets have declined, resulting in a
corresponding decline in revenue from the Group's television advertising
business. During the Reporting Period, revenue from the television
advertising services business amounted to approximately RMB91.821
million.

Digital advertising services

In response to the current development trend of the Internet media
and advertisers' demand, the Group continues to increase its Internet
advertising and communication services. At the same time, the Group fully
explores the needs of its customers in the field of Internet communication
and leverages on its accumulated advantages and experience in the
marketing and communication of television content to enhance the
communication services of Internet variety contents, combining the digital
advertising and successful experience of traditional business to provide
one-stop integrated digital marketing solutions to its customers.

During the Reporting Period, the Group served advertisers of a leading
Chinese household appliances manufacturer headquartered in Qingdao
and a famous electric vehicle manufacturer headquartered in Jinhua,
Zhejiang Province, involving Internet variety show projects such as an
intimate relationship observation reality show and a Lego building blocks
creative challenge programme for advertisers of a leading Chinese
household appliances manufacturer headquartered in Qingdao, and a
panoramic music competition variety show for its international high-end
household appliance brand; and a street dance audition reality show for
advertisers of a famous electric vehicle manufacturer headquartered in
Jinhua, Zhejiang Province.

During the cooperation period, all of these brands achieved good
communication results and received high recognition and praise from
their clients. Revenue from digital advertising services amounted to
approximately RMB221.491 million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Outdoor advertising services

As the situation of pandemic prevention and control continues to improve
and consumer audiences are willing to spend more time outdoors,
outdoor advertising has assumed a greater role in advertising for
corporate clients. Based on the actual communication needs of clients,
the Group has increased its outdoor advertising services and continued
to strengthen and improve its market penetration in the areas of outdoor
display boards, LED display panels, lifts in buildings, bus bodies and
outdoor subways. With our high-quality outdoor advertising resources and
good connections with relevant suppliers, we provided our customers with
a variety of scenes and integrated communication solutions for scenes.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has served some of the largest
domestic home appliances manufacturers, some of the largest housing
service providers in China, as well as some of the well-known online
education brands for children and programming education and training
brands in China to place advertisements on bus bodies, LEDs, buildings
and outdoor flashing in various regions in China. Revenue from outdoor
advertising services amounted to approximately RMB112.325 million.

Other advertising services

Building on the stable foundation formed by its original diversified media
advertising services, the Group continues to develop and utilise resources
in new areas such as brand strategy design services, radio advertising and
magazine advertising to meet customers’ diversified advertising needs.
During the Reporting Period, the Group provided services to some large
domestic home appliances manufacturers and other clients, and also
provided brand culture IP strategy design and TVC (television commercial)
production services to a well-known brand of cooked water beverage
seller. Revenue from other advertising services amounted to approximately
RMB15.414 million.

FINEERD
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Financial review

Revenue and profit and total comprehensive income attributable to
the owners of the Company

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of RMB441.051
million, representing a decrease of 1.33% from RMB446.993 million for
the corresponding period last year.

Revenue details for the Reporting Period are as follows:

(1)

During the Reporting Period, revenue from TV advertising services
was RMB91.821 million, representing a decrease of 60.66% from
RMB233.432 million for the corresponding period last year. Due to
the decline in consumer demand as a result of the recurrence of
the COVID-19 pandemic, advertisers have been more cautious in
placing their television advertisements and their advertising budgets
have reduced, resulting in a corresponding decline in revenue
from the Group’s television advertising business. Also, due to
the easy implementation of tradition advertisements for TV media
with transparent price space and the competitive environment of
the media industry, such as low quoted price maliciously offered
by competing companies, the Company had to bid at a low
quoted price. Therefore, revenue from TV advertising services has
decreased.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from digital advertising
services was RMB221.491 million, representing an increase of
148.31% from RMB89.200 million for the corresponding period
last year. The increase in revenue of the business was mainly in
response to the current development trend of the Internet media
and advertisers’ demand, and the Group increased its offering
of digital advertising services. At the same time, the Group
fully explored the needs of its customers in the field of Internet
communication and leveraged on its accumulated advantages
and experience in the marketing and communication of television
content to enhance the communication services of Internet
variety contents, combining the digital advertising and successful
experience of traditional business to provide one-stop integrated
digital marketing solutions to its customers. As a result, revenue
from digital advertising increased significantly in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, revenue from outdoor advertising
services was RMB112.325 million, representing an increase of
55.84% from RMB72.079 million for the corresponding period
last year. As the situation of pandemic prevention and control
continues to improve with increasing market demands and that
consumer audiences are willing to spend more time outdoors,
outdoor advertising has assumed a greater role in brand advertising
for corporate clients. Based on the actual communication needs
of clients, we adjusted and optimized our business structure,
increased our outdoor advertising services and continued to
strengthen and improve our market penetration in the areas of
outdoor display boards, LED display panels, lifts in buildings,
bus bodies and outdoor subways. With our high-quality outdoor
advertising resources and good connections with relevant suppliers,
we provided our customers with a variety of scenes and integrated
communication solutions for scenes. As a result, revenue from
outdoor advertising increased significantly in 2021.
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(4) During the Reporting Period, revenue from other advertising
services was RMB15.414 million, representing a decrease of
70.52% from RMB52.282 million for the corresponding period last
year. In terms of other advertising services, on the basis of the
stable foundation formed by its original diversified media advertising
services, the Group developed and utilised resources such as
brand strategy design services, radio advertising and magazine
advertising to meet customers’ diversified advertising needs.
However, due to the decline in consumer demand as a result of the
recurrence of the pandemic and under the downward pressures of
the economy, advertisers have significantly reduced the placement
of other advertisements (in case of recording a positive revenue
growth, advertisers will invest in other diversified advertising to
strengthen the communication effect). As a result, revenue from
other advertising decreased in 2021.

During the Reporting Period, the profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the owners of the Company was RMBO0.463
million, while that of the corresponding period last year was
RMB2.826 million.

Gross profit and gross profit margin during the Reporting Period

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded gross profit and
gross profit margin of approximately RMB17.299 million and 3.92%,
respectively. The Group’s gross profit and gross profit margin for the
corresponding period last year were approximately RMB40.299 million
and 9.02%, respectively. The Group’s gross profit margin was lower
than the level of the corresponding period, which is mainly due to: (1)
the decline in consumer demand as a result of the recurrence of the
pandemic, the overall advertising market saw a significant decline in
advertising placement. The impact of the pandemic on the consumption,
transportation, entertainment and leisure, commercial and service sectors
was significant. Advertisers adopted a more cautious and contractionary
strategy in advertising due to risk aversion purposes, and advertising
placing was significantly less motivated and advertising budgets were
significantly lower than in previous years, with some advertisers even
holding off on advertising placement, resulting in a decrease in profit
from the Company’s advertising business; (2) the easy implementation of
tradition advertisements for TV media with transparent price space and
the competitive environment of the media industry, such as low quoted
price maliciously offered by competing companies, which resulted that
the Company had to bid at a low quoted price. This has resulted in lower
profits from the TV media and part of the outdoor media, driving down
profit margins from a single customer; and (3) under the circumstance of
the drastic changes in the media environment (from TV to the Internet),
the Company has been serving major customers for many years,
strengthening its strategic services and facilitating the transformation of
cooperation, in order to prepare the future strategic layout in advance and
ensure long-term benefits. Therefore, strategic costs increased and profit
margin decreased in 2021.
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

During the Reporting Period, other income, gains and losses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB3.939 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 62.01% from approximately RMB10.369 million for
the corresponding period last year. During the Reporting Period, other
income, gains and losses were mainly attributable to subsidies received
from the local government of approximately RMB8.432 million and
additional deductions of input tax on value-added tax of approximately
RMB1.930 million. Other income, gains and losses for the same period
last year were mainly attributable to the subsidies received from the local
government, fair value gain of financial assets at FVTPL and the additional
deduction of input tax on value-added tax.

Selling and marketing expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling and marketing expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB7.132 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 26.67% from approximately RMB9.726 million for the
corresponding period last year. The main reason for the decrease in
selling and marketing expenses of the Group was due to the Group’s
business operations being affected by the outbreak and escalation of the
COVID-19 pandemic, leading to the reduction of 17 full-time salespersons
as compared with same period last year.

Administrative expenses

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s administrative expenses
was approximately RMB8.916 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 36.39% from approximately RMB14.016 million in the
same period last year. The main reason for the decrease in administrative
expenses of the Group during the Reporting Period was due to the
Group’s business operations being affected by the outbreak and escalation
of the COVID-19 pandemic, leading to the reduction of 17 full-time
salespersons as compared with same period last year.

Finance costs

During the Reporting Period, finance costs of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB11.872 million (same period last year: approximately
RMB8.519 million), representing an increase of 39.36%, which was mainly
due to the change in part of the loan structure in 2021 caused by the
increase in individual financing costs.
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Impairment losses under expected credit loss model, net of
reversals

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a reversal of impairment
loss on receivables of approximately RMB10.984 million (same period
last year: impairment loss on receivables of approximately RMB14.031
million), representing a decrease of approximately RMB25.015 million as
compared to the previous year. The Group’s accounts receivable turnover
rate increased slightly.

Income tax expense

For the Reporting Period, the Group’s income tax expenses was
approximately RMB3.839 million (same period last year: approximately
RMB1.550 million), representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
147.68%, which was primarily due to the increase in taxable income for
the year.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit for the Reporting Period as of 31 December 2021 was
approximately RMBO0.463 million (same period last year: approximately
RMB2.826 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
83.62%. Save for the influences from the aforesaid factors, it can be
attributed to the significant increase in the Group’s costs of business.

Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2021, the deferred tax assets were approximately
RMB3.542 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB6.291 million).

Trade receivables, prepayments and other receivables

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables amounted to approximately RMB341.100 million
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB343.142 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 0.60% as compared to the previous year. The
decrease in trade receivables was mainly due to: (i) seasonal fluctuations
in customer demand for the Group’s advertising services; and (i) the
Group postponed cooperation with certain customers of the Group’s
digital advertising services since the customers’ need for a longer credit
period will affect the Group’s operating cash flow.

Contract assets
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s contract assets were approximately

RMB23.472 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB21.079
million).
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Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2021, trade and other payables of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB39.007 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB46.260 million), representing a year-on-year decrease
of approximately 15.68%.

Trade payables represent the amount payable by the Group to suppliers
for the purchase of advertising resources. Payments are generally made
in accordance with the terms specified in the contract with the supplier. In
the case of digital advertising services, the Group is generally required to
pay within 60 days of calculating the actual number of exposures or hits
per month. During the Reporting Period, revenue from digital advertising
services has increased.

Tax payables

As at 31 December 2021, tax payables amounted to approximately
RMB14.570 million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB15.140
million), representing a decrease of approximately 3.76% as compared
with previous year. It was mainly due to the decrease in the business
volume of the Group.

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies

The Group had not executed any agreement in respect of material
investment or capital asset and did not have any other plans relating
to material investment or capital asset as at 31 December 2021.
Nonetheless, of any potential investment opportunity arises in the
coming future, the Group will perform feasibility studies and prepare
implementation plans to consider whether it is beneficial to the Company
and its Shareholders as a whole.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2021, bank balances and cash and short-term
bank deposit balances amounted to approximately RMB34.865 million
(31 December 2020: approximately RMB17.772 million) of which,
approximately 99.62% was in RMB and the remaining 0.38% was in HKD
and other currencies.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets was approximately
RMB404.266 million, of which equity attributable to the owners of the
Company was approximately RMB217.644 million, non-controlling equity
was approximately RMBO0.142 million.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

B2 RHEMENTE

MR2021F12A31H  BESREMENRIBEHAARE
39,007 F 7t (2020512 A318 : #15 AR#46,260F 7T)
[FILL B 1K 4915.68% ©

BHRNFATIERRAEEAREAEERSERNE
258 - BN —RREEHKERERE A OAIETIRRE
e MBFERERBME - ARE—RENEATEER
BIHAHBEBRANTRAXZN - RREPA - BFES
IRISRAB P LT ©

B #HE

R2021F12A31H  BRNMBEHNAARK14,570F T
(202012 A318 : 1B ARKE15,140F JT » B EFRRIE
#93.76%  TERAEBEEBKIRMER D -

HEBRAGARBENAZEAKRE - EXRBALHE

R2021F12A31H » AEEWEF Y EHUERIEERER
BEMEMDRE  TECAEBEARESELAEENH
HEtE - AR HERHIBEREERERS - KREBB
ETATEMERERERAE - UEEBZREHAQF
MRRERRLER -

Hmp  AEEYEEANERLENELT  BEA
ARABLE -

RBEERUBER

R2021F12A318 » IRITHEB LIRS MG BRI TR E
BB AREES4,865T 7T (2020512 A31H : #1AARE
17,772F70) © HF4999.62% A AR » H£20.38% A5
MR EAME o

R2021F12H8318 » AEBEEAELN A ARK404,266
T Hef o ARBHEEAELEROABARKE217,644
For o RSN AARE142F T



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWED T

Capital expenditure

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
capital expenditure.

Contingent liabilities

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any other significant
contingent liabilities.

Pledged assets

During the Reporting Period, the details of the bank loans pledged
or guaranteed by the Group’s assets are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Gearing ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio decreased from approximately 58.32% as at
31 December 2020 to approximately 53.40% as at 31 December 2021.
The gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the sum of total bank and
other borrowings and lease liabilities by total equity as at the end of the
respective periods, and multiplied by 100%.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s business activities and operations are mainly carried out
in China where core transactions are conducted in RMB. The influence
by exchange rate fluctuations on cash flow or liquidity of the Group’s
operating business is very limited, therefore, the Group currently did not
engage in or intend to manage hedging activities of foreign exchange
rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange activities to
secure the Group’s cash value as far as possible.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuations
in the prevailing market interest rates on bank balances and cash. The
Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-rate bank
and other borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group’s policy is to maintain
short-term borrowings at prevailing market rates so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.
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Industry and group outlook
Outlook

Looking ahead to 2022, China's economic development will still face
many uncertainties as the recurrence of the pandemic and the complex
and volatile international macroeconomic environment, which puts
tremendous pressure and serious challenges on the development of the
advertising industry. However, we remain confident and optimistic about
the medium to long-term prosperity of the China's economy. We believe
that with favourable domestic anti-epidemic measures and policy actions,
China's economy will continue to grow and we expect the advertising
market to have more room for growth in 2022.

In the face of the changes in the economic environment and the
advertising industry and the pressure on its operations, the Group will
continue to adjust and optimize its business structure in 2022 in light of
the changes in the pandemic and the actual communication needs of its
customers, expand its integrated marketing for Internet variety shows and
integrated communication for outdoor scenes, and further strengthen its
core competitiveness in content marketing and integrated communication.

Specifically, in the TV advertising business, we will continue to maintain
our strengths in TV advertising, maintain our existing quality clients,
strengthen the development of new clients and enhance the brand
influence of our clients through efficient TV advertising.

In terms of digital advertising and digital marketing, we will continue to
increase our Internet advertising services in line with the current trend
of Internet media development and advertisers’ demand for placement.
Meanwhile, riding on the strengths and experience accumulated by
the Company in TV content marketing and communications, we are
able to enhance the communication service of Internet variety show
content. Through integrated Internet and digital marketing, we are able
to consistently raise our effort in providing Internet integrated service and
provide clients with one-stop digital marketing solutions, helping clients to
realize better outcome in placing online advertisements and improve their
brand popularity.

In terms of outdoor advertising, we will increase our brand communication
services for outdoor advertising according to the actual communication
needs of our clients, providing them with a variety of scenes and
integrated communication solutions for scenes. At the same time, we
will continue to explore and follow up on new technologies, make use of
them to explore new forms of media advertising, develop new advertising
businesses to open up market space, provide new advertising value to
our clients and explore new profit growth points.
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Use of proceeds from the initial public offering

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date and the net proceeds raised from this initial public offering
after deducting professional fees, underwriting commissions and other
related listing expenses amounted to approximately HK$78.8 million (the
“IPO Net Proceeds”).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24 February 2020,
the Board resolved to change the use of unutilised IPO Net Proceeds. The
below table sets out the intended use of the IPO Net Proceeds and the
actual usage up to 31 December 2021:

BRAMBEZRERERR

R EMER

AATRMP LT BN LT - SHBREXER -
BHEMEREMBELETRE  ERR
FRANRT8BABAIL([BRLARBEMERIEFHED -

R &S F0R

AR AT BEA2020F2 A4 HMAEFHE €58
BABENEABANELA
TREINERAFABERER
2021F12 A1 A ER A -

EFBEOAE

BFENREREREE

The amount
The of IPO Net The
accumulative Proceeds unutilised
amount of utilised amount of
IPO Net between IPO Net
Original Revised Proceeds 1 January Proceeds
allocation allocation utilised as at 2021 to as at
BRDHEREMSRERE of IPO Net of IPO Net 31 December 31 December 31 December
Intended use of IPO Net Proceeds ZBRER Proceeds Proceeds 2020 2021 2021
2021 £
2020 & 1A1H%& 2021
12A31H 2021 & 12A31H
2 12831H YN
BERAAHRE BRABMRE BROHRE HEEEA REMSB
FISRIERE FMERETFE FMEREFE BR0BRE TR
REAE RET A S ] FriSFE ABASHE
HK$ million HKS$ million HKS million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEHT BEET BEET BEET BEHT
Enhancing the Group’s market position in IS8 A& BB AR - BT
TV advertising through strengthening AER A BN RIBRREN
its financial position to satisfy the BEECESER Mzt
prepayment obligation to TV stationsto ~ AREBREREETIH AL
acquire TV advertising resources 37.6 33.3 33.3 - -
Further developing the Group’s digital E—SERASBNETRES
advertising business 3 23.6 23.6 17.8 5.8 -
Further developing the Group’s outdoor i —FEEAEENFINES
advertising business £7% 9.7 9.7 8.6 11 -
Strengthening the Group’s strategy MEREBH B REE ST
formulation and data analytical O RRAREENTSE
capabilities and enhance its reputation 2
in the market 7.9 7.9 1.3 6.6 -
General working capital —REEES - 43 4.3 - -
78.8 78.8 65.3 13.5 -

The Company has fully utilised the IPO Net Proceeds as disclosed in the

prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 by the end of 2021. &SRS
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Directors

Name

]

Ms. Wang Xin(
Em&LD

Mr. Feng Xing®@
HESLAED

Ms. Li Na®
E iy et

Mr. Leng Xuejun
REBRAE

Mr. Li Xue

Mr. Wu Ke
RBEE

Mr. How Sze Ming
ERHEE

Notes:

(1) Ms. Wang Xin had been nominated as the chairlady of the Board and the
Nomination Committee on 14 December 2021.

2) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as an executive Director and vice chairman of the Board of
the Company on 30 March 2022.

3) Ms. Li Na resigned as the chairlady of the Board and the Nomination Committee on
14 December 2021.
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Age
FiR

44
445

44

57
57H

34
345%

45
458%,

Date of joining
our Group

MAZSEEE A

August 2015
201558 H

August 2004
200458 H

April 2003
20034 A

September 2013
2013F9A

October 2019
2019410

January 2021
20211 A

October 2019
2019104

=

Date of appointment

as Director

EZIREERY

1 April 2019
201954 F1H

25 January 2019
201941 H25H

25 January 2019
201941 H25H

25 January 2019
201951 A25H

22 October 2019
2019105 22H

1 January 2021
20211 A1H

22 QOctober 2019
2019 10H22H

Azt

(1) FIAZFR2021F 1214 H EIEF AR ] EFE LERIEE

Position/Title
BB
Executive Director and chairlady of the Board

HTEZENEZEIR

Executive Director and vice chairman of the
Board
WOIEEREECRER

Executive Director
BiTES

Executive Director, vice chairman of the Board

and one of our joint company secretaries

HTEE  EESBTRRBMRLTNE —

Independent Non-executive Director
BUFMTESF

Independent Non-executive Director

BIUTET

Independent Non-executive Director

BUFHTES
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Ms. Wang Xin (E£fiX), aged 44, is an executive Director, chairlady of the
Board and of the Nomination Committee of our Company. Ms. Wang Xin
is primarily responsible for overseeing business development and sales
matters of the Group. She was redesignated as an executive Director
on 29 April 2019, has been nominated as the chairlady of the Board and
of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 14 December 2021.
Ms. Wang Xin is also a member of the remuneration committee. She
is the sister of Ms. Wang Lei, one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company.

Ms. Wang Xin has over 16 years of experience in the advertising industry.
From June 2005 to June 2015, Ms. Wang Xin has been the general
manager of Qingdao Zhongzhouxian Advertisement Co. Ltd.* (§ 5
FERARE S AR A 7)), a company which is principally engaged in the
advertising business, where she was responsible for overall management
of the company. She has been the executive director of Shanghai Kailun
since August 2015, where she is responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the company. Ms. Wang
Xin graduated from the PLA Nanjing Institute of Politics* (B A RGN E
B R BUAEZPT) with a bachelor’s degree in economics and administrative
management in June 2014. She has been served as the executive
director of Beijing Ruicheng since January 2022, being responsible for
the overall management, business development and business strategy
implementation of the company.

Ms. Wang Xin also holds the following positions in the members of our
Group:

Position held

FRAEEE AL

Name

=L

Beijing Ruicheng Director (executive director
from January 2022)

bR EE(82022F1 AR AIITES)

Shanghai Kailun Executive director

Principal roles responsibilities

TERBREBE
Overall management, business development
and business strategy implementation

ERER  EBER

Overall management, strategic planning and

ERLL - 4455 ARFITES - EFSEFENIRRE
EEXF IMEULTTTEEEBEAREBMERERE LB
EEFT o HR2019F4 200 AT AHITES » H20214F
1214 BRETEARRERSEERIEREECER -
Rzt AEFNEZE K E - HATETET (RARRIER
BEER 2 —) Ky, Bk o

ITMEETREESTEHREB16FELSH - H2005F6 A E
2015%F6H  TMXT—EEESESTRHRESERAA
MBI ZAREBRBEEER  MEBEZQRINE
BEEIE - B2015F8 AR BT LSRN ITES
BEZAFTNEETE « KRB REBKERE - R20145F
68 ITMEZITEXNTRARERERREUASM - &
ML ERIT I E IR ELEA - 202291 A# - EEIER
HHNNITES  AEZARNEEEE EKERLE
TEREEENE

FRE IV E R B A R T -

Date of appointment
BZERH

5 January 2022
Ve 202241 A5H

5 August 2015

business development

B8 m BWITES
Mr. Feng Xing (5 H), aged 44, is an executive Director. Mr. Feng is
primarily responsible for the day-to-day planning, management and
implementation of our business strategies. He was redesignated as an
executive Director on 29 April 2019.

Mr. Feng has over 19 years of experience in the advertising industry. Prior
to joining the Group in August 2004, he worked in Hefei Television* (&
JEmEIEE IR B) as a reporter from August 2000 to August 2002, where
he was responsible for the production of medical programmes. He then
worked as a sales representative in the business department in Jinjuan
Advertisement Technology Co., Ltd* (£ B EERIERMHER AR, a
company principally engaged in the advertising and media business,
from August 2002 to July 2004, where he was responsible for marketing
matters. Mr. Feng then worked as the deputy general manager of Beijing
Ruicheng from August 2004 to February 2016, where he was responsible
for the overall management of the business department. From March
2016 to January 2021, Mr. Feng worked as the general manager of Beijing
Ruicheng, where he was responsible for implementation of the company’s
business strategies. He was also the director of Beijing Ruicheng
from March 2016 to October 2018, where he was responsible for the
implementation of the company’s operating strategies. Mr. Feng also
worked as the executive director and general manager in Beijing Lingyu
from 29 October 2018 to 25 August 2021, where he was responsible for
the overall management and day-to-day planning. Mr. Feng graduated
from the Cheung Kong School of Business* (£/T & 2kx) in the PRC with
an executive master’s degree in business administration in September
2018.

ERERE RBRILEBER

201558 A5H

BEEE - 4455 HITES - BEAEFTZASATERE
ﬁg&%@%ﬁ%ﬁ% o MA20195FE4 A29 A EFE BT
tﬁ °

B ERBE19F B EITEMLR - 7£2004F8 A MAR
E@EA] - HHR20009E8 A E20024F8 A HEAITERESE
BERE  FASTEENERE - £% - ®BH200248A
FE2004F7 AR ERBEERERMD AR AR EKIBLEE
¥RE  ZABEENEEEREEEL  MEBELH
FIF o BREHEN20045F8 A 2201652 A H T4t Rin
HHBEIRCE  BEEBPNEELE - B2016F3A%
2021F1 R » BAE R FIRHAKE  AEEHBAGE
FERE - A20165E3 A E2018F 108 » B IR AL =i
MES BEEMZARINEERE - R2018F10A29
HZE2021F8H250 * BAE AL RBENNITES G
K12 AERRBEERKATRE - BILAER2018FIARE
rﬁﬁ;‘l%ﬁ%ﬁ%% CHEEREEAEIEERRALTE
57 o
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. Feng also holds the following positions in the members of our Group:

Name

=L
Beijing Ruicheng

IR

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye

Position held

FRAERAL
General Manager

g

General Manager

Principal roles responsibilities

TERBRRBE

Implementation of business strategies

s

WIES

\

Overall management

SEmMEE FLbCSE BRER

Beijing Lingyu Executive director and general Overall management and day-to-day
manager planning

IRER HITE R RAEKIR BREENIETRE

Ruicheng BVI Director Overall management

R B% BREE

ISR TR A LB B R AP REATRA :

Date of appointment

EZRERMY

4 March 2016 (resigned on
January 2021)
201653448

(R20214F1 ABHE)

25 December 2018
201812 A25H

29 October 2018 (resigned
on 25 August 2021)
2018%F10H29A
(202148 H25 HEHE)

28 January 2019
201941 H28H

Mr. Feng was awarded, among others, the Jinwang Annual Internet
Marketing Individuals in the PRC* (£ F[Z BB BE 8 AY) in 2015
granted by the Internet Marketing Commissions Committee* (4845 & 4
T{EZ B €) and the title of “Contemporary China Outstanding ADMAN"*
(ADMAN AR E B H B4 A) granted by the Adman Culture Group and
Worldwide Media Industry Association in 2017.

Ms. Li Na (Z=1), aged 44, is one of our founders, an executive Director.
Ms. Li served as the chairlay of the Board and of the Nomination
Committee from 25 January 2019 to 14 December 2021. Ms. Li is
primarily responsible for overseeing the overall management, strategic
planning and business development of the Group. She was redesignated
as an executive Director on 29 April 2019. Ms. Li has over 19 years
of experience in the advertising industry. Prior to joining the Group in
April 2003, she worked as a deputy director in Jinjuan Advertisement
Technology Co., Ltd* (&85 EERHZAR D B R A7), a company principally
engaged in the advertising and media business, from April 2000 to
November 2003, where she was responsible for marketing matters and
after-sales services. From June 2004 to October 2018, Ms. Li was the
legal representative of Beijing Ruicheng. From June 2004 to February
2016, Ms. Li was the executive director of Beijing Ruicheng. From
February 2010 to February 2016, she was also the general manager
of Beijing Ruicheng. From March 2016 to October 2018, Ms. Li was
the chairlady of the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng. Ms. Li was
responsible for the overall management of Beijing Ruicheng. Ms. Li
graduated from the Ecole Nationale des Ponts et Chaussées with an
executive master’s degree of business administration (specialising in
aeronautics and aviation management) which was co- organised by
Tsinghua University, in October 2018. Ms. Li was awarded the “Ten Best
and Most Influential Female Advertising Person in China 2009-2010™
(2009-2010F EH B & AFZE N HELMEES A) jointly granted by the
MBA School of Communication University of China* (F BI{&£ A2 MBA
E[57) and the Advertising Magazine Office” ((f& %4 & k) 5 4t) in 2010
and the “China Advertising Golden Vision Awards: New Ten Years Leaders
in China’s Marketing”™ (FEES T @REN T FHRALHEREEAY
A #%) granted by the Market Observation Magazine Office* (7135 225k 5+
1) in 2011.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. Leng Xuejun (R E), aged 39, is an executive Director and one
of the joint company secretaries of our Company. Mr. Leng is primarily
responsible for overseeing the company secretarial matters and financial
matters of the Group. He was redesignated as an executive Director on
29 April 2019. Mr. Leng has over 8 years of experience in the advertising
industry and he joined the Group in September 2013. From September
2013 to February 2016, he was the business manager of Beijing
Ruicheng, where he was responsible for business development and
external liaison. From March 2016 to October 2018, he was the director of
Beijing Ruicheng, where he was responsible for the overall management,
business development and implementation of business strategies of the
company. He served as the executive director of Beijing Ruicheng from
November 2018 to January 2022, and was responsible for the overall
management, business development and implementation of business
strategies of the company. From March 2016 to November 2018, he was
the secretary to the board of directors of Beijing Ruicheng, where he was
responsible for company secretarial matters. Mr. Leng graduated from
the Nanjing University in the PRC and obtained a bachelor’s degree in
administrative management by way of distance learning in February 2009.

Mr. Leng also holds the following positions in the members of the Group:

Position held

PB4

Name

=

Beijing Ruicheng Director (Executive director since

Principal roles responsibilities

TERBRBE

Overall management, business development

REBELRE 395 ARRWMTEELRBEARNE Y
—  REEFEATERNNBEERAEENTES
H o BR2019F4A20REATANTES - REERESR
BSFEEEITEMRER - WHE2013F9A MAREE - 7
2013F9AE2016F 27  HAILRIMBMMERLIE - A
B EGIRE LN - R20165F3 A £20185F 108 » %
AFIRHNES  FASZARNEEER £HKEE
MEBRBEEN - 2018F11 AE2022%1 8 » #F A1t R
BHMTESR  BEZAFNEREEE  ¥BRERER
FIEE M - R2016FE3AE2018F 11 8 - RAILLRIEHE
FeWE BERARINEEE - AL EN2000F2F 2%
RABEERAS WA RENEABRESTRERES L

BB -

REENAEENKE A BREEUTRA -

Date of appointment

BEERHY

4 March 2016 (resigned on

November 2018) and implementation of business strategies January 2022)
SIS EE(B2018F 11 AR RNITE BEBER  XBERLEREBRR 201643 H4H (202241 A
%) BHE)
Qingdao Ruicheng Executive director Overall management 7 December 2018
Jiaye
B EE WITES EigeE 201812 A7H
Ruicheng HK Director Overall management 21 February 2019
Es B= Epen 2019%2H21H
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. Li Xue (£E), aged 57, was appointed as our Independent Non-
executive Director on 22 October 2019, and is responsible for providing
independent advice and judgement to the Board. Mr. Li is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Li has over 30 years of financial and accounting experience. From July
1987 to November 1995, Mr. Li worked as a lecturer in Shandong Linyi
Finance School* (LLE & & /T# BE4R). He then worked as a lecturer in
the faculty of finance of Yantai University in the PRC from November 1995
to February 1997. Since February 1997, Mr. Li has been a professor of the
faculty of accounting of the Management College of the Ocean University
of China (now known as Qingdao City University). Since July 2008, he
has been the dean of the faculty of accounting of the Qindao College of
the Qingdao Technological University in the PRC. Mr. Li is currently an
independent non-executive director of Qingdao Holdings International
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 0499)) which is principally engaged in property businesses,
where he is responsible for providing independent judgement and advice
to the board of directors. Mr. Li graduated from the Shandong Economics
University in the PRC with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 1987
and he graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
in the PRC with a master’s degree in economics in January 1998.

Mr. Li is a certified public accountant of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (| BIzE i & 51 AM 17 &) as well as a certified tax advisor
of the Chinese Certified Tax Agents Association (41 B &%t % 75 A 17 &).
He has been a senior member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since March 2015. He is currently a council member of the
Accounting Society of China (Bl €52 ) and a council member of the
Chinese Institute of Internal Audit (B N EPEFHHE). He is also currently
a member of the Chinese Audit Society (1 EIZ 12 <€) and a council
member of the audit education division of the Chinese Audit Society.

Mr. Wu Ke (R #%}), aged 34, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 1 January 2021. Mr. Wu is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wu has extensive experience in corporate finance and investment.
From July 2012 to April 2016, Mr. Wu worked as a senior manager at
Zhongtai Securities Co., Ltd. (FZREFHXNDBMR AR, formerly known as
Qilu Securities Co., Ltd. (B & F#HBRA ), a securities company in the
PRC where he was responsible for corporate finance, and mergers and
acquisitions related work. Mr. Wu is currently a deputy head and director
of the corporate finance department and a responsible officer of Zhongtai
International Capital Limited, a corporation licensed under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFO”) and permitted to carry out type 1 (dealing in securities) and type 6
(advising on corporate finance) regulated activities.

Mr. Wu obtained a master’s degree in global economics from the
Shandong University in the PRC in June 2012.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Mr. How Sze Ming (&2 8), aged 45, was appointed as our
Independent Non-executive Director on 22 October 2019. Mr. How is a
member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee.

Mr. How has over twenty years of experience in investment banking and
assurance and advisory industries. Mr. How had worked in the corporate
finance department of several renowned investment banks with PRC and
Hong Kong background, including CMB International Capital Corporation
Limited, ICBC International Holdings Limited and CCB International Capital
Limited.

Mr. How has held the following positions in the following companies listed
on the Stock Exchange. He has been: an independent non-executive
director of World-Link Logistics (Asia) Holding Limited (stock code: 6083)
since December 2015; an independent non-executive director of Forgame
Holdings Limited (stock code: 484) from January 2016 to April 2020; an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited
(stock code: 755) from May 2017 to January 2021; an independent non-
executive director of 1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited (stock code: 8495)
since November 2017; and an independent non-executive director of
Watts International Maritime Engineering Limited (stock code: 2258) since
October 2018.

Mr. How graduated from The Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Business Administration Degree (first class honour, majoring
in professional accountancy) in December 1999. Mr. How is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Senior Management
The senior management of our Group consists of our general manager

and our deputy general manager.

Date of joining

Name Age the Group Position/title
o FEE MAREENBH BB
Mr. Feng Xing (/5 #2)" 44 August 2004 General manager
B ESTAE 445, 200448 A4 pabes i
Ms. Lin Zi (R%&) 46 March 2004 Deputy general

manager
MERL 467% 20044 3A Bl

REEBELE - 455% 0 P2019F10A22 B EZE AYE T IF
HITEE - EERALEAERZESGKERTFHNZESK
FAERBERTREBDBAXERBBA- T8 - &
EECTERNEEANENPERESE R 2 RERITHND
¥RMEE(HPERRBEERSRERAR - TIRERZR
BRAFRNEBEBRSMERARSHERT) ©

ERAEFFATRE R T LA R A TERAL - 5742015
FE12 FBREFRTYR G EBRER AR (RO R
6083) B IEHITEE : 201641 AL E20204F4 A& E
ERERAER AT (RO : 484) BIEMITEE : B
201745 A E2021F1 AIEE LIBERFEHEFR AT
(B RSF « 755) B FEITE SR © B2017F 11 BHEHE(T
1957 & Co. (Hospitality) Limited (XD 1X5% : 8495) &7 Ik
WITESE  ANE2018F 10 ARETELERSETIEE
FRA T (AR5 - 2258) B IFMITES ©

RAEQOF12AEERBEATNARE - EIHER
BB (—REE - EBEEESH) ERERRBIE
ARGHAMAEEFCERAESGTMASES -

SREEE
REENSREEE BT BB IRAAR -

Date of appointment
as a member of the  Principal roles and
senior management responsibilities
BZEABR IEBK
EEEMERY REBE

29 April 2019 Implementation of our business
(Resigned on strategies
30 March 2022)

201948298  EHHMOEBLERE
(A 20224
3A30HBHT)

29 April 2019 Assisting the general manager
to implement our business

strategies

201948298  BBBLEEREMOELRE

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK
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Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

For the biography of Mr. Feng Xing, please refer to “Directors and Senior
Management — Directors” in this section.

Ms. Lin Zi (M%), aged 46, is the deputy general manager of our
Company. Ms. Lin is primarily responsible for assisting our general
manager to implement our business strategies. She has been appointed
as our deputy general manager since 29 April 2019. Ms. Lin has over
20 years of experience in the advertising industry. Prior to joining the
Group in March 2004, she worked as a manager in Jinjuan Advertisement
Technology Co., Ltd* (& BSEERHZAR (D B BR A 7)), a company principally
engaged in the advertising and media business, from March 1998 to
December 2002, where she was responsible for media placement. She
then worked as a manager in Shanghai Prospect Advertising Co., Ltd (=
ERIRES AR AR, a company principally engaged in the business
of placement of TV advertisements, from December 2002 to February
2004, where she was responsible for media placement and liaison with
media. From March 2004 to January 2021, Ms. Lin was the deputy
general manager of Beijing Ruicheng, where she was responsible for
the management of liaison work with media. Since February 2021,
she has been served as the general manager of Beijing Ruicheng and
is responsible for the overall daily operation and management of the
company. From March 2016 to October 2018, she was the director of
Beijing Ruicheng, where she was responsible for the implementation
of operating strategies of the company. Ms. Lin graduated from the
University of Science and Technology of China with a bachelor’s degree in
information technology in December 1998.

Ms. Lin also has held the following positions in the members of the Group:

Position held

FRERAL

Name

=5

Beijing Ruicheng
SIS

General manager
S

Beijing Ruicheng
IR

Deputy general manager
Bliasgie

Shanghai Kailun
S8R

General manager

BRE i

EHZ B

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

Principal roles responsibilities

TERBRBE

Daily operation of the company
BEARARESE

Management of liaison work with media
AR TIEE I8

Overall management

ERABREEZEE  F2HELXEERSREEAR -
Ex|—ffi-

MBELZL - 4658 AARIEBKE - MELEBEEHE
BPBEE TR MRS RE - £82019F4 3298 A
REZTABBEE - MZETHEB20FESITENKL
5 o TE2004F3 A MARERE AT + #4199843 A 22002
FI2AHASBEEERERMAERARKEE  ZAAE
DREEERIFEER  MEEEHEBERK - £& @ B#R
2002F 12 AZE2004F 2 A HELBAIEESBR QALK
B ZARETEREEEESRNES  mMEAEEER
TN B B AR o FA2004F3 B E2021F1 8 » Mzt A
bR EIARIE - BB EIRAEHAR T1E - 202142
A MZtAtRHEANALE  2EEE R ABKE
B TIE - A2016F3 A £20185F 108 » H AL FIRHAE
F - BEEHZAFNEERE - MZTMN1998F 12 AR
Fh BRI E S i KRR A BUS 5 B RTS8y -

MELNAEERE AR P HEEL TR

Date of appointment

EZREAH

18 February 2021
2021%2H18H

1 March 2004
20049 3A1H
(resigned on January 2021)

(H20214F1 ABHL)

5 August 2015
201548 HA5H



Directors and Senior Management
EERSHEEAE

Ms. Lin was awarded the “Eighth China Advertising Golden Vision Awards:
Leader in China’s Marketing” (E/\[EFBEE T REBLIHEZEEE
A#) in 2016 jointly by the Advertiser Magazine (&4 £ ##54t) and the
Committee of the China Advertising Summit (B E4 T IESHE ).

Note:

(1) Mr. Feng has resigned as the general manager of the Company on 30 March 2022.
Joint Company Secretaries
Mr. Leng Xuejun

For the biography of Mr. Leng Xuejun, please refer to “Directors and
Senior Management- Directors” in this section.

Mr. Zhang Mengchi, was appointed as a Joint Company Secretary
of the Company on 14 December 2021. Mr. Zhang currently serves as
an assistant manager of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited.

Mr. Zhang holds a Master degree in Professional Accounting and
Corporate Governance from the City University of Hong Kong, and is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries) and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators).

MR LER2016F RS TR PRSI ESRE S
BERBEEN\ETRHES T EREHEFEEAY] -

HiaE -
(1) JBHAER202293 /730 HEHFR L AIABAEHE o

BENRME
REESRE

BALEEREZREFS  F2HAHEERERER
AB-#BE]-

REWAEN2021F12 14 B ESEARQ T E AT
Z - RAEERFTETCERBER (BB BRQRIMENIEL
I8 o

RAERKERBRMTABRZ XS HAOEERALE
I - WHREBATAEAE BITREEBFITWELS) I
ARFDREAE (AIMARIWNE RMITRABRS®) &L -
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Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. The Company has applied and complied with all
the code provisions set out in the CG Code during the Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having been made specific
enquiry, the Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1. Composition of the Board
The Board currently comprises a combination of three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors. During
the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the Board
consisted of the following members:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS: INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ms. Wang Xin (Chairlady of the Mr. Li Xue
Board)

Mr. Feng Xing (Vice Chairman Mr. How Sze Ming
of the Board)”

Ms. Li Na

Mr. Leng Xuejun (Vice Chairman of Mr. Wu Ke
the Board)

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing its corporate value.

The Directors possess the skills, experience and expertise either in
the same industry or relevant to the management of the business
of the Group. The biographical details of the Directors and the
relationship between members of the Board are set out in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 20 to 27 of
this annual report. There are no relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) among
members of the Board.

Notes:

(1) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as an executive Director and the vice Chairman of
the Board of the Company on 30 March 2022.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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Corporate Governance Report
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Chairlady and General Manager

The positions of the Chairlady of the Board and General Manager
(who discharged the same duties as the chief executive officer)
are held by separate individuals to ensure that a segregation of
duties and a balance of power and authority are achieved. The
Chairlady is responsible for overseeing the overall management,
strategic planning and business development of the Group. The
General Manager is responsible for formulating detailed plans for
implementation of the business strategies of the Group set by the
Board and mainly focuses on the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s business. During the Reporting Period, Ms.
Li Na served as the Chairlady of the Board from 25 January 2019
to 14 December 2021, Ms. Wang Xin has served as the Chairlady
of the Board from 14 December 2021 to the date of this report and
Mr. Feng Xing has served as the general manager of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent, play
an important role in the Board. They possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management skill and
experience and have provided their professional advice to the
Board through regular attendance and active participation. Three
independent non-executive Directors have represented more than
one-third of the Board, they provide a certain degree of check and
balance and exercise independent judgement for safeguarding the
interests of the Shareholders and the Group as a whole.

The non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing from
the respective effective date of appointment and are subject to
retirement by rotation at the Company’s annual general meetings
at least once every three years in accordance with the regulations
of the Articles of Association. The Company has received an annual
written confirmation from each Independent Non-executive Director
in respect of his independence to the Company pursuant to the
requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has assessed
the independence of all independent non-executive Directors and
confirmed that each of them continued to satisfy the independence
criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and remained
independent throughout the Reporting Period.

The Company also has at all times complied with the requirements
under Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors and the appointment of an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The independent non-
executive Directors represented at least one-third of the Board and
there will be a sufficiently robust and independent voice within the
Board to counter-balance any situation involving conflict of interest
and safeguard the interests of the independent Shareholders.
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Division of Responsibilities of the Board and the
Management of the Company

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group’s strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for day-to-day management and operation of the
Group to the senior management of the Group. The main corporate
governance duties of the Board include (a) to formulate and
review the policies and practices on corporate governance of the
Company; (b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; (c)
to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to formulate,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) to employees and Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs, the Board has established three Board committees including
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. The Board has delegated the responsibility
as set out in their respective terms of reference which are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company to the
Board committees.

The management under the leadership of the general manager
is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Group’s
businesses and implementation of the strategy and direction set by
the Board.

To ensure the operational efficiency and specific issues are being
handled by relevant expertise, the Board delegates certain powers
and authorities from time to time to the management.

Board Meetings

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operation and financial performance of the Group.
Code Provision C.5.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code prescribes that
at least four regular Board meetings should be held in each year
at approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of
majority of Directors, Directors may participate in person or through
electronic means of communication.

The Company has adopted the practice of holding Board
meetings regularly. Notice of not less than fourteen days is given
of all regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with the
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
committee meetings, seven days’ notice is given. The agenda and
accompanying board papers are despatched to the Directors or
committee members at least three days before meetings to ensure
that they have sufficient time to review these documents and be
adequately prepared. When the Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairlady prior to the meeting.
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Minutes of the Board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the committees and the decisions reached in the meetings,
including any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes
of each Board meeting and committee meetings are sent to
the Directors within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held so that they have an opportunity to request
amendments. Minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by Directors.

The Company has fully complied with the requirement under the
code provision C.5.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code to convene Board
meetings at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. During the Reporting Period, the members of the Board
have (i) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management;
(ii) reviewed the policies and practices on corporate governance
of the Company; and (jii) reviewed and monitored the policies and
practices of the Company on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, during the regular board meetings. As at the date of
this annual report, the members of the Board have reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

The Company convened an annual general meeting on 3 June
2021 and five Board meetings during the Reporting Period. The
attendance records of each Director at the Board meeting and
general meeting of the Company during the Reporting Period are
set out below:

Attendance/ Attendance/

Number of Number of

Board General

Name of Directors Meetings Meetings

Ms. Wang Xin® 5/5 11

Mr. Feng Xing © 5/5 1Al

Ms. Li Na®@ 5/5 01

Mr. Leng Xuejun 5/5 11

Mr. Li Xue 3/5 11

Mr. How Sze Ming 3/5 11

Mr. Wu Ke 3/5 11
Notes:

(1) Ms. Wang Xin has served as the Chairlady of the Board and the chairlady of
the Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 14 December
2021.

) Ms. Li Na resigned as the Chairlady of the Board and the Chairlady of the
Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from 14 December
2021.

3) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as the executive Director and vice chairman of the
Board on 30 March 2022.

(4) Ms. Wang Xin, Mr. Li Xue, Mr. How Sze Ming and Mr. Wu Ke held
a meeting on 28 December 2021 in respect of the summary of the
Company's situation and future outlook.

The Board met five times during the Reporting Period for (i)
reviewing and approving the annual audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the unaudited
interim financial statements of the Group for the six months ended
30 June 2021; (i) considering the change of the Chairlady of the
Board and the compositions of the Nomination Committee; and (iii)
Change of joint company secretary, authorized representative and
process agent.
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision A.2.1 of Part 2 of the CG Code, including
(i) reviewing the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices and making recommendations to the Board; (i)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; (iii) reviewing and
monitoring the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) to employees
and Directors; and (v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with
the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Board Committees

The Board has established Board Committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the Board Committees. The Company
currently has three committees under the Board, which are
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the
Nomination Committee. These committees operate in accordance
with their respective terms of reference established by the Board.

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the CG Code. The Audit Committee of the Company consists
of three Independent Non-executive Directors. As at the date of this
report, the members of Audit Committee are Mr. Li Xue, Mr. How
Sze Ming and Mr. Wu Ke. Mr. Li Xue currently serves as the chairman
of the Audit Committee. The member of the Audit Committee, Mr.
How Sze Ming, holds the appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to review and supervise the Company's financial reporting process
and risk management and internal control system, nominate and
monitor external auditors and to provide advice and comments to
the Board on matters related to corporate governance.

The written terms of reference of the Audit Committee are available
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Code provision D.3.3(e)(i) of Part 2 of the CG Code provides that
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee shall have the terms
that the members of the Audit Committee should liaise with the
Board and senior management and the Audit Committee must meet
at least twice a year with the Auditor. The Company has included
such terms in relevant terms of reference, and thus complied with
the Code Provision D.3.3(e)(i) of Part 2 of the CG Code during the
Reporting Period.
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During the Reporting Period, two Audit Committee meetings were RERERE  BEBITMABEZEESYSE - %%
held. The attendance records of the Audit Committee Meetings are BEegRMEELRESHWT

set out below:

Attendance/
Number of HERE,
Name of Committee Members Meeting(s) ZESREHSE EBRE
Mr. Li Xue 3/3 TEhAE 3/3
Mr. How Sze Ming 3/3 ERBREE 3/3
Mr. Wu Ke 3/3 SRS 3/3

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed
the annual audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the unaudited interim financial
statements of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2021
with recommendations to the Board for approval; (i) conducted
an annual review on the risk management and internal control
system of the Group and monitored the auditing process with
recommendations to the Board on the risk management and
internal control system as well as monitoring the auditing process;
and (iii) reviewed the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee also made
recommendations to the Board regarding the re-appointment of
Auditor and approval of the Auditors’ service fees.

On 31 December 2021, a meeting of the Audit Committee was held
to receive the auditors’ advice on matters that need to be brought
to the attention of the Group's audit work in 2021.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee of the
Company consists of three members. As at the date of this report,
the members of Remuneration Committee consist of Independent
Non-executive Director Mr. Wu Ke, Executive Director Ms. Wang
Xin and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. How Sze Ming.
Mr. Wu Ke currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the Reporting Period, two Remuneration Committee
meetings were held. The attendance records of the Remuneration
Committee Meetings are set out below:

Attendance/

Name of Committee Members Number of Meeting(s)

Mr. Wu Ke 2/2
Ms. Wang Xin 2/2
Mr. How Sze Ming 2/2
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
(1) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy; (2) reviewing
and approving the management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and
(3) either determining, with delegated responsibility or making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and senior management.

The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee
(i) reviewed and made recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration package of each Directors and senior Management;
(iiy made recommendations to the Board in relation to the proposed
remuneration regarding the change of chairlady of the Board and
of the Nomination Committee; and (i) reviewed the remuneration
policies, the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
of the Board, and structure of the Directors and the senior
management.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing
Rules and paragraph B.3 of Part 2 of the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee of the Company with members are executive Director
Ms. Wang Xin, independent non-exective Directors Mr. Li Xue and
Mr. Wu Ke. Ms. Wang Xin currently serves as the chairlady of the
Nomination Committee.

During the Reporting Period, two Nomination Committee meetings
were held. The attendance records of the Nomination Committee
Meetings are set out below:

Attendance/
Number of

Name of Committee Members Meeting(s)

Ms. Wang Xin® Not Applicable
Mr. Li Xue 2/2
Mr. Wu Ke 2/2
Ms. Li Na® 2/2
Notes:

1. Ms. Wang Xin has been appointed as the chairlady and as a member of

the Nomination Committee with effect from 14 December 2021.

2. Ms. Li Na has ceased to be the chairlady and a member of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 14 December 2021.
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The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board and/or in senior management and
succession planning for Directors in particular the Chairlady of
the Board. The Nomination Committee is also responsible for (i)
reviewing the Board structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience, and diversity of perspectives) at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
(i) developing and maintaining a policy for the nomination of Board
members which includes the nomination procedures or election
or re-election of Directors; (iii) developing and maintaining a policy
concerning board diversity policy (‘Board Diversity Policy”); (iv)
monitoring the appointment and succession planning of Directors
and (v) assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors. During Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee
held two meetings to (i) review the Board structure, size and
composition, and make proposed recommendations to the Board
on the re-election of the members of the Board in the forthcoming
AGM in accordance with the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
and the nomination policy of the Directors; (ii) accessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors; and (iii)
made recommendations to the Board on the change of chairlady of
the Board and of the Nomination Committee and the resignation of
executive Director.

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out
its approach to achieve and maintain an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of our Board that are relevant to our business
growth. Pursuant to our Board Diversity Policy, selection of Board
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and
industry experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the
diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review our
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness and we will disclose the implementation of the Board
Diversity Policy in Corporate Governance Report of the Company
on an annual basis.

As at the date of this annual report, the diversity of the Board of the
Company is set out in the following diagram, and the biographical
details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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Gender structure Career and expertise structure
Number of people and percentage (%) Number of people and percentage (%)
HRIEBABRE D (%) BERERABABREDL(%)

14.3%
M Female Director 14.3%
ThEE
Male Director
71.4% 9
BHES 14.3%

W Advertising industry
REITE
Finance and accounting industry
KRG ER
Corporate financing and investment
PE/MEMRERTE

Investment bank and
business assurance industry

RERITREBEETE

Age structure Educational structure
Number of people and percentage (%) Number of people and percentage (%)
FRAEBABRBD (%) BREBAEREDL(%)
14.3%
™ Aged 30-40
3075%-405% u Master’s degree
Aged 41-50 jI=tn=—iva
415%-506%
719 ool Bachelor’s degree

57.1% Aged 51-60 g4y

515%-605%
PROCEDURE AND PROCESS FOR NOMINATION OF EEREEFRARE

DIRECTORS

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors in accordance with the following procedures and process:

i Selection criteria:

(@) the Nomination Committee shall consider suitability of
the proposed candidates for appointment as Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules, the Board
Diversity Policy and the policy for the nomination of
Directors;

(o) the character and integrity of the proposed candidates
for appointment as Directors;

(c) the Nomination Committee shall consider whether the
proposed candidates for appointment as Directors are
equipped with the skills and expertise required from
members of the Board, and the skills, experiences and
knowledge to make significant contributions to the
Group;

(d)  the Nomination Committee shall consider the re-
election of any Directors who are to retire by rotation
having regard to the re-appointment of Directors’
performance, ability to continue to contribute to the
Board and their participation in the Board;
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(e) compliance with the criteria of independence, in case
for the appointment of an Independent Non-executive
Director, as prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules;

() the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules with
regard to directors of the Company; and

(¢)} any other relevant factors determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time
as appropriate.

Nomination procedures includes:

() the Nomination Committee shall formulate a selection
criteria list of candidates for directorship, the list will
consider the Board’s existing structure, scale, the
Board Diversity Policy and the needs of talent groups
and the Board, the candidates shall equip with the
characteristics of coordinating with the expansion of
the overall talent groups, experiences and expertise of
the Board;

(o)  the Company shall identify suitable candidates for
directorship through various channels, including
the recommendations from the Directors, the
Shareholders, the management or external head
hunting companies;

(c) the company secretary must obtain the personal
information of the nominated candidates in
accordance with the regulations of rule 13.51(2) of the
Listing Rules;

(d)  the Nomination Committee shall perform sufficient due
diligence on the individual candidate for directorship
and make recommendations to the Board for the
consideration and approval;

(e) to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-
executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out the expectation in terms of
time commitment, committee service and involvement
outside meetings of the Board;

) in the context of re-appointment of any existing
members of the Board, the Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the proposed
candidates to stand for re-election at the annual
general meeting;

(@@ the Board shall have the final decision on matters
related to the selection and appointment of
directorship; and
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(h)  the Board shall recommend the retired director to
stand for re-election at the annual general meeting
in accordance with the recommendations from the
Nomination Committee. The appointment of retired
director is subject to the approval at the annual
general meeting.

The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Remuneration of Directors

During the Reporting Period, executive Directors who are also the
Company’s staff are entitled to receive salaries, fees, discretionary
bonuses and other allowance and benefits in kind according to
their respective positions taken on a full-time basis in the Company.
Information relating to the remuneration of each Director for the
Reporting Period is set out in note 11 to the financial statements on
page 134 to page 135 of this annual report.

Pursuant to Recommended Best Practice E.1.8 of Part 2 of the CG
Code, for the Reporting Period, details of the remuneration of senior
management (except for Directors) by remuneration grade are as
follows:

Remuneration band

FrNsaE
Nil to RMB500,000

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. The principal particulars of these service
contracts are (i) for a term of three years commencing from their
respective effective date of appointment until the day on which
the next general meeting of the Shareholders for re-election of
Directors is held; and (i) are subject to termination in accordance
with their respective terms. The service contracts may be renewed
in accordance with our Articles of Association and the applicable
Listing Rules.

At any time or from time to time, the Board shall have the power to
appoint any person as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy on
the Board or as an additional Director to the existing Board subject
to any maximum number of Directors, if any, as may be determined
by the members in general meeting. Any Director so appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting
of the Company after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. Any Director so appointed as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting of the Company after his appointment and be eligible
for re-election at such meeting. Any Director so appointed by the
Board shall not be taken into account in determining the Directors
or the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation at an annual
general meeting.
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At each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation. However, if the
number of Directors is not a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one third shall be the number of
retiring Directors. The Directors to retire in each year shall be
those who have been in office longest since their last re-election or
appointment but, as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day, those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Board for election, be eligible for election to
the office of Director at any general meeting, unless notice in writing
of the intention to propose that person for election as a Director
and notice in writing by that person of his willingness to be elected
has been lodged at the head office or at the registration office
of the Company. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
commence no earlier than the day after despatch of the notice of
the relevant general meeting and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting and the minimum length of the
period during which such notices may be lodged must be at least
seven days.

A Director is not required to hold any shares in the Company by
way of qualification nor is there any specified upper or lower age
limit for Directors either for accession to or retirement from the
Board.

From time to time the Board may appoint one or more of its
members to be managing director, joint managing director or
deputy managing director or to hold any other employment or
executive office with the Company for such period and upon such
terms as the Board may determine, and the Board may revoke or
terminate any of such appointments. The Board may also delegate
any of its powers to committees consisting of such Director(s) or
other person(s) as the Board thinks fit, and from time to time it
may also revoke such delegation or revoke the appointment of and
discharge any such committees either wholly or in part, and either as
to persons or purposes, but every committee so formed shall, in the
exercise of the powers so delegated, conform to any regulations
that may from time to time be imposed upon it by the Board.
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10. Training of Directors
Pursuant to Code Provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the CG Code, all
Directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

According to the trading records provided by the Directors, a
summary of training received by the Directors during the Reporting
Period is as follows:

Nature of

continuous

professional

development

Name of Directors programmes

Wang Xin

Feng Xing

Li Na

Leng Xuejun A,
Li Xue

How Sze Ming

Wu Ke

WWWwWwwwm

Notes:

A: Attending seminar or trainings that are relevant to (i) Director’s duties
and obligations; (i) New ESG requirements; (iij) notifiable transaction
and connected transaction; and (iv) the continuous professional training
for company secretaries in 2021 organized by SWCS Academy, which
mainly involves the general responsibilities of company secretaries, the
responsibilities of directors and senior managements, etc.

B: Reading and watching relevant materials on the topics related to (i) the
Board and the Board's Governance Guidelines; (i) corporate governance
(including managing inside information); (iij) the CG Code,; and (iv)
connected transactions.

All Directors have provided written record of the training they
received for the Reporting Period to the Company.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The management of the Company provides explanation and information
to the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of financial statements
and other information put before the Board for approval. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for preparation information and
representations contained in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the Reporting Period, which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash flow for the
Reporting Period.

In the preparation of the financial statements, the International Financial
Reporting Standards have been adopted and appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently used and applied. The Board continues to
prepare the financial statements set out on pages 100 to 167 on a going
concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the Group’s external auditors, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, are set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on
pages 95 to 99 of this annual report.

Auditor Remuneration

The management performs a review of remuneration to external auditors
on an annual basis. The fees for audit services have been reviewed by the
Audit Committee, and the fees for non-audit services, if any, are approved
by management.

For the Reporting Period, the fee paid/payable to the external auditor
of the Company, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited or its affilicated firm, in
respect of audit services and non-audit services is set out as follows:

Audit and related service: BEZRBBRYE
Non-audit service: FEEIZARTE
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The executive Director, the vice chairman of the Board and one of
the joint company secretaries, Mr. Leng Xuejun is an employee of the
Company. He is responsible for overseeing the company secretarial
matters and financial matters of the Group. Having regard to Mr. Leng’s
past experience in handling administrative and corporate matters, the
Board considered Mr. Leng has thorough understanding of the internal
management and business operations of the Group.

In addition, the Company has appointed Mr. Zhang Mengchi as another
joint company secretary to work closely with and provide assistance to
Mr. Leng in discharging his duties and responsibilities as a joint company
secretary and acquiring relevant experience within the meaning of Rules
3.28 of the Listing Rules. Mr. Zhang is an assistant manager of SWCS
Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a corporate service
supplier.

Mr. Leng is the primary corporate contact person of the joint company
secretary, Mr. Zhang, in respect of corporate governance, the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations related to the Company
and other matters, contacts Mr. Leng, and Mr. Leng is responsible for
reporting to the Board and/or the Chairlady of the Board.

As at 31 December 2021, Mr. Leng and Mr. Zhang have each undertaken
over 15 hours of professional training which is in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Lei Kin Keong resigned as joint company secretary with effect from 14
December 2021. Mr. Zhang was appointed as a joint company secretary
with effect from 14 December 2021. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 14 December 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”) of the Company, the
Company currently does not have any predetermined dividend payout
ratio. A decision to declare or pay any dividend in the future and the
amount of any dividends depends on a number of factors, including but
not limited to results of operations, financial position, working capital,
capital requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant. The
Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time. The Board has the
absolute discretion to decide whether to declare or distribute dividends
in any year. There is no assurance that dividends of such amount or any
amount will be declared or distributed each year or in any year.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

NAME

REFBEEGRPTES EFSREIFEBEARAWE
HAZ-RARFET - WABEEARAMEZTERAE
SEVHEE - ZEILAEBERBITHREAREBH
K BERERRASTEHFAEENMERREKEET
FRBTH -

SN KRR EERSWELERS —BHELIRWE
QSR EEL IR - AEEEHEITHE R A
WENBEREE - HES TR AES. 28R AR
&8 o RELEHEACERBEEREB)BARAF (—RHE
BRI RE) B IRALIE -

REERMEAPWENDNREZBEA - REERDE
B8 LTRAREARNTEEREBABENETEEME
REEERNEHRLKERRE - REERAENESS
R/ REEREEER -

HZE2021F12A31BILFE - RAEMREEEDRIES
NOME/ N Z BB R EET - 6 EThRAIES. 201k
HRIE o

TR EABFEBE A RME B - K2021F12A1404
W REABBEABREARME - R2021F127144%
W FHEBREARRIABA2021F12 148 2 A% -

R BB

REARFNREBBEE ((REBE]) - AR FRKIEE
AIAEIRBLLE o BRE IR IR ERR S ENRE KA
BEMEREURANZHEE - B EATRREMANEEE
B MBI gEES BB RREFGERAE
HEMEER - B TRBIRERE -EFe2R
BERERBEEAFETRIDIRE - I TNRERE
FIMEAFEERHIDIRAFESEREMSRORE



Corporate Governance Report
EERRE

Any declaration and payment of dividends under the Dividend Policy will
be subject to the Board’s determination that the same would be in the
best interests of the Group and the Shareholders of the Company as
a whole. In addition, the declaration and payment of dividends may be
subject to legal restrictions or any applicable laws, rules and regulations
and the Articles of Association.

As of the Reporting Date, the Company was not aware of any
arrangements pursuant to which shareholders had waived or agreed to
waive any dividends.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS
RELATIONS

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
also recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

Information about the Company’s financial results, corporate details and
major events will be disseminated continuously through publication of
announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports and press release.
All published information is promptly uploaded to the Company’s website
at www.reach-ad.com, for public access.

The annual general meeting of the Company provides an opportunity
for the Shareholders to communicate directly with the Directors.
The Chairlady of the Board as well as chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Audit Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees will be available to
answer questions at shareholder meetings. The external auditor will also
attend the AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies
and auditor independence.

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting

In accordance with article 64 of the Articles of Association, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
rights, by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to process
to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to The Board
Shareholders can also submit enquiries to the Board and send proposals
to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting to the Board by sending emails
to recpr@reach-ad.com or making phone calls to our investor hotline at 86-
10-85769398.
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1602, 13/F, Building 7, No. 63 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing,
the PRC.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the period from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report,
there has not been any change in the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association. The Company’s memorandum and articles of
association are available on the website of the Company (www.reach-ad.
com) and that of the Stock Exchange.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

1. Accountability

The Board recognises its responsibility is to assess and determine
the nature and level of risks that the issuer is willing to accept
in the process of reaching strategic targets, and to ensure the
Group establishes and maintains an appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control system. This system is aimed
at managing and not eliminating the risk of not meeting business
targets, and will provide reasonable but not absolute guarantee that
major misrepresentations or business losses will not occur.

2. Governance Structure of Risk Management and Internal

Control

The Board is responsible for the assessment and determination
of significant risks and the effectiveness of risk management
monitoring for the year; the maintenance of an appropriate
and effective design, implementation and monitoring of risk
management and internal control system; making conclusions as
to the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
system every year, after considering the work and review results of
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in the
assessment and monitoring of the risks encountered by the Group,
the design, implementation and monitoring and performance of the
relevant risk management and internal control system. It reports
to the Board after properly reviewing the Group’s annual risk
management and the effectiveness of the internal control system.

The management is responsible for the proper design,
implementation and monitoring of the Group’s risk management
and internal control system as authorised by the Board, and the
confirmation provided to the Board as to the effectiveness of the
relevant system.

The securities department is responsible for the coordination of
risk identification and assessment procedures, preparation of risk
assessment reports, bringing identified risks to the attention of the
Audit Committee, and reporting the actions taken in relation to
the management of such risks. Business divisions and functional
operations department are responsible, in accordance with their
duties, for identifying, assessing and responding to the risks relevant
to their individual departments, and carrying out risk management
procedures and internal control measures within the scope of their
respective business and functional operations areas. Each business
department identifies and evaluates risks and initiates risk response
measures in their respective areas.
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The internal audit department is responsible for assisting the
Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control system, and to conduct
independent assessments of the established risk management
and internal control system in accordance with the internal control

procedures.
3.  Risk Management 3. HEREE
3.1 Risk Management Objectives 3.1 EBREEAE

TtEEREENEREEREEVAENE
BEANEERN  HRAMEENEZZM
PRETERE  UHAERNEARRETER
JESANE R - ERITHER

The objective of corporate risk management is to manage
significant risks that the Company is faced with, and take
major responsive and monitoring actions on significant risks,
through the establishment of a proper organisational system
and management model. The specific objectives are as
follows:

identify, assess, quantify, respond and manage all
current and future process of significant risks, and
contain them at all times at a level and in a scope
acceptable to management;

establish a consistent and effective monitoring and
reporting system for all significant risks;

provide reasonable assurance that the Company will
comply with the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations of external monitoring authorities, and that
various departments comply with relevant internal
rules and regulations;

provide reasonable assurance that significant
measures to achieve the Company’s targets are
properly implemented.
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3.2

Major Processes of Risk Management

Risk management mainly includes four major areas: risks
identification, risks assessment, risks response and risk
monitoring and reporting.

Risks
identification:

Risks
assessment:

Risks response:

Risks
monitoring
and reporting:

each business and functional department
and its subsidiaries conducts, once in a
year, an identification of potential internal
and external risks in its respective
operation processes. During risks
identification, references are mainly
made to the impact the risks have on
the Company’s objectives, and major
problems or risk incidents in the business
activities for the past year.

according to the risks assessment
standards, each business and functional
department and its subsidiaries reviews
the risks identified, and assesses the
possibilities of occurrence and the
extents of impacts in order to screen out
the significant risks. The Group adopts a
combination of bottom-up and top-down
risk assessment procedures to fully
identify all of the Group’s significant risks,
which are then given rankings. Significant
risks are then reported to the appropriate
management level, Audit Committee and
the Board. A final list of significant risks is
confirmed after thorough communication
and discussion.

the responsible department of the
identified risks formulates a risk response
plan by properly applying methods
such as risk avoidance, risk reduction,
risk sharing or risk acceptance, with
consideration of the Group’s level of
risk tolerance. This allows the Group
to properly allocate resources for risk
mitigation or improvements on risk
response measures, with an aim to
reduce the overall risks of the Group to
an acceptable level.

Risk monitoring and reporting are carried
out by integrating the use of risk warning
indicators, internal auditing and periodic
summarized risk reports.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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3.3

Significant Risks

In accordance with the corporate risk management
framework, the Group conducted an overall risk audit and
assessment in 2021. The following lists the significant risks
of the Group and its major affiliates, the changes in the
nature and level of these risks, and the relevant plans and

3.3

monitoring measures to mitigate these significant risks.

Risk Type
EERIER

Macro-economic Risks

REEERER

Risk Description
EBEH

Risks from macro-economic fluctuations and major events
As pandemic prevention becomes normalized, its impacts
on economic recovery are uncertain. If there is an economic
slowdown or recession, which results in a decline in the demand
for marketing services from existing customers, as well as the
Company failing to adjust its operating policies in a timely manner,
it will have a certain adverse impact on the Company’s operating
income and operating performance.

In addition to the pandemic, the Company’s share price will also
be affected by the following factors, including but not limited
to: domestic and foreign economic cycle fluctuations, national
macro-economic policy adjustments, changes in national
Internet and Internet advertising-related regulatory policies,
changes in domestic stock market regulatory policies, major
domestic and foreign stock market fluctuations, changes in
the international political and economic environment, major
natural disasters, fluctuations in the Company’s operating
performance, major changes in the Company’s key customers
or suppliers, announcements of major events, purchases and
sales of the Company’s shares by substantial shareholders and
key management personnel, stock analysts’ comments on the
Company and industry in which it operates and news reports.
Although the Company is confident in the future operating
performance, the future development trend of the Internet
marketing industry and its marketspace, if the above factors that
may affect the share price change adversely, the Company’s
share price will fluctuate to varying degrees. If any investors
purchase or sell the Company’s shares in the event of unfavorable
fluctuations in share price, the investors may suffer from different
degrees of loss.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
EBEEHSR

The Company is actively organizing
operations and adjusting its operating
direction and market strategies. Through
various methods such as enhancing
multimedia coordination and integration
capabilities and in-depth content
marketing integration capabilities, and
improving the customer service system,
the Company overcomes the difficulties
and adverse effects caused by the
pandemic, ensuring its steady and long-
term development.
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Risk Type Risk Description
B A B At

Risks Relating to

Industry Policy advertising industry

In recent years, relevant authorities have strengthened the
supervision of mass media and Internet advertising, and
promulgated various laws and regulations and codes of conduct,
including the “Advertising Law” ((EE7%)), “Mobile Internet
Advertising Standards” ((BEEBAESIZAE)), “Guiding
Opinions on Strengthening the Supervision of Online Live
Marketing Activities” (B INGEAB4R R 2 HEDEENIEEE
£.)), “Online Short Video Platform Management Specifications”
((REERIAFAEIRRE)) and “Online Short Video Content
Review Standards” ((AB#&FERIERN A FZIZLEAAD). The entry
barriers and requirements of the advertising industry may be
raised. Meanwhile, with the increase in the number and type of
variety shows, the development of the short video industry and
the introduction of new regulatory requirements, advertisers and
media agencies are required to consider policy risks in a prudent
manner when choosing Internet media and content programs. If
the Company does not adequately review customer qualifications
and neglects to review the advertising content, or the customers
deliberately conceal the correct information of their products or
services, which leads to the Company unable to find the problems
in a timely manner, the Company’s reputation may be damaged
due to non-compliance in advertising business activities, and the
Company may be punished or fined thereafter. If the advertising
laws, regulations or policies in the advertisers’ industries are
adjusted and changed, it may affect the advertising needs and
marketing behaviors of the advertisers in the industry, thereby
affecting the Company's operating performance.
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Compliance risks from the relevant regulatory policy of the

BEEGRBHEHE
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Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

Various departments of the Company
are paying attention to the regulation
institutions’ latest policy requirements
towards the advertising field,
understanding the latest regulatory
requirements of the advertising industry,
and ensuring the Company’s business
does not touch the regulatory red line.

The Company formulated an emergency
response plan to ensure that when the
laws and regulations changes, it can
buffer the fluctuation influence on the
Company’s operations caused by the
policy changes in a timely manner.

The Company has established a
complete business process, customer
service process and internal control
system to strictly review customer
qualifications, identities and products,
so as to ensure the compliance in
advertising business activities.

At the same time, in addition to stabilizing
its existing business cooperation, the
Company continues to intently explore
new forms of advertising business and
seek extensive cooperation opportunities.
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Risk Type
B A

Risks Relating to Market
Competition

Mg AR

Risk Description

B 4

Risks relating to market competition

The advertising industry is full of competition; the entry barriers of
the industry are not high, and the market concentration is relatively
low. In recent years, with the rise of emerging media such as
Internet media and mobile Internet media, the emergence of a
large number of digital media in the field of Internet advertising as
well as more diversified media platforms and advertising channels,
the advertising industry becomes increasingly competitive.

At the same time, customer needs show a trend of
personalization, diversification, and specialization, and customers’
demand on creative advertising continues to grow. If the
Company fails to continuously meet the marketing needs of
customers in cross-media and multi-channel brand exposure
and product or service promotion in the future, it will face the risk
of intensified market competition, which will adversely affect the
Company's operating performance.

In addition, under such highly competitive environment, certain
media may compete for market share by lowering the prices,
which may affect the Company’s current competitiveness in the
industry in the long run.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

Facing the risks of intensified competition
in the future, the Company follows
the industrial development trend and
maintains the capabilities of continuous
innovation and business development.
The Company caters to the customer
needs, improves service quality,
increases brand awareness, and
constantly makes adjustment, thereby
adapting to market competition.

At the same time, facing the challenges
brought by customers, the Company
is constantly responding to customers’
demand by connecting to the industry’s
leading edge to understand the emerging
advertising model and nurturing
employees’ business capability. The
Company conducts real-time monitoring
on the advertising changes, actively
investigates excellent cases of various
media and grasps the latest development
of the industry through participating in
advertising exhibitions and other forms,
so as to understand advertising trend
and formulate corresponding plans.
In order to satisfy customers’ various
demand, the Company hires social
talents, provides employees with regular
training and encourages employees to be
innovative through motivating excellent
creativity.
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Risk Type
B A

Risks Relating to Human
Resources

ANERER

Risk Description

B 4

Risks relating to the outflow of talents and risks relating to
staff stability

The advertising industry is a talent-intensive industry. Its
characteristics include talent-intensive and strong demand
for professional talents. For advertising media companies,
professional advertising talents are important core resource to
the enterprise and the key element for maintaining and improving
the core competitiveness of the Company. The stability of the
management team and staff of the advertising companies will
directly affect the development and performance of its business.

Affected by the pandemic, the Company has downsized
significantly. As the business resumes and develops gradually,
the Company’s demand for marketing talents will further increase.
The Company may face risks such as the outflow of talents, talent
shortage, and incomplete organizational structure. If the Company
fails to control its risks relating to talent turnover, the Company’s
operations and business development will be adversely affected.

AT RERBERABBEERE

BEETRBNATBRILTE  TREMEATEREZERXAT
FoRAER  HRESERARMNE  EENES AT REESE
BROBEROVER  ZTREMEFARARZROEFNOERE
R BERARERERLEBASNIZEL  BERFYERRE
TEHV R ANZESS -

ERERXE  RAABKERD  BEEXEBREMFR - 2FY
EHBAMEAT T RBE — IR - ABFREEBEATRE -
AT HERIMAA BEAE 2R - B DRI IEER AT REK
BEE - BIEHRARNEEMEBRERERTNTE -

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

The Company values on the construction
of talents resources. Based on the
principle of enhancing compensation
competitiveness through incentives,
the Company establishes a reasonable
compensation system, adheres to the
talent strategy of “internal training and
external recruitment” by nurturing existing
talents and attracting experienced talents
to form a sound organizational structure,
maintains the stability and enthusiasm
of the Company’s core team, and jointly
promotes the stable development of the
Company.

Meanwhile, to improve the overall
competence level of employees, the
Company (i) strengthens recruitment
evaluation management during talents
recruitment and obtains candidates’
information through multiple channels to
ensure the ability of candidates matches
the recruitment positions; (i) strengthens
the professional training and coaching, so
as to continuously improve employees’
expertise and competence; (jii) promotes
its corporate culture and forms a strong
sense of cultural identity with employees.
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Risk Type Risk Description

B A B At

Liquidity Risks Operating cash flow turnover risks and asset impairment
risks

Due to the characteristics of the advertising industry, media in
the advertising agency business generally require payment before
broadcast. For premium customers, the Company generally
grants a certain credit period. At the same time, when it comes to
the exclusive advertising agency business and customer bidding,
the Company needs to pay the media and the customers security
deposit, and the time when the customers pay the Company is
relatively uncertain, exerting pressure on the Company’s capital.

Affected by the slowdown in macro-economic growth, customers
are facing the pressure of declining profits and tight budgets,
which may delay payment to the Company or even cause them to
fail to repay the Company. As such, it may pose a capital turnover
risks to the Company to a certain degree, exerting pressure
on the Company’s working capital. Meanwhile, the extension
of the settlement cycle of certain businesses leads to longer
payment cycle of the Company, thus posing corresponding asset

impairment risks on the Company.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

The Company conducts scientific
management on capital flows, formulates
capital plans, and rationally arranges the
use of the Company’s funds, so as to
improve the efficiency of capital use and
ease the Company’s capital pressure.
The Company continues to track
customer credits and provides customers
with specific payment terms based on
their current credit levels. The Company
establishes a list of trade receivables,
perform regular reconciliations, controlling
the ageing of accounts and the status
of repayment, and strengthening the
collection of defaulted accounts. The
Company adopts various methods to
settle the defaulted accounts, such as by
reminding customers by telephone and
sending letters of enquiry. If necessary,
legal measures are taken to collect the
trade receivables, and the responsibility
for collecting the trade receivables
is assigned to the individual, and the
collection of trade receivables is taken as
an assessment indicator.
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Risk Type Risk Description
B A B At

Procurement Risks

affected.

During the Reporting Period, top five suppliers of the Company
accounted for 80% of the total media procurement costs, which
is a relatively high level. At present, the Company maintains a
relatively stable cooperative relationship with media suppliers, and
the cooperation terms offered to cooperative suppliers remains
relatively stable. However, if the Company fails to make timely
adjustments or shift the impacts arising from adverse changes
to the downstream enterprises in the case of changes in the
competition of upstream suppliers or adjustments of cooperation
terms, agency policy, rebate policy or rebate ratio, the Company’s

operations will be adversely affected.
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Supplier concentration and media purchase price risks

Given the high concentration of Internet media in the PRC, a few
media resources operators dominate the media market. With the
continuous and rapid growth of digital marketing market demand
and the gradual application of new technologies in the PRC,
the market share and bargaining power of dominant media may
be further enhanced, thereby increasing the prices of Internet
advertising resources. If the price level of Internet advertising
resources continues to rise in the future and the Company fails
to take effective measures to pass the increment to customers or
cover the costs, the Company’s operating results will be adversely

BE AT REE — R

Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

The Company will continue to maintain
a stable relationship with cooperative
media suppliers and minimize the risks
of rising media resources prices by
adjusting cooperation methods and
signing strategic agreements. The
Company will also continue to improve
its services, actively develop new
businesses, enhance the Company’s
service value, and effectively pass the
media resources prices increment to
customers and cover the costs.

Meanwhile, the Company will expand
or strengthen its cooperation with more
media suppliers to gradually reduce the
risks of supplier concentration. Currently,
the Company has established stable
cooperative relationship with several
provincial-level satellite TVs and websites,
forming a multi-channel and diversified
business model. At the same time, the
Company will further enrich service
types through the development of new
media channels and further reduce the
Company’s procurement concentration.

NEFEERT EAFREBHERNE
EEFE - WRBRHEAETR  FEH
B ST - EAREERER LK
BV - A EEEFERIREAKE
REEBFNER  BRBARREE
B BERERER LRNERETAE
BMHEZGFHIE -

R - N E)SHRRE NS 8158 % a4t
EENEIE - BL R EHBEET O
2o BAT - RRDERSZRERERMN
BULERY TIRENSERE T
ZRIE  ZEBRNELEN ARG
BREAEFNREREBE - TLERY
BE - E-PREATRNRBETE -



Corporate Governance Report

TREBRE

Risk Type
B A

Financial Management
Risks

B 7 T8 R b

Risk Description

B 4

Risks relating to the decrease in gross profit margin

During the Reporting Period, the gross profit margin of the
Company decreased due to various factors such as industry
competition, supplier cooperation policy, customer structure,
channel sales ratio and macro-economic environment. In line
with the industry trend, the Company promptly develops its
digital marketing business, thereby rapidly increasing the amount
and proportion of its digital advertising revenue. In addition, the
Company constantly attracts customers in different industries,
resulting in a decrease in the consolidated gross profit margin
during the Reporting Period. With the continuous expansion of
the Internet advertising market, the proportion of the Company’s
digital marketing revenue may further increase, and the industries
in which its customers operate will become more diversified. At
the same time, the market competition in the advertising industry
is constantly intensifying. If the Company fails to lessen the
impacts arising from the abovementioned factors and improve
its profitability in a timely manner, the gross profit margin may
continue to decline.
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Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

The Company continues to strengthen
the research and development of its
core technology, focuses on human
resources system construction and
cost management, and achieve a good
level of profitability based on the core
competitiveness of its own products.
The Company also actively adjusts its
business structure and continuously
increases the investment of resources
in the new media field. By retaining
existing customers and attracting new
customers, the Company is committed
to strengthening the overall operations
and profitability.
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Risk Type Risk Description
B A B At

Brand and Reputation
Risks information

In the course of conducting its Internet advertising business, the
Company records and analyzes the browsing behavior of Internet
users who browse the content of related advertisements and
cooperative website contents due to the needs of monitoring and
improving the effect of advertisements, controlling the frequency
of advertising delivery and improving the accuracy of advertising
delivery. In 2014, the PRC promulgated the first industry
standard to regulate the use of Internet targeted advertising
user information, i.e. “Industry Framework Standard for Internet
Targeted Advertising User Information Protection in the PRC” (¢
B BT MRS AP ERREITEE
industry standard for the use of Internet targeted advertising user
information. The Company publicizes the method and scope of
collecting user information and provides a user-friendly selection
mechanism for its users to choose whether to accept data
collection. However, the Company may not be able to effectively
control the personal behavior of all employees. If user information
is improperly used due to human factors, it will adversely affect
the Company’s reputation, and may even have an adverse impact
on the Company’s business development, thereby affecting its

operating performance.
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Risks relating to the improper use of Internet user

), defining the

DEBBERT

Risk Mitigation Plan
B PES 5 R

The Company attaches great importance
to the protection of Internet user
information, strictly abides by the relevant
laws and regulations, and implements
strict rules on the access and use of user
information by employees. When using
such user information, the Company
ensures the de-identification of user
identity-related information through
technical means. As a result, such
information cannot be used to identify,
confirm or associate with any specific
user. In addition, the Company provides
training and education activities for
its employees, so as to enhance their
awareness of confidentiality and prevent
improper use of user information due to
employees’ personal reasons.
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4. Internal Control

4.1

4.2

Internal Control Objectives

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to supervise the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control system, and
a sound and effective internal control system is achieved
through a management structure with explicit authorisation
and internal monitoring accountability. The objectives are:

o to reasonably assure that the enterprise is operated
and managed in compliance with the laws and
regulations, the safety of assets, and the authenticity
and completeness of its financial reports and related
information;

o to enhance operating efficiency and effectiveness; and

. to promote the achievement of the enterprise’s
development strategies.

Internal Control

The Group has referred to the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
framework, and incorporated the Group’s business
management characteristics in the design of its internal
control system, and has established an internal audit
department to take responsibility of the internal control
function. The Company hired a third-party institution
to perform internal audit work once a year. As of 31
December 2021, the Group completed risk-oriented internal
assessments on sales and receipt, project management,
day-to-day fund management, financial reporting and
management, procurement and payment, human resources
and remuneration, and periodically followed-up with the
rectifications of the problems identified by internal audit. The
management and the Audit Committee reviewed the internal
control assessment reports, and assessed the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The scope of the review included the Group’s major
control and risk management functions, such as financial
control, operations control and compliance control.

As of 31 December 2021, the Board considered that, the
Group had carried out internal control’s “plan, review, report
and follow-up” processes of the close-loop management
system, that the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems were effective and adequate, that the
Company’s procedures on financial reporting and the
compliance of the provisions under the Listing Rules were
effective and adequate and that no significant areas of
concern that might affect the Group’s financial control,
operations control, compliance control and risk management
functions had been identified.

In the process of the review, the Board considered that the
resources, qualifications, experience of staff of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting, as well as their training
sessions and budget were adequate.
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4.3

Inside Information

The Company is aware of and strictly complies with the
requirements of the currently applicable laws, regulations
and guidelines, including the obligations to disclose inside
information under the SFO and the Listing Rules, and the
Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by
the Securities and Futures Commission, at the time when
the relevant businesses are transacted. The Group has
established the authority and accountability, as well as the
handling and dissemination procedures in relation to inside
information, and has communicated to all relevant personnel
and provided them with specific trainings in respect of the
implementation of the continuous disclosure policy.

The Board considers that the Company’s handling and
dissemination procedures and measures in relation to inside
information are effective.
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1.  ABOUT THIS REPORT

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“the Company” or “we”) are pleased to present our Environmental,
Social and Governance Report (hereinafter referred to as the “ESG
Report” or “the Report”) to illustrate the principles and sustainable
development philosophy we uphold in fulfilling our corporate
social responsibility, and to summarize the work and practices
in environmental, social and governance (hereinafter referred to
as “ESG”) of the Company to facilitate a better understanding
of stakeholders on progress and development direction of the
Company in respect of sustainability issues.

1.1

1.2

Reporting Standards

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(hereinafter referred to as the “Guide”) set out in Appendix 27
of the Main Board Listing Rules ((ZE#x L2 811) ) published
by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Report is prepared on the basis of four
reporting principles of materiality, quantitative, balance and
consistency, and has complied with the provisions, “comply
or explain”, of the Guide.

Materiality: We had identified key important stakeholders
and performed materiality assessments in the previous year,
and their expectations and needs were understood through
various communication channels. In addition, the important
ESG issues are determined and identified subject to the
extent of the important issues in affecting our businesses
and expectations of our stakeholders.

Quantitative: The Report contains all Key Performance
Indicators (KPIs) under the requirements of the Guide. The
corresponding calculation methods and the adopted criteria
and conversion factors have been disclosed.

Balance: The Report follows the principle of balance and has
presented an objective view with regard to the Company’s
current ESG status.

Consistency: The methods of disclosure on statistics and
KPIs adopted in the Report are in consistent with the
previous year.

Readers may refer to Appendix Il — The Stock Exchange
ESG Reporting Guide Index of the Report for quick referral.
The Report should be read in conjunction with the section
“Corporate Governance Report” contained in the Annual
Report for a comprehensive understanding of the ESG
performance of the Company.

Scope of Report

Unless otherwise indicated, the Report focuses on core
business performance of the Company for the period from 1
January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the “Year”). The KPIs
of environmental scope have covered four office locations
including Beijing Ruicheng, Beijing Lingyu, Shanghai Kailun
and Xizang Wanmei.
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1.3 Reporting Language
The Report is published in Traditional Chinese and English
versions, in case of any discrepancy between the two
versions, the Traditional Chinese version shall prevail.

1.4 Approval and Confirmations
The Report had been reviewed by and obtained approval
from the Board on 30 March 2022.

1.5 Feedback Mechanism
We truly value your comments and suggestions to the
Report and you are welcome to contact us by email (email:
rcpr@reach-ad.com).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The corporate philosophy, vision, mission and core values
embraced by the Company are “creative innovation and
entrepreneurial innovation”, “building up the most trusted
advertising brand in China”, “building a bridge between brand and
customers” and “treasure reputation with essence and sincerity,”
respectively. We are committed to the harmonious development of
values on corporate, employees, investors and society, and through
practicing active and lengthy outstanding corporate behaviors with
a focus on own impact on sustainable development, striving for co-
building a more benevolent sustainable society.

While developing its business, the Company places an emphasis
on sustainable development, shouldering the responsibilities of
environmental protection and community, and has proactively
improved and adopted various ESG systems to balance the
needs of all stakeholders. In addition, the Company is committed
to communicating the latest development and information of the
Company to investors in a timely manner by different means such
as the Company’s website, allowing investors for an in-depth and
extensive understanding on the information, and also, we have
disclosed relevant information to the media designated by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission in a timely manner.

2.1 Board Statement
We have established an ESG management system to
achieve effective sustainability governance. The Board
takes full responsibility for ESG governance and sustainable
development of the Company, and is in charge of oversight
materiality issues and performance of the Company and
regular assessment on ESG-related risks and opportunities.
Under authorization of the Board, the ESG Working
Group evaluates concerns of all stakeholders through
materiality assessments in determining the Company’s
ESG management approaches, strategies, priorities and
objectives. The Company has already set relevant ESG
objectives, and we will review the progress against relevant
objectives to improve our work on sustainability in the future.
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2.2 ESG Management 2.2 ESGEHE
For the purpose of strict compliance with relevant listing BT EBETHRAAMETAEBRE - A7
provisions of the Stock Exchange, the Company has BREY —ETEMNESGEEE X - FESG
established a complete ESG management system, facilitating EEMAQRRRERMSEAILMHNAET
the integration of ESG management into decision-making fEFR - RIMWESGEEE R = 2pH#EM -
process of the Company and daily work of each department. NAREEE  ESGILE/NAERZ R
Our ESG management system consists of three components, P WEBETRMNBEWT
namely the board of directors, the ESG Working Group and
each functional department, and each of them is responsible
for different responsibilities as follows:

. Supervise

EE

ESG Working Group
ESGI{E/ME

Each Department

& 8389

e The Board is the highest | ¢ Subject to the overall policy | ® Subject to the Company’s ESG

decision-making body for the
Company’s ESG work. It is
responsible for determining ESG

formulated by the Board, the ESG
Working Group organizes the
Company’s ESG management work,

management policy, strategy,
planning, annual work and target
deployment, requirements and

management objectives and overall
strategy, assessing ESG-related risks,
setting up an effective internal control
system, and performing reviews and
evaluations against the Company’
ESG strategies and reporting.

EXERARAESCIIENREARE
HiE - BEWEARFESGERER
MABRESERE - FHAESGAERA R - &R
SEMHNEEERL - WHARF
HIESGH RS M FE R TTRA MG ©

and is responsible for formulating
relevant systems and procedures,
maintaining and updating ESG
indicators system, and carrying out
related consulting work. It also guides,
facilitates, coordinates and supervises
ESG management work of all
departments, and performs
assessment on implementation
results.

HEEESHEMEITHT  ESGT
1/ B AR RA R FMESGE
BT BIRTHERESIE  RIE - &
TIEHMESGHRER  MRAEMBX
o FEIRTE - IRE - HEE - 153
EEREMIESGER T - WHHIT
EREITERE -

division of labor, each department is
responsible for organizing, promoting
and executing all ESG tasks assigned
by the ESG Working Group and
regularly reports the status and
progress to the ESG Working Group.
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2.3

Compliance Operations

The Company is committed to operating in line with business
ethics and attaching great importance to corporate integrity.
We do not tolerate any form of irregular behaviours including
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering. The Company
has strictly complied with the Company Law of the People’s
Republic of China({/#E AR LTI QA %)), Provisions of
Anti-money-laundering through Financial Institutions (& &%
HRERREEFEED), the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the
People’s Republic of China ({1 & A R AT & EEE)),
Measures for the Administration of Financial Institutions'
Reporting of High-Value Transactions and Suspicious
Transactions ((& BB RER ST A R 5 W& B R
7£))and Interim Provisions on Prohibition of Commercial
Bribery (KBAR IR IE PRI BEERIT RV E1THRED) . In order
to regulate any form of corrupt and fraudulent behaviour
of employees, the Company has formulated the Corporate
Ethics Conduct and Ethics Handbook and Code of Conduct
((RaEERTMEEFMEITASTE])), the Anti-Money
Laundering Management System ({%EHEEEHIE)) and
the Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery Management System
((=BEM - RBHEEEFIE)), clearly specifying relevant
rewards and penalties pursuant to integrity standard, and
the administration department was assigned to examine the
progress of anti-corruption work in each department. In the
event that employees observe or are being informed of any
corruptions or irregularities, we encourage employees to
make report and complaint via e-mail. Protecting the rights
and interests of whistleblowers, we guarantee that the entire
reporting process, the information of whistleblowers and the
content of reports will be kept in strict confidence. During
the Year, contracts containing anti-corruption provisions
were signed by employees at the time of their admissions to
the Company, and we had conducted regular internal anti-
corruption trainings such as an one-hour training on “Anti-
Corruption and Anti-Bribery Management System” was
held in October with an attendance of approximately 20
employees. It is our expectations that in trainings, integrity
education and awareness of employees and directors can
be enhanced, positively creating an internal business culture
of integrity. During the Year, the Company was not aware of
any litigations arising from the violations of anti-corruption,
anti-bribery, anti-fraud and anti-money laundering and other
related laws and regulations.
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2.4

HERE

/l:l#&l:

Communication with Stakeholders

The Company seriously concerns the opinions and
suggestions of stakeholders and has established and
maintained communication with stakeholders through
multiple channels in order to better understand expectations
and demands of stakeholders, enhance transparency of
information disclosure, improve corporate governance,
establish a good corporate image and achieve a win-
win situation for both the Company and investors. Major
stakeholders and communication measures of the Company

include the following:

Stakeholder(s)
FzEEA A

Government and
regulatory institutions

BUR I B2 E et

Shareholders/investors

WERREE

Customers

P

Employees
BT

Business Partners

BIERH

Communication Channel(s)

BERE

Study on policy issues and guidance
documents

B BUR B R ig g Mt
Participation in trainings organised by
relevant authorities and associations
SEGHEM - HEABNE
Seminars and symposiums
EEREHE

Compliance management

BRER

Annual general meeting and other general

meetings

PES N &N

Interim report and annual report

R ERER & B

Results announcements

%zazx\d:

Announcements and Circulars

DERBE

Senior management meetings
SREEABEE

Market research

T35 34

Demand Analysis

TR

Point-to-point communication services

BEHERBIRTS

Staff Trainings

8T
Performance Appraisals
BUEZ

Internal meetings
W‘LE = uﬁz

Business Briefings

E S iiEe

Publications (e.g., employee newsletters)
F# (a8 i)
Staff Intranet

8 T N4

Centralised meetings
EhaE
Daily communication

REER

2.4

MEEELER
KATmVﬁﬁﬂ ST HER MR
WiRAE ZRREENHAARE T BT RREFE

B AEBRBMAHEMEFR - HRAE

REFRAE  WELFDAER - B RFNE

%% CERBMEREEERNRE - KX
RAEERNN AR EBERERE

Expectation(s)

e

Compliance with laws and regulations
BFEBEMR

Integrity in business operations

BRRNE %

Timely and complete information disclosure
R TENESRE

Continuous improvement on operations
performance

FHEM G S X ERT

Compliance operations management
AREEEIR

Timely and complete information disclosure

KBS TEERE B

Quiality improvement on services and products
RaREhkEMEE
Satisfaction of diversified needs of customers

mERFPZITLHEL

Protection on employees’ rights and interests
Enx/\l*u/\

Caring for employees’ health

AE B TR

Provision of training and learning opportunities
REUEFIILE2EHKE

Reasonable promotion channels and effective
performance incentives

SREOETHEENAREERSED

Open, fair and just procurement
NGNS N 3

Commitment to contracts; mutual benefits and
win- win achievements

764 BEFfER
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2.5 Identification of Important Issues 25 EEZHER7

In accordance with the requirements of the Guide of the RIBE R FT BB M E K + KA RIFBIBESG
Stock Exchange, the Company identifies and assesses TR/ NER R RFHEERESGEE @ WS
significant ESG issues through the ESG Working Group, MeBET BTN EE  ETEENT
and conducts materiality assessment in conjunction with o EHMEEME LR  2EHMKREEE
concerned issues of stakeholders, allowing the Company BIEAAE  EHRERCEESGERME
to provide related information disclosure of operations BERENEHET BMERLFRETE
management in a more accurate and comprehensive LML o ESGIE/NMARE IR EMER2020
manner as well as to demonstrate key areas of corporate FENERNDABRARAFENER - Bl)A
ESG practice and information disclosure in a more specific FEMNEFNCERBIEEELAENEL -

manner. We had performed materiality assessment in the
previous year. It is confirmed by the ESG Working Group and
management that the results of 2020 assessment were still
applicable to the Year as (i) there were no significant changes
in the business and operating environment during the Year.

Scope of issues under the Guide ESG issues of the Company

(¥E5|) RREERE RATMNESGEE

A. Environment

A RiE

A1 Emissions Carbon emissions management

ATEER) TREERE I

A2 Use of resources Green operations, lower energy consumption
A2E R HEEY  RIKERIER

A3 The environment and natural resources Compliance with laws and regulations of China
ABIRIE R RAE R BTRZOAERER

A4 Climate change Green operations

AARIRE L HEEY

B. Society

B. #4&

B1 Employment Equal and diverse employment, and employees’ care
B1{E{E FERZTLER ETEE

B2 Health and safety Occupational health and employees’ safety
Bof R L & BEREIETIRE

B3 Development and training Employees’ development and training

B3# & HiiE BITiEFIRERE

B4 Labour standards Prohibition of child labour and forced labour
B4& THER| BT RIS T

B5 Supply chain management Open and fair procurement

B5fit fE# E I RNERTERE

B6 Product responsibility Customer services and boycott false advertisements
BeEmE £ BRI RERIERES

B7 Anti-corruption Anti-Corruption and integrity promotion
BTR&ES RIB1ERR

B8 Community investment Community welfare

B8t @& & HEAR

62 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HEREBRRS

3.

PROMOTION ON SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT OF
INDUSTRIAL CHAIN

3.1

High-Quality Service

The Company strives to provide multilevel and topmost
marketing and communication services to customers through
a professional and fully fledged service system, continuously
taking our lead in the industry of integrated advertising and
communication services platform nationwide. The Company
has in place four categories of advertising and marketing:
content marketing, vertical marketing, digital marketing and
scenario marketing, details of which can be found in the

3.

REERETFRERE

3.1

B E B IR

EREXRANRBER  ARFBRNBE
FPREZER BRI EHERERS - &%
ErBEGARESERERBTFRTEDE
o ARAREMNBESEH  DHRAR
B EEZH  HFEHEUREREN -
FIEA2ETE

table below:

Content marketing

Vertical marketing

Digital marketing

Scenario marketing

Leveraging on excellent resource integration capability, the Company provides customers
with integrated marketing services of content implantation in TV variety shows, intemet
variety shows, TV dramas, web dramas, movies and large-scale network movies.
KELENEREAEN  REFPRESHREE  BEFE  ERE - #5882 @
BAREZENDEAES EHRE -

Conducting precise marketing targeting on specific groups, the Company creates a
precise industrial chain vertical marketing model with unique operations’ methods and
capabilities to provide customers with vertical marketing services on programmes such as
parent-child and fashion style.

T ARRRBESH - WERNRIEF AN NITESEEX B EAEESER -
REFPRHZB TR WREVASHENEREHRS

Based on big data analysis and comprehension on targeted groups, the Company
provides customers with professional searching engine marketing, mobile effect
marketing, programmatic purchase, socialisation marketing and precise integration of
brand placement services

ERRBIBEST REBEARFNEE  REFPRHEXERSIELH BIURLH
BFEEE et gk R EEEBRSRMRT -

Conducting communication advertising in real-life scenes in where the audiences are
located, the Company provides customers with marketing communication services
including outdoor advertisements (such as mobile TV advertisement in subways and
airports), radio advertisement in private cars and outdoor advertisement integration

In order to provide quality advertising communication
services to our customers, the Company will arrange for
third party teams and organise professionals to monitor
the entire advertising process, to archive and file samples
and monitoring records, and to evaluate and analyse the
effectiveness of advertising placements on a monthly basis.
Subsequent to the completion of each key project, evaluation
and review will be performed for rooms of improvement. In
the event that a miscast or missed broadcast is found, our
business team and broadcast monitoring team will report it
to the Company in the first place, and afterwards they will
negotiate with the media and customer for joint solutions to
maximize the protection of customers’ rights and interests.

ENRTMENREDRSRETERZE REPRAMIABHERES #I5F

SMES - RREEBES - PINESERSEHEERY -

RTREPRHEEERESERERY - ARF
GRHF=TERMABEEABREEER
EEIEMIBIZ - MUF IR EME TN
FRENBRIE SAEREFESNES
BHAR - £BEEHAB THERDEE IR
BB RETRHEMBE LS K ENZER -
BRREE  ORESHAER  RANEBKE
BEERERELEBARAE - REFHEE
BMEPARBAMNE  EFFPERZARR
E A3 LAMRPE ©
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3.2

3.3

3.4

Customer Complaint Handling

The Company regards customer as an important stakeholder
in the sustainable development of the Company. We strictly
abides by the laws and regulations such as the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Protection of Consumer
Rights and Interests ({fPZE AR KL MEEE & (R
75)), and provides channels including emails, complaint
telephone lines and online complaints to receive opinions and
suggestions from the media and customers. Upon receipt
of a complaint, we will record complaint content, specify
handling responsibility, analyze causes of the complaint,
formulate a complaint handling plan and promptly negotiate
and communicate with the complainant, and subsequently,
a complaint handling plan will be implemented to address
customer’s doubts, favouring a good relationship with
customers and achieving customer satisfaction. During the
Year, positive review on customer service of the Company
was 100%, the total number of complaint cases was O
cases.

Customer Privacy and Information Security

The Company highly values the protection of customer
privacy and information security and has strictly complied
with relevant laws and regulations including the Cybersecurity
Law of the People’s Republic of China({f# A R H
KL 27%)), Provisions on Protecting the Personal
Information of Telecommunications and Internet Users ((E &1l
MERA AP EAEBRERE))and the Personal Privacy
Policy on Mobile Internet ({2 8) B B A8 1A A BBRFLEER)) . The
Company has formulated and implemented internal systems
such as Confidentiality Management System ({{R % & 3%
#HIfZ))and Information System Management System ({{&
BEHEEHIE)). Al customer information is encrypted
by the Company, and the datatbase is managed by a
designated personnel that any other person is not entitled
to access such information without management approval.
Meanwhile, to strengthen network security, we have used
related applications such as firewalls, routers, etc., to prevent
attack and illegal access from the Internet. In addition, we
have installed system log management for tracking and
handling suspicious transactions and operations in a timely
manner, performing regular backup and audit on system
logs. Besides, when the Company signs contracts with third
parties, such as customers and partners, we will impose
restrictions on protecting privacy in avoidance of leakage of
technical secrets, trade secrets and business management
information. During the Year, there were no complaints on
leakage of customer information or violation of customer
privacy received by the Company.

Advertising and Intellectual Property

The Company ensures that all advertising and promotional
information is legitimate, compliant, truthful and reliable,
and strictly abides by laws and regulations such as the
“Advertising Law of the PRC” ({h#E AR EMBEEEX))
and the “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the PRC” ({#p %
AREMBERTIEE#HFA)). We have formulated the
Brand Management System ({2 &2 $IE))in avoidance
of misrepresentation of promotional content and misleading
customers to protect customers’ rights and interests.
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3.5

In this regard, prior to any advertising placement, we have
put in place a number of sessions on legal and compliance
inspections such as the development stages of data analysis,
marketing strategic planning and solutions, as well as content
creation, placement and advertising effectiveness evaluation.
Subsequent to these sessions’ processes, we have carried
out promotion on the requirements of advertising law for
placement plans and reminded our staff on prevention of
compliance risks. In addition, we strictly censor the content
of advertisements, eradicating promotional content such as
all unreasonable wordings, false statements, exaggerated
facts and infringements.

We place great importance on communication with
customers and the media, should the aforesaid problems
observe in the advertising placement process, the Company
will validate and revise advertising content in a timely manner
to comply with the requirements of laws and regulations.

In the meantime, the Company respects and emphasises
on intellectual property rights, strictly complying with laws
and regulations including the Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China({F#E AREXMEZE#E)), the
Trademark Law of the People's Republic of China ({FF#E A
REMBREIZIE)), the Patent Law of the People’s Republic
of China({fPE ARKMBEIFEF]E)), and the Tort Law of
the People’s Republic of China ((FF#E AR EMERES T
%)) Attention is paid towards safeguarding the legitimate
rights and interests of stakeholders such as portrait rights,
copyrights, trademark rights and restrictions on use of
advertisements during the processes of production and
placement of advertisements, and employees are advocated
on protection of intellectual property rights of other persons,
minimizing the related risks on intellectual property issues.

Complete Supply Chain Management

Based on internal rules and regulations such as Procurement
Management System ((EHEEEH/E))and the
Procurement Supplier Management System ((ERRE{ fE 7S
EIH|E)), the Company has formulated a strict budget,
procurement and settlement plan to rigorously supervise the
entire procurement process. For major procurement projects,
the Company will engage professional accounting firms
and consulting companies to conduct special audits and
report audit results to the management of the Company. We
undertake critical examination on sources and backgrounds
of suppliers, and categorize and audit suppliers based on
factors such as credit level and supply quality, thereby
determining procurement approaches and formulating
systematic entry, classification and exit mechanisms. The
Company strictly regulates tender and procurement process
and stringently prohibits undercover operations to ensure
that the entire process is open, fair and just having collective
decision-making and effective supervision.

Apart from services and products-related factors such as
price, quality and attitude, the environmental and social
impact of suppliers is also taking into our consideration in
supplier selection and evaluation process including aspects
on supplier compliance in employment, employee benefits,
employee safety, and ethical business standards, etc. In
addition, our cooperation priority will be given to suppliers
offering environmentally friendly products and services.
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During the Year, the total number of suppliers with whom the
Company had supply and sales relationships was 42. The
Company was not aware of any significant actual or negative
impacts on business ethics, environmental protection,
human rights and labour practices which was casted by any
major suppliers.

PRACTICE OF GREEN DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

In order to conscientiously implement the national development
strategy of energy conservation and emissions reduction, the
Company places importance to environmental protection, energy
conservation and emissions reduction, and in our daily operations,
we have strictly complied with all provisions stipulated in laws and
regulations such as the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC
((hEZEARKEMBIIRIFIREL)), the Energy Conservation Law
of the PRC({FZE AR EFMEE LR E) ), endeavouring to
minimize impacts on the environment through conservations of
energy, water and materials,

The Company has set up internal systems such as employee
handbook and public resource management system which regulate
the requirements for the use of paper, electricity, water resources,
etc., to improve efficiency on energy use and to urge employees
on energy-saving and reduce emissions at work, allowing constant
promotion of sustainable business development of the Company.
During the Year, there were no material non-compliance incidents
related to the environmental laws and regulations happened in the
Company.

4.1  Emissions reduction

Emissions involved in the operations of advertising and
communication services of the Company are mainly direct
greenhouse gas emissions generated from the use of
business vehicles and indirect greenhouse gas emissions
generated from the use of electricity in office. The Company
applies different treatments for handling each type of
emissions.

As to greenhouse gas, the Company encourages employees
on energy-saving in office, and has strictly established
and implemented a system of use of company vehicles for
green travel. As to hazardous waste, due to the business
nature of the Company, we do not involve any discharges
of industrial hazardous waste. In addition, the Company
did not scrap or discard any electronic products during the
Year, and no significant hazardous waste was generated,
hence, disclosure would not be made. As to domestic
sewage and office wastes, the Company will work on sorting
as per requirement in compliance with relevant laws and
regulations and transfer wastes to municipal office for unified
treatment. In order to reduce the discharges of sewage and
office wastes, employees of the Company are encouraged
on water conservation and more frequent applications of
electronic means for office contact and reusable office
supplies.
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4.2

In addition, based on the measures on energy conservation
and greenhouse gas emissions reduction, the Company has
been actively performed on its execution, setting a goal of
maintaining basic level or gradual reduction of greenhouse
gas (Scope 1 and Scope 2) emissions intensity by 2021.
Also, the Company has been actively carried out measures
on materials conservation and waste segregation, setting a
goal of maintaining basic level or gradual reduction of wastes
generation intensity by 2021.

Emissions Information Disclosure

Indicators b=t
Greenhouse gas emissions from direct sources

Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect sources

=

Total greenhouse gas emissions BEREEHNE

Greenhouse gas emissions per $million operating
income
Total non-hazardous waste generation BEEENELLE

Non-hazardous waste generation per $million
operating income

Notes: The scope of emissions data covers the Company and all its
controlling companies;

greenhouse gas emissions Is calculated with reference to “How
to prepare an ESG Report Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” of the Stock Exchange; and

the total office domestic waste generation is calculated based on
estimates on per capita emissions.

Resources Consumption Reduction

The Company is committed to reducing resources
consumption in the course of office operations by means
of simplifying office processes, enabling the effective use
of resources of employees. The primary source of our daily
resources consumption mainly includes gasoline generated
from the use of vehicles and water, electricity and paper
generated from office operations. Our operations do not
involve any use of packaging materials.
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2021 Data
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As to energy consumption, we encourage employees to turn
off all lights and computers before leaving office to reduce
electricity consumption by electricity-saving reminders in
the office; while purchasing, energy efficiency and energy
labels of electrical products will be taken into consideration;
employees are encouraged to take the stairs rather than using
elevators; and employees are encouraged to frequent use
of public transportation for travel. As to water consumption,
we do not extract water from water-stressed areas, and
sufficient high-quality fresh water is available for use in all our
operating office locations, therefore, the issue of taking water
does not exist. We have promoted employees’ advocacy
on treasuring water and reducing waste on water including
consuming appropriate amount of drinking water, turning
off faucets in bathrooms after use and following all property
arrangements. As to paper usage, we have set up an office
automation system (OA system) for online work to reduce the
use of paper; employees are advised using e-mail whenever
possible to reduce the needs of printing, photocopying and
faxing while sending messages; while printing, attempts
are made on using printing in double-sided mode and tight
typeset whenever possible.

In addition, based on the measures on electricity and water
conservation, the Company has actively performed its
execution, setting a goal of maintaining basic level or gradual
reduction of electricity and waste consumption intensity by
2021.

Resources Consumption Information Disclosure

Indicators b=t

Gasoline consumption FUBREREE

Total electricity consumption BEEE

Electricity consumption per $million operating BETEENAEER
income

Total water consumption BiKE

=y

Water consumption per $milion operating income B &2 ERAGAFKE

Total paper consumption BERAE

Note: The scope of resources consumption data covers the Company
and all controlling companies, and water consumption of all office
locations were centrally managed by the Company in 2020 and
2021.
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4.4

q‘j:%&k BE/A -’F& =

The Environment and Natural Resources

Given that the Company is an advertising and communication
service provider, our daily office operations do not involve any
production processes and the impact on the environment
and natural resources is minimal. Nonetheless, the Company
has complied with various laws and regulations such as the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Environmental
Impact Assessment ({2 A R AFBEIRFEZETEL)),

the Land Administration Law of the People’s Republic of
China (¢f#E A RFIE + 10 & 18 5%) ) and the Water and
Soil Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China
((PEARLMEDKLRIFE)). We actively fulfill our
responsibility of environmental protection in order to minimize
negative impacts on the environment and natural resources
during our operations and protect the natural ecological
environment.

Climate Change

The Company closely monitors the climate change impacts
on the Company’s business and operations. During the Year,
the Company had identified and assessed the risks of climate
change. The increased frequency and magnitude of extreme
weather conditions have posed an acute physical risk to the
Company’s business. Under extreme weather conditions,
safety of employees is at risk and productivity will be lowered
resulting in a direct negative impact on business and revenue
of the Company. To minimize the potential risk, the Company
has developed mitigation plans including flexible working
arrangements, and precautionary measures are adopted
under severe or extreme weather conditions. Besides, the
increasing sustainability concerns of stakeholders have
posed a market risk to the Company. In the event of failure
on satisfaction of sustainability requirements of stakeholders,
it may result in the Company’s reputation damage as well as
losing competitive edge. Hence, the Company has planned
to use energy-efficient equipment and will perform periodical
review on our internal environmental practices.

4.3

4.4
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WORKING WITH THE EMPLOYEES FOR PROGRESS

Endeavouring to create a comfortable, harmonious and efficient
working atmosphere for employees, the Company earnestly fulfills
its social responsibilities and is committed to building a corporate
culture and protecting the rights and interests of employees, caring
for the growth and development of employees, placing a strong
emphasis on the rights and interests of employees and introducing
a united and progressive corporate culture to employees.
Recognized by the employees and the society, the Company has
exercised care on the employees’ health and safety, listened to
employees’ individual demands and established a comprehensive
staff training, incentive and promotion reward mechanism, striving
for maximizing benefits. During the Year, there was one case of
litigation arising from employment issues in the Company.

5.1

Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

Employees are important assets of the Company, and
we strive to protect the rights and interests of employees.
Therefore, the Company strictly abides by laws and
regulations such as the Labor Law of the PRC({F#EAR
HAMBILEHE)), the Labor Rights Protection Law ({4 &)
EHEZXIRFEE)) and the Labor Contract Law of the PRC
(PEARELMELEERIE)), and has formulated
internal policies such as Employee Handbook ({8 ITF
fit)), Company Recruitment System ({2 FIHREEHIE) ) and
Ruicheng Resignation Management System ((GmalBrELE
HIE)), regulating aspects on employees’ admission and
resignation, daily work, study and promotion and employee
benefits for the purposes of protecting employees’ rights
and interests, equal opportunities and anti-discrimination.
At the same time, we provide a variety of training and
communication opportunities to employees, encourage
employees to reorientation, promoting multi-faceted
development.

The Company is committed to creating a diverse and
inclusive work environment. In the processes of recruitment,
appraisal and salary system and assessment and evaluation,
we prohibit differential treatment of employees owing to
gender, ethnicity, age, religion, marital status and cultural
background to ensure equal opportunities of all employees
and prevention of discrimination and sexual harassment in
workplace.

The Company strictly abides by related laws and regulations
on protection of labour rights and interests. Firmly following
the laws and regulations, we conduct our recruitment
activities by the human resources department, and carefully
verify employee information such as ID cards, education
certificates, and proof of employment of previous companies
to ensure the identity of employees is true and valid, and to
eradicate employment irregularities such as employment of
child labour and forced labour. In addition, in the event of
revelation of labour violation, we will immediately report it to
relevant administrative department and register it for internal
records. During the Year, there were no child labor or forced
labor cases happening in the Company.

As of 31 December 2021, the total number of employees
of the Company was approximately 36 employees, and the
numbers of female and male were 23 employees and 13
employees, respectively.
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5.3

! Employee turnover rate= number of employees lost ~

q‘j:%&k BE/A -’F& =

Adhering strictly to the Company Recruitment System and
Ruicheng Resignation Management System, the Company
performs employees’ employment and dismissal in
accordance with the stipulated processes, and follows strict
approval to safeguard the rights and interests of employees.
As of 31 December 2021, employee turnover rate' of the
Company was 33.33%, of which the annual turnover rate
of male and female employees was 31.58% and 34.29%,
respectively.

Safeguarding Employees’ Safety And Health

Protection of employees’ safety and health is an integral part
of the Company. We have installed relevant safety system in
compliance with relevant laws and regulations such as the
Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances ({ T 5%
&) ) and the Prevention and the Control of Occupational
Diseases Law of the People’s Republic of China({FhZE AR
HMBBEEE T A7%)), providing employees with five social
insurance and one housing fund and regular medical check-
ups. The Company has in place necessary fire and medical
facilities in office area, conducting regular safety hazard
checks. In response to emergencies such as fire, electric
shock and earthquake, we have set up relevant safety
codes, guidelines and procedures for employees’ perusal. It
is our expectation that employees are able to work in a safe
environment under the safety policies.

In the past three years (including the Year), there was none
potential risks of occupational diseases as mentioned, major
health and safety accidents, and work-related fatalities
happening in the Company. During the Year, there was
none working days lost due to work-related injuries in the
Company.

Caring for Employees’ Development

The Company fully cares about training and development
of employees and has developed a comprehensive training
and promotion system as well as fair and just performance
management methods, striving for exploring work potential
of employees and assisting employees in skills and qualities
enhancement in order to satisfy the requirements of talent
development in the society.

~ (number of employees lost +

number of employees at the end of the year) X 100%

5.2

5.3
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Employees’ training of the Company is categorized into
three types: induction training, pre-job training and on-the-
job training. Employees will receive trainings corresponding
to different stages of jobs and needs. It is the expectation
of the Company that with trainings, new employees will
be able to quickly understand situation of the Company,
familiarize themselves with the working environment and their
responsibilities upon joining the Company; and in the course
of work, employees will also be acquainted with aspects on
broadening their horizons and exposures to more advanced
management elements, operational models, advanced
ideas and industry knowledge. The Company also conducts
team building training regularly to strengthen team spirit and
quality of individual decisiveness of staff through wilderness
survival and special training camp activities. In order to assist
employees in keeping abreast of the latest information in
the industry and understanding on the latest policy status,
we regularly hold media promotion meetings, online media
trainings, departmental training meetings and new product
presentations, new policy interpretation meetings, etc.,
facilitating career development of employees.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY

During the Year, the Company had made adjustments to its
business and structure in a timely and appropriate manner
in proactive response to the impact of COVID-19 pandemic.
In addition, we have adhered to the concept of sustainable
development, actively undertaking various social responsibilities and
complying with various ESG requirements of the Stock Exchange. It
is the expectation of the Company that in the future, the Company
will not only stand on continuous recovery and expansion of its
various businesses, but also fulfills of its commitment to sustainable
development and social responsibility, focusing on the rights and
interests of stakeholders.

In order to continuously materalising the concept of sustainable
development, the Company has taken three major directions:
strengthening on ESG efforts, enhancing communication with
various stakeholders and shouldering continuous responsibility
on environmental and social levels, respectively. We aim at
establishing a more efficient operational system and mechanism
to safeguard legal and compliance operations of the Company,
and making greater contributions to social welfare in promotion of
common development and benefits sharing by means of exploring
effective use of resources, enhancing participation of the Board in
decision-making on sustainable development matters, continuously
optimizing employees’ welfare, trainings and diversity, improving
communication mechanisms with stakeholders, and subdividing
and improving the work and allocation of authority and responsibility
of ESG management.
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APPENDIX I: SUSTAINABILITY DATA SUMMARY

The following is a data summary of the Year on sustainable development

in the environmental scope:

The Environmental Scope

Air Emissions

NO,

SO,

PM

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Greenhouse gas emissions from direct sources
(Scope 1)

Greenhouse gas emissions from indirect sources
(Scope 2)

Total greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1 & 2)

Greenhouse gas emission per $million operating
income (Scope 182)

Waste Generation

Total non-hazardous waste generation

Total non-hazardous waste generation
per $million operating income

Paper Consumption

Paper consumption

Paper consumption per $million operating income

Energy Consumption

Total electricity consumption

REER

ERERY
[E(MNO,)
FE((so,)
BR(PM)
BERBHNE
ERRERE N (HE)

MR EREBHR(BE)

REREHNEE (BE1R)

BETERRARERENNE
(BE1R2)

BRNELE

BERRNELRE

BETEERAEZEEELE

HRAE
HRmE
BETEERALRAE
BERHRE

BREER

Electricity consumption per $million operating income A& L2 £ WAFEE

Gasoline consumption

Total energy consumption

Total energy consumption per capita

Water Consumption

Total water consumption

Water consumption per $milion operating income

pab:

BEERERS
ANSBEERRERS
KEREE

BFkE
BELEENARKE

Migx—  TIFERRBIERE

Unit By
Kg T
Kg T
Kg T

Tonnes CO, equivalent AHE— &t &
Tonnes CO, equivalent A~ &/ ixEE

Tonnes CO, equivalent AHE— & &
Tonnes CO, equivalent/ A —E /(L HEE

$million BETL

Tonnes NI

Kg/$million TR/EEL
Kg TR

Kg/$million TR/EEL
KWH ThE
KWH/$million ThE/BET
Litres NS

KWH TRE
KWH/$million ThE/BET
m? UK
m?/Smillion VEkK/ BB

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK

UTRAFENREDBBAISEZREMEZ

2021
quantitative
values

2021 FEEILE

138.52
0.08
12.89

14.12

38.15

52.27
0.10

7.92
14.54

48.13
0.09

62,538.19
114.84
5,217.66
110,681.43
203.07

90.00
017
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The following is a data summary of the Year on sustainable development

in social scope:

Social Scope

Total employees?

Total employees

Number of employees by gender

Female

Male

Number of employees by category

Junior staff

Middle management

Senior management

Number of employees by age

Below 31

31-40

Above 40

Number of employees by geographical region

Beijing

Shanghai

Xizang

Employee Turnover Rate?

Total employee turnover Rate

Employee turnover rate by gender

Female

Male

Employee turnover rate by age

Below 31

31-40

Above 40

Employee turnover rate by geographical region

Beijing

Shanghai

Xizang

Occupational Health and Safety

Number of work-related fatalities
(Year 2019, 2020 and 2021)

Rate of work-related fatalities
(Year 2019, 2020 and 2021)

Lost days due to work injury

Development and Training

Percentage of employees trained by gender

Female

Male

Percentage of employees trained by category

Junior Staff

Middle management

Senior management

Training hours of employee by age

Male

Female

Training hours of employee by category

Average number of training hours per junior staff

Average number of training hours per middle
management

Average number of training hours per senior
management

HEHE

BT AR

ETAag
BERBANET AR
Zit

2
BESEHAINEIAR
MHRET

hREER

BREERE
BRERERIBIANET AL

31U T

31-40%%

4050 L
BBESINEIAY

bl

&

i1

BIfikit e
BI@RAR
BUREINETRALR
it

2t
RERBRIBIANETRKkLE

31EUT

31-408%

M E
BHEEINEIRALER
Sl

ia:}

i

BEREHEZ2
EIRTAZ(019F%
2020F £ R20215F )
ETILTH R (20195 -
20205 £ k20215 £)
RAIGERTERE
BRI
BUREINZIEEE AL
it

2t
BREEEHEAINZIIEEE AL
MHET

FREEE

BREERE
BHRBANZIEE TS
Bt

zik
REREREANZIEE TR
SENHRE T FH5EESR
SEDHRE TS

FESRE T TIREIFEE

2 It is referring to the number of employees for the Year ended December 31.
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Unit

Number of employee

Number of employee
Number of employee

Number of employee
Number of employee
Number of employee
Number of employee
Number of employee
Number of employee
Number of employee

Number of employee
Number of employee

%
%
%
Number of employee

%

Number of day(s)

Hour
Hour

Hour
Hour

Hour

AR EEE L1231 A)E TAE -

%

%
%

%
%
%

%
%
%

N
N

/J \EQ:I
N

N

2021
quantitative
values

2021FEE1LE

36

23
13

20
11

19
14

31

33.33

34.29
31.58

50.00
32.14
30.00

29.54
56.56

73.24
26.76

47.89

52.11

0.31

0.64

0.36
0.33
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APPENDIX lI: THE STOCK EXCHANGE ESG REPORTING

W

GUIDE INDEX

Environmental Scope
REER

Atl: General

Emissions Disclosure

A1A
Al.2

A13

Al4

A15
A1.6

A1
235

A1.1

A1.2

A1.3

Al4
A1.5

A16

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity
(e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target( s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
ERBRRREREHEN  MARTHNGES  BERBERENNEES
#): (@B Rl )Lﬂﬁéﬁ/\ﬁ B %3%5’]@%@&@&%% BIEER -
PR SE RABR U -

B (BE1) RetREZ (8E2)

BEREHNE CAEE) L (ER) - 28
(A BESEN - BHER am g -

FELEEEENAE VEHE) R (INER) ZE (WU SEEEN - 88X
HEatE) o

FELEZEENAE CIEHE) R (INER) ZE WU SEEEN - 88X
M) °

LT EER ERAERIEL BIZHRIRN S -

WARBEERESHEENNTE - RERATINRER R RAREELR
SATRERE R ©

Mgk = BERPTCRIR - HEREARMEES) Rl

Relevant Section
ERES

4., Practice of Green Development Concept

Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
4.1 Emissions Reduction
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

The Company is a non-manufacturing enterprise and
does not involve any discharges of industrial hazardous
waste, and there were no scraps or discards of
electronic equipment of the Company during the Year,
and no substantial hazardous waste was generated,
hence, no disclosure would be made to this provisions.
4.1 Emissions Reduction

Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

4.1 Emissions Reduction

4.1 Emissions Reduction

4 BITRERRES

Pitsk— —H%" EURENAE

415

Pirgg— - Eﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁg

AR AFHERLE  THRIZEERENHR
BERRAISFREEAFENERE  ZEBR - TE
HEERBEREY  WIRE -

41 R

fiigg— - AIEERENEBE

41 RO

41 BDHR
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B -

HERE

Environmental Scope

RGER

A2 :
Use of
Resources

A2:
BRER

A3:

The Environment
and Natural
Resources

A3:
RERRAER
Ad:

Climate Change

Ad:
[lEEY
B. Social
B.#HE
B1:
Employment

B1:

General
Disclosure
A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

R
A2.1

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5
General
Disclosure
A3.1
—RBE
A3.1
General
Disclosure
Ad A
—RRE
Ad A

General
Disclosure
B1.1

B1.2
—MREE
Bi1.1

B1.2

/l:l#&l:

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw
materials.

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil
in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume,
per facility).

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if
applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

BRERER(DEER K REMBRR) SHE -
REREISMEER/ REEER(INE - fooh) 22 UL TETREHE)
&frmutéamf  BEREAE) -

BRKERZE (WMASESEM - §ERETE) o
R AR RFE AN E R AEREL B ZHRESE o

HCKEVERKR R A EMRERE - U RO RKEE B ERAETEL
BIRFTIRIE 8K -

Sk mAT A AR RN EE (AR E) R (ER) BEEBES -

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the environment and
natural resources.

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and
natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
HEBETAHRERRRERENEXTZENUE -
HIEBRYHRERARERNEAYERERMEREATENTE -
Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BRIREHE LKA S HEITAEEFENEARKIERFENIE -
BB ERAEEHBTAEERENEARFEREE - RIELHTH

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to compensation
and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or parttime),
age group and geographical region.

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
BREMRRE BBRET  TIERH  RE - TSHe Zul - kR
A REAM B RARNE « () BOR  R(b) BTFHETABEAYENARER

RARPIEER -
RIEH - ERER - FRERI 0 REID MRS RS -
RIER - FRANRESNEERALE -
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Relevant Section

HEEES
4.2 Resources Consumption Reduction

4.2 Resources Consumption Reduction
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

4.2 Resources Consumption Reduction
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

4.2 Resources Consumption Reduction

4.2 Resources Consumption Reduction

Businesses of the Company do not involve packaging

materials

4.2 RIEERERE

4.2 RIEERERE

fisk—: AREERANRE
4.2 REBRER

Bigh— : THERRENRE
42 BIEBRER

4.2 BRIKERERE

ARREB SRR

4. Practice of Green Development Concept
4., Practice of Green Development Concept

4 BITHEERES
4 BITREERES
4.4 Climate Change

4.4 Climate Change

44 RRE(
44 RBEE(

5. Working with Employees for Progress
5.1 Protecting Employees'Rights and Interests

5.1 Protecting Employees’Rights and Interests
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary

5. BFETES

51 TEET#a

5.1 FEB THH
Misg—: THERRANRE
Migh—: TRERRANBE
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RiE - HERE

Social Scope
HEHE
B2: General
Health and Disclosure
Safety

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3
B2: —REE
BREZZ

B2.1

B2.2

B2.3
B3: General
Development Disclosure
and Training B3.1

B3.2
B3 : —REE
BRI B3.1

B3.2
B4 : General
Labour Disclosure
Standards

B4.1

B4.2
B4 : —REE
BT 2R

B4.1

B4.2
B5: General

Supply Chain Disclosure
Management B5.1
B5.2
B5.3
B5.4
B5 : —BBE
HERER B5.1
B5.2

B5.3

B5.4

/l:l#&l:

Information on: () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to providing
a safe working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.

Number and rate of work-related fataliies occurred in each of the past three
years including the reporting year.

Lost days due to work injury.

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
BHAREZ2THERELREEEEBEHENEEN (@ BE: RO) EFY
BIIANBEATENEE LR RATINER -

BEZE(ORERER) BERTUTHMAZRLE -

ATEEATIERY
HLFRRNOBERFET 2B - ARBBRTRER N -

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at
work. Description of training activities.

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (€.9.
senior management, middle management).

The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee
category.

BRI EERTILERENMBRBAMIR - HEIED -
RUERIRETHER(NERERE  PRERES ENNXIEIANL -

RURIRETHAES - §RE Tl TRE -

Information on: () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to preventing
child and forced labour.

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered.
BEMEETHRHATH  @FFK  ROETHRTABEATYENRBE
BRIBOINEH -

i REERN RS ETRAHST o

HREEREREARERERBRRRNSH -
Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain.

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers
where the practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented
and monitored.

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along
the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products
and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ&ﬁ@@@ﬁﬁv

BRI HEEHE o

HERERAHERNED - mARITRERENNEERHE - AREBEN
HRTREENE -

BRI EESERGORERL SRRNEN - UREERTRER
e

HEREHERAREESARREMKREOEN  ARBBIITREER
& o

Relevant Section

B

5.2 Safeguarding Employees’ Safety and Health

5.2 Safeguarding Employees’ Safety and Health
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.2 Safeguarding Employees’ Safety and Health
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.2 Safeguarding Employees’ Safety and Health

2 REE T2 HER

52 RIEE T2 MR

Pite— : AIEERARE

52 REETZ2EEE

fiigg— - AIBEERENBERE
52 REEBTZ2EER

5.3 Caring for Employees’ Development

5.3 Caring for Employees’ Development
Appendix I: Sustainability Data Summary
5.3 Caring for Employees’ Development
Appendlx |: Sustainability Data Summary

Wﬁ*:ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
53WEETER

Misk—: AREERENEE

5.1 Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

5.1 Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests

5.1 Protecting Employees’ Rights and Interests
5.1 FEE THEH

3.5 Complete Supply Chain Management
3.5 Complete Supply Chain Management
3.5 Complete Supply Chain Management
3.5 Complete Supply Chain Management
3.5 Complete Supply Chain Management
35 TEMHERER
357TE m fRERER
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35 TEMHEHEER

35 TEMHERER
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W\

h

Social Scope

=l

B6 :
Product
Responsibility

B7:
Anti-corruption

B8 :
Community
Investment

B8 :
HERE

General
Disclosure

B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5
—RBE
B6.1
B6.2
B6.3
B6.4
B6.5
General

Disclosure

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3
—IRBE

B7.1

B7.2

B7.3
General
Disclosure

B8.1
B8.2
—fRE

B8.1
B8.2

Information on: () the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress.

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
BEMRUERNREOREERZS  BS  BRIABEERENAE
0 @BX  ROETHETAGEAYENEBDEERAMIOER -

EEREERAEREHTRLZ 2 BREFIEMMARKNBE AL -
BEERERRRBNRFUA AREBERE «

f B DRSS ERE B MBI -

L ERTBERERDKER o
HLEBEEHBRERLEER - LRABRTRER %

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against
the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff.
BRI 9%  BGFROAREN : (@) B Rb) BFHEITABEX
FENRBERRAGINER -
REGHNHBETAIEEER NV EEENBSHRARMNEE RFALE
2o
TS A i LB REF - URAERTRER R -

HitmESRE TRENRESE -

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities” interests.

Focus areas of contribution.

Resources contributed to the focus area.
BRME2EREREENEHRRENRREEBEHEZRLEFEMN
T o

EIERIEE -

EEIHERMPAER -
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Relevant Section

B

3.1 High-quality Service

3.3 Customer Privacy and Information Security
3.4 Advertising and Intellectual Property

Businesses of the Company do not involve any sales or

delivery of products
3.2 Customer Complaint Handling

3.4 Advertising and Intellectual Property

Businesses of the Company do not involve any sales or

delivery of products

3.3 Customer Privacy and Information Security

31 REENRE
I3EFPRALRGESRR

34 BEEERAHER
ARAEBTSREMHERER
32 BEFRHEE

A BEEERIHER
ARAEB DS REMDERER
I3RFEALGESRS

2.3 Compliance Operations

2.3 Compliance Operations

2.3 Compliance Operations

2.3 Compliance Operations
23 AREE

23 AHER

23 AREE
23 ARES
6. Contributions to the Community

6. Contributions to the Community
6. Contributions to the Community

6. ERiitE

6. ERittE
6. BRI



Directors’ Report
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The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 15 January
2019 as an exempted company with limited liability under the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange on 12 November 2019. Pursuant to the Global
Offering, the Company issued 100,000,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company on 12 November 2019 with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each
at a price of HK$1.25 per ordinary share for a total cash consideration
of HK$125,000,000, before deducting professional fees, underwriting
commissions and other related listing expenses. The IPO Net Proceed per
share is HK$0.788.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group include the provision of the following types of advertising
services to our customers (i) TV advertising services; (i) digital advertising
services; (iii) outdoor advertising services; and (iv) other advertising
services in the PRC.

A review of the business of the Group during the Reporting Period,
including an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators and an indication of likely future
developments of the Group’s business are set out under the sections
headed “Chairlady’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report. These discussions form part of this
Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The business operations and results of the Group may be affected by
various factors, including but not limited to the risks relating to the Group,
our industry, conducting business in the PRC. The Board is aware
that the Group is exposed to various risks. Except as disclosed in the
Corporate Governance Report to the Group's risk and uncertainties, the
other principal risks and uncertainties affected the Group are summarised
below:

i) The Group has a concentrated customer base and the strong
market positions of our major customers may limit our bargaining
power when entering into contracts with these major customers;

(ii) The cash flow of the Group may deteriorate due to material
payment delays by our customers which may negatively affect our
business, financial position and results of operations;

(iii) The Group has a concentrated supplier base and any increases in
cost of the advertising resources provided by our major suppliers
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial position and business prospects;
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(ivy  The Group may experience fluctuations in the gross profit margin
for our advertising services; and

(v) The business of the Group may be affected by seasonal fluctuation
in demand for our advertising services of customers in different
industries.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Company is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and protecting the environment and giving back
to community. The Group has implemented environmental protection
measures to reduce energy consumption, water consumption and paper
consumption.

Details of such are set out under the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. This discussion
forms part of this Directors’ Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep abreast of requirements of the relevant laws
and regulation.

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects including the Advertising Law of the PRC ({FZE A
REMBESE)), Interim Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertising ((BEEESEIRE{T#1%)) and the Company Laws of
PRC ((h#E ARLFBEIARA)) during the Reporting Period. The Group
has obtained all requisite licenses, permits and certificates necessary to
conduct the operations in material respects from relevant PRC regulatory
authorities.

The Group had also complied with all relevant Hong Kong Laws and
regulations in all material respects including the Company Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Listing Rules and the SFO.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices. Information on the corporate governance practices

adopted by the Company is set out under the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY PARTIES

Relationship with Employees

The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.

Group’s relationship with our employees is satisfactory in general. Our
Directors consider that the management policies, working environment,
career prospects and benefits extended to our employees have
contributed to a good employee relations and employee retention rate.

For further details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the sections headed “Directors’ Report
— Emolument Policy And Long-Term Incentive Schemes”.

Relationship with Suppliers

We generally source advertising resources from advertising resources
providers and advertising agents. Advertising resources providers
(i.e. ultimate advertising resources suppliers) are generally companies
possessing advertising resources directly, examples of which include TV
stations, owners of websites, search engines, social media platforms, and
outdoor platforms. Advertising agents are advertising companies which
source advertising resources from the ultimate advertising resources
suppliers. As advertising agents may establish strong relationships with
the relevant suppliers or possess some specific advertising resources, we
engage these advertising agents as our suppliers, which is consistent with
the industry practice. The Company’s system clarifies the mechanisms
for supplier access, level management and exit and strictly abides by
implementation. For core business procurement, the Company values the
dynamic inspection of its licenses and qualifications to ensure it complies
with the relevant requirements and amendments of national policies and
regulations.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.
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Relationship with Customers

As an established advertising services provider in the PRC, our major
advertiser customers are generally large-scale national enterprises. In
order to guarantee the service quality to customers, the Company will
organise professionals and third-party teams to monitor the delivery during
advertising period and summarise the project after the end of project to
improve the service quality to customers.

For further details regarding our major customers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the Group’s sales and cost of revenue

attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
Reporting Period is as follows:

The largest supplier SAHER
Five largest suppliers AR ER
The largest customer BAREP
Five largest customers AREF

According to the understanding of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their close associates or any Shareholders who owned more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital had any interests in the five largest
customers or suppliers at any time during the Reporting Period.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past five financial years is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Reporting Period and the Group’s state of
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report.

The Company currently does not have any predetermined dividend payout
ratio. A decision to declare or pay any dividend and the amount of any
dividends depends on a number of factors, including but not limited
to our results of operations, financial position, working capital, capital
requirements and other factors the Board may deem relevant.

The Company has adopted dividend policy. For details regarding the
dividend policy of the Company, please refer to section headed “Director’s

Report — Dividend Policy”.

The Board did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Reporting Period and as at 31 December 2021 are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 103 of this
annual report.

As at 31 December 2021, The distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution amounted to approximately RMB84,988,000.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

The Group did not make any charitable donation during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wang Xin, Chairlady of the Board

Mr. Feng Xing, Vice Chairman of the Board, General Manager"”
Ms. Li Na

Mr. Leng Xuejun, Vice Chairman of the Board

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Xue

Mr. How Sze Ming

Mr. Wu Ke

Note:

(1) Mr. Feng Xing resigned as an executive Director, Vice Chairman of the Board and
the General Manager with effect from 30 March 2022.
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In accordance with articles 108 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Li Na,
Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Leng Xuejun will retire at the 2022 AGM, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

Ms. Li Na, Ms. Wang Xin and Mr. Leng Xuejun, are being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE INFORMATION OF THE DIRECTORS

Ms. Li Na has resigned as chairlady of the Board and of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 14 December 2021. Ms. Wang Xin has been
appointed as the chairlady of the Board and of the Nomination Committee
with effect from 14 December 2021. For further details, please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 14 December 2021.

Mr. Feng Xing has resigned as an executive Director, Vice Chairman of
the Board and general manager of the Company with effect from 30
March 2022 due to his decision to devote more time to his other personal
commitments.

Save as disclosed above and in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, during the Reporting Period, there has been no change in
the information of the Directors as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF
APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company on 22 October 2019. The principal particulars of these
service contracts are (j) for a term of three years commencing from their
respective effective date of appointment; and (i) are subject to termination
in accordance with their respective terms.

Each appointment letters entered into between the Company and Mr. Li
Xue and Mr. How Sze Ming (both on the Listing Date) and Mr. Wu Ke (on
1 January 2021), all being the Independent Non-executive Directors, are
for a fixed term of three years, which may be terminated in accordance
with the terms of the individual appointment letter. Save for the director’s
fee, none of our Independent Non-executive Directors is expected to
receive any other remuneration for holding his office as an Independent
Non-executive Director.

Ms. Li Na has resigned as chairlady of the Board and of the Nomination
Committee with effect from 14 December 2021. After resignation, the
remuneration of Ms. Li Na has been adjusted from HK$636,000 per year
to HK$144,000 per year.
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Ms. Wang Xin has been appointed as chairlady of the Board and of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 14 December 2021. After due
appointment, the remuneration of Ms. Wang Xin has been adjusted to
HK$636,000 per year from HK$144,000 per year.

None of the Directors has entered into, or has proposed to enter into, a
service contract with us that is not determinable by the employer within
one year without the payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of its Independent Non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all Independent Non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the guidelines set
out in the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND LONG-TERM INCENTIVE
SCHEMES

To attract and retain employees of the Group, the Group provides
competitive remuneration packages to its executive Directors and senior
management. These comprise salaries and allowance, performance
related bonuses, retirement benefits contributions and long-term incentive
plan which includes Share Option Scheme. The remuneration package of
executives Directors and senior management is reference to salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The performance related bonuses are calculated based on our
employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance of
our employees. The Group assesses the remuneration package offered to
our employees on an annual basis to determine whether any adjustment
to the basic salaries and bonus should be made.

The remuneration payable to our employees includes salaries and
allowance, performance related bonuses and retirement benefits
contributions. The salaries of our employees are generally determined
by the employees’ respective position, qualification, experience and
performance. The performance related bonuses are calculated based on
our employees’ respective position, duration of services and performance
of our employees. In order to attract and retain our employees, we assess
the remuneration package offered to our employees on an annual basis to
determine whether any adjustment to the basic salaries and bonus should
be made.

We provide training programmes for all of our employees to enhance our
employees’ knowledge, skills and capability relevant to the advertising
industry. All of our new hires will be provided with an induction programme
to familiarise with the Group, followed by on-the-job training based on
departmental needs and the development strategies of the Group. We
also provide promotion opportunities for capable employees as we have
policies and procedures setting out the assessment criteria for promotion.
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The non-executive Directors’ remuneration relates to the time commitment
and responsibilities. They receive fees which comprise the following
components:

(i) Directors’ fees, which are usually paid annually; and

(ii) Share options which are rewarded subject to the discretion of the
Board.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 36 full-time
employees (31 December 2020: 53). Compared with the total number of
employees in 2020, the number of employees in 2021 has decreased due
to the COVID-19 pandemic.

During the Reporting Period, the relevant staff costs amounted to
approximately RMB11,357,000 (2020: approximately RMB13,568,000).
For details, please refer to note 10 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

RETIRMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC. The
PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan to fund the
employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions. No
forfeited contribution under this scheme is available to reduce contribution
obligation in accordance with the laws and regulations in the PRC.

Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes operated by the Group are
set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
during the Reporting Period are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Neither the Directors nor any entity connected with the Directors had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party subsisting during or at the end of the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting
Period was the Company, its holding company, fellow subsidiaries or
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and none of the Directors, or any
of their spouse or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe
for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other body corporate
or had exercised any such right.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save for service contracts of the Directors, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company was entered into by the Company or existed
during the Reporting Period.

INDEMNITY AND DIRECTORS’ LIABILITIES INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, every Director shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she may incur
or sustain by the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate insurance
covering the potential legal actions against its Directors and Officers. The
insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis. For the Reporting
Period, no claim has been made against Directors and Officers of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save and except for the interests of our Controlling Shareholders in
our Company, during the Reporting Period, neither our Controlling
Shareholders nor any of our Directors and their respective close associates
(other than members of the Group) has any interest in a business, apart
from the business of the Group, which competes or likely compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group which would require
disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company and its
Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and/or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules were as follows:

EZREROUESEZER

BRAFEMAIWEEIN WM EHANEMER - ARF] - K
AR - BB A B ST A R AT S 2 HE A
BEFAEBEARRIEMEMEARR 2 i) R(E#
EMERMNe - ARBEERRELBR MR FLE
EREARAREMEMEARE 2 RAREHESFLE
I ARER -

BREFNRBANIN  RATRHERANLERT LR FHA
BHAERREERRBRMAERNERLD EBOSL

WEEXRESEIRE

REBAMERZANLERERER - BRESRATRSE
SRR EAATT AR AT RE R R R A B2 — IR FA ~ &K
A R BRERAX  BEREARREERT
HRESRENRRRE ARFCREEENSHBE
BEZRTHLHEENRRE - ARRREBERSFET
EE - MEHAN > AEBEERSRBE S ERBREAS

EERERERRNEFEBNOER

B RN AR BRI - MERA - RAKE XS
S BB R R R AEZ RRERS BNETBEA (K
SEXBRABRIN BAREXBBRERIBEE L F X
MR E RS ARSI NER T EATRE L TARAISE
810 TR FEM E s -

ESNTETHRAEBRARQTAREEBEE 2 R?D - 1HE
RO REERZBERKR

R2021F12A318 * AREIMNESREETHRABRAR
B R EREAE (T R EHFRIEEMEXVED) B85
TERANR D M ERE B R A IRIBEH M E IR P 83521578
GFENECMATRESMER R AR - RE R A
Misk+ATSiZETRIZA BT MG AR R KRB FTA R
R/ SRR

i (HE) BREEBRAR « —Z-—FFR 87



88

Directors’ Report
EEEWmE

(@)

(b)

Interests of Directors and Chief Executive of the Company

Name of Directors

EEnE EEMERSH
Ms. Wang Xin® Interest in a controlled corporation
Frzt@ SR

Mr. Feng Xing®

B MR AE SRR
Ms. Li Na® Interest in a controlled corporation
Expequnill REE LB

Mr. Leng Xuejun®

REBEFAED REE LB
Notes:
(1) All interests stated are long positions.

) Ms. Wang Xin is interested in 563.38% of Youyi which holds 6.31% of the
shareholding in the Company. Ms. Wang Xin is therefore deemed to be
Interested in the Shares held by Youyi by virtue of the SFO.

3) Mr. Feng Xing Is interested in approximately 83.33% of the issued share
capital of Ruichengdemao which holds 4.41% of the shareholding in the
Company. He is therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
Ruichengdemao by virtue of the SFO.

“) Ms. Li Na is interested in the entire issued share capital of Jujia which holds
9.19% of the shareholding in the Company. She is therefore deemed to be
Interested in the Shares held by Jujia by virtue of the SFO.

%) Mr. Leng Xuejun is interested in 52.43% of Jing Gen which holds 3.70% of

the shareholding in the Company. Mr. Leng Xuejun is therefore deemed to
be interested in the Shares held by Jing Gen by virtue of the SFO.

Interest in the shares of an associated corporation

Name of associate

Name of Director corporation capacity
EEHE HEEEER EEME
Mr. Feng Xing Beijing Lingyu Beneficial interest
B tREE gt

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as defined
under Part XV of the SFO which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise should be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Note:

Mr. Feng Xing has transferred his 7% shareholding in Beijjing Lingyu to Beijing
Ruicheng Advertising Co., Limited. (1 7 % i/ & H R 2\ 7)) in August 2021
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Nature of Interest and Capacity

Interest in a controlled corporation

Interest in a controlled corporation

Nature of interest and

(@) AFRANEBRFTETBAEHEZR

Shareholding

Number of percentage (%)
Shares held in the Shares
FERGBEO REHSAED L
25,246,606 6.31%
25,246,606 6.31%
17,645,329 4.41%
17,645,329 4.41%
36,761,102 9.19%
36,761,102 9.19%
14,781,639 3.70%
14,781,639 3.70%
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(b) REBCEERD B LS

Amount of Approximate
registered capital percentage of
held (RMB) shareholding

FiEEMmEREE
(AR¥ ) RESQOBESL
70,000 7%

(Long position)
70,000 7%

(F2)
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, the following persons (other than the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company) or companies had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder

Nature of interest and Capacity

RERER EEMERSH
Yingheng Beneficial owner?
&8 BEamlEA A2

Ms. Wang Lei Interest in a controlled corporation?
TERT REIEEE R R
Jujia Beneficial owner®
Eff FnliAa A

Mr. Shi Rui Interest of spouse®
SHiEE A Eese
Ruichengtianhe Beneficial owner
AR BEREAA

Youyi Beneficial owner*
B= BEmEA A

Mr. Wei Chunlei Interest of spouse*
BEELE [y

Mr. Wang Pingpin

Interest in controlled corporation®

T8RS R B R RS

Ms. Zhang Miao Interest of spouse®

SRR L et ase

Notes:

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of the

@

3

“)

©®)

SFO) in such Shares.

The Company is held directly by Yingheng as to approximately 40.43% of the total
issued share capital. Yingheng is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang Lei. Ms. Wang Lei
is deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Yingheng for the
purpose of the SFO.

The Company is held directly by Jujia as to approximately 9.19% of the total issued
share capital. Jujia is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na. Ms. Li Na and her spouse, Mr.
Shi Rui are deemed, or taken to be interested, in all the Shares held by Jujia for the
purpose of the SFO.

The Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of the total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 63.38% by Ms. Wang Xin. Ms.
Wang Xin and her spouse, Mr. Wei Chunlei are deemed, or taken to be interested,
in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

The Company is held directly by Youyi as to approximately 6.31% of the total issued
share capital. Youyi is owned as to approximately 46.62% by Mr. Wang Pingpin.
Mr. Wang Pingpin and his spouse, Ms. Zhang Miao are deemed, or taken to be
interested, in all the Shares held by Youyi for the purpose of the SFO.

FTERRRROREBRO P ZEERAR

R2021F12A31H * MEEFTFRA © RIBARRILZRBES
MRS ISP EI36IEFEENERMAATEEEE - A TAL (R
RAEBHmBITBABBRIN AR 7R AR &R AR
AR P IEAEIRIEES RS IEFIEXVELE2 M3 A M
AAR KRR FTEBEAERIAR

Mt
()

@

3

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

or securities held® interest
LR

RSB SHED WEENE DL
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
161,704,734 (L) 40.43%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
36,761,102 (L) 9.19%
26,284,188 (L) 6.57%
26,284,188 (L) 6.57%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%
25,246,606 (L) 6.31%

[LIFEETZATREZRGHE AT E ] (QEHEREIEHIE
XV FAEE) °

KR AIAIE EFE BT 118 B A F5 B #940.43% ° HIEH T
LR TEHEE < REZRPLIFOIME » TEXLREBEH
WEIER B EFFHHIPTER G TG

ARAE B ITIRFACHAI9.19% A E1ZEIEIFE - EEBFHX
TEEHET o BEFRAENOINE » FWL L REHMELH
FEEWR R ARER EEATIF A 2B (0 i #Eas

KR AIEHETTRAAREA6.31 % ESEEIFH - BEAHTIN
K1 HEHH)53.38% © BEFRBEKIITE  EIhLLRAL
BREEALERBREEFREESFHNZ BRI FEEHE

o

ARAEFITIRAAREHKI6.31 %1 BEEZIFH - BEH T FH
SEEFEFHI46.62% ° BiEF RAEIKPIME » £ FHALRE
IS RRLZ L RRBBAEERBEFIF BN L ARG FIEF
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors was not
aware of any other persons (other than the Directors or the chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which were required to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange in accordance with Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the
register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
SHARES

Neither of the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the Reporting Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding the Company’s securities.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company has conditionally adopted the share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted by written resolutions passed by
its Shareholders on 22 October 2019.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible participants ("Eligible Participants") (including (i) any
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; (i) any Directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; (iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries and (iv) such other
persons, who, in the sole opinion of the Board, will contribute or have
contributed to the Group) an opportunity to have a personal stake in the
Company with the view to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(ii) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going business

relationships with the Eligible Participants whose contributions are
or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of the Group.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. Details of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme are set out below. The Directors may, at its
absolute discretion, make an offer to grant options to any employee of the
Group, any non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-executive
Directors), any suppliers, any customers, any adviser or any participants
who shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on the basis
that the Directors’ opinion as to his contribution to the development and
growth of the Group. The maximum number of ordinary shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue upon the Listing
(the Company may refresh this 10% limit under certain conditions) or 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time where there are options to be
granted and yet to be exercised. As no offer for grant of share options has
ever been made under the scheme, the total number of Shares underlying
the share options available for grant is 40,000,000 Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued shares as at the date
of this annual report. As there are no options granted under the scheme
and hence there are no outstanding options under the scheme, the total
number of Shares available for issued under the scheme is zero. The total
number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) to each Eligible Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant. Any further grant of options which would result in
the number of ordinary shares exceeding 1% requires a Shareholder's
approval with the relevant participant and his/her close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) (or his/her associates if the Eligible Participant
is a connected person) abstaining from voting. The offer of a grant of
share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date the offer
together with the consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The minimum
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than ten years after it has been granted. All
outstanding options shall lapse, among other circumstances, when the
grantee ceases to be a participant of the Share Option Scheme by reason
of the termination of his/her employment/death. No option may be granted
more than 10 years after the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme
by the Shareholders of the Company (the “Adoption Date”). Subject to
earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date.

BT BIMIERFT A LR RE17ZEMIEN - BARE
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tER - THEF - THERXEBEIEETNIMNR
HEFLDRDBERENEY  HESRAFESHALED
BREERELEE - ATEREEBREAZISRERAR
AIFTIR A EL b B AR T 8138 TR 2 SR A Ty ] T 3%
T2 EBREE LR NMEBB EMEBEEITRNDMI0%
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The exercise price a Share in respect of any particular option granted
under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price as the Board in its
absolute discretion shall determine, save that such price will not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities;

(ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

@iy ~ the nominal value of a Share.

As at 31 December 2021, there was no option outstanding, granted,
cancelled, exercised or lapsed.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
Reporting Period or subsisted at the end of the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which should be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors consider that all the related party transactions disclosed
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements did not fall under
the definition of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” (as the case may be) under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
which are required to comply with any of the reporting, annual review,
announcement, or independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Reporting Period.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION

As at the date of this report, there was no material outstanding or pending
litigation and arbitration for the Group.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the
minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules during
the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no major subsequent events since the year end date and up
to the date of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held on Monday, 6 June 2022. The
notice of AGM will be sent to Shareholders in due course.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following
periods:

For the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to attend
and vote at the AGM to be held on Monday, 6 June 2022, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 23 May 2022 to
Friday, 27 May 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Friday, 20 May 2022.
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AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 26 November 2020. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited had
been appointed as the new auditor of the Company with effect from 26
November 2020 to fill the casual vacancy until the conclusion of the next
annual general meeting. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 26 November 2020.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited has audited the attached financial
statements, which were prepared pursuant to International Financial
Reporting Standards. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited shall retire in
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and
to authorize the Board to fix their remuneration.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The annual results for the year have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee of the Company, which is of the opinion that the preparation
of such financial information complies with the applicable accounting
standards, the requirements under the Listing Rules and any other
applicable legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been
made.

By Order of the Board

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited
Wang Xin

Chairlady

30 March 2022

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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‘e .
-;o:.:. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited EXPR(ER) B S RMARAD
LN 43/F., Lee Garden One, 33 Hysan Avenue &HEIEEFEEI35N
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong FE—HA4318
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF B (PE) EEEEERATERR

RUICHENG (CHINA) MEDIA GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ruicheng (China)
Media Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 100 to 167,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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BN ZBENHRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described
below to be the key audit matters be communicated in our report.

LOSS ALLOWANCE FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (“ECL”) OF

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 121 to 125.

The key audit matter

As at 31 December 2021,
the carrying amount of trade
receivables, net of loss allowance
for ECL, was approximately
RMB293,612,000 which accounted
for approximately 73% of total
current assets. Loss allowance for
ECL in respect of trade receivables
of approximately RMB8,229,000
has been reversed for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The ECL on trade receivables are
estimated by the management
using a provision matrix based on
the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, and forward looking
information at the end of the
reporting period.

Independent valuer was engaged
by the management for the ECL
estimations of trade receivables as
at 31 December 2021.

We have identified loss allowance
for ECL of the trade receivables
as a key audit matter in view of
the significance of the carrying
amount of trade receivables and
the ECL estimation performed by
the management and independent
valuer involved significant
judgements and estimates.

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

Our audit procedures were
designed to assess the
management estimation on ECL of
trade receivables and challenge the
reasonableness of the significant
judgements and estimates,
including use of significant
unobservable inputs adopted in the
ECL estimation by the management
and the independent valuer.

We have also assessed
the appropriateness of the
methodology and reviewed the
inputs data used with reference
to the latest available general
economic data and the repayment
record against the Group’s
historical trends and credit loss
experience.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors of the Company determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors of the Company.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Lee Shun Ming.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Lee Shun Ming

Practising Certificate Number: PO7068

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeERRAMZERGER

\{

) ;‘ For the year ended 31 December 2021

1Y #HE20219 1231 A1 /E
Notes 2021 2020
ks 20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBFT
Revenue e 5 441,051 446,993
Cost of revenue I ERID TN (423,752) (406,694)
Gross profit EF 17,299 40,299
Other income, gains and losses HaUA - =R EE 6 3,939 10,369
Selling and marketing expenses HEMEHEAT (7,132) (9,726)
Administrative expenses THFAX (8,916) (14,016)
Finance costs RE A AR 7 (11,872) (8,519)
Impairment losses reversed (recognised) of SREERENEENRERIE
financial assets and contract assets B[ (#R) 8 10,984 (14,031)
Profit before tax BR A AT V5 ) 4,302 4,376
Income tax expenses FriSfif s 9 (3,839) (1,550)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREM R 2 EWELRRE
for the year 10 463 2,826
Profit and total comprehensive income FE(a ) & 2R 4R %E -
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RNAREB A 445 2,844
— Non-controlling interests — R 18 (18)
463 2,826
EARNINGS PER SHARE FREF 14
Basic (RMB) HAR(ARE) 0.11 centsi&fll  0.71 centsi L
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) 0.11 centsi&fll  0.71 centsiB 1l
100 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &
As at 31 December 2021
Ro021F12H31H

Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Long-term deposit

Current assets
Drama series production in progress
Trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables
Amounts due from related parties
Contract assets
Loan receivable
Short-term bank deposit
Bank balances and cash

Total assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

FRBEE
PUEINE:
BVEE
BIETRIRE E
asibinens

RBEE
SR ERE
B S RYGIR - TN TR R

HAb YRR
JE UL BRHSE T3 R
BHAE
FEME TR
REHSRITIER
RITHRER IR

BEEAE

RA R A1
AR
1

RRARGER ARG EE
SEER R

SR

Notes
Hi3E

15

16
17

18

17
32
19
20
21
21

25

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

429 1,814

27 33

3,542 6,291

- 162

3,998 8,290

- 7,100

341,100 343,142

831 300

23,472 21,079

- 9,726

- 16,700

34,865 1,072

400,268 399,119

404,266 407,409

3,578 3,578

214,066 213,621

217,644 217,199

142 124

217,786 217,323
Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
AR

) ‘ As at 31 December 2021
N * R2021412/31 8

1

-

Notes 2021 2020
i 20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARETT
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 - 307
Other borrowings EAbER 24 - 50,000
- 50,307
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHEMERFRIA 22 39,007 46,260
Tax payables e IR 14,570 15,140
Contract liabilities AHBE 23 16,612 2,001
Bank and other borrowings RIT R H A IEFK 24 115,984 75,511
Lease liabilities HEamE 27 307 867
186,480 139,779
Total liabilities SEHAE 186,480 190,086
Total equity and liabilities ERkEBERE 404,266 407,409
The consolidated financial statements on pages 100 to 167 were F100E167TEMG AN BRADEE TS MN2022F3 830
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 March A RISHETE  WHTHEEREEE
2022 and are signed on its behalf by:
Leng, Xuejun Xin, Wang
REE ES
Director Director
BE E=3
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Conso

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E

idated Statement of Changes in Equity
g A HE L St =

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRAREAEE
Non-
Share Share Merger Capital ~ Statutory ~ Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BdER/
Bx  RORE  AORE  EAEE  AERE REW @ FBRER  EREE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARETR
(note (i) (note (i) (note (i)
(s (o) (Fszkg)
At 1 January 2020 #202061A1A 3578 89,940 90,734 (52,481) 8,808 8776 21435 10 214497
Proftt oss) and total comprehensive income £ AR (B5%8) B2 ks
(expense) for the year (Fx) 8 - - - - 2,844 2,844 (18) 2,82
At 31 December 2020 H2020F12A318 3578 89,940 (62,481) 8,808 76,620 217,199 124 217,323
Profit and total comprehensive income for ~ EAEFI R2ENFEE
the year - - - - 445 445 18 463
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETHE - - - 106 (106) = - -
At 31 December 2021 #o021%12A318 3578 89,940 (62,481) 8914 76,959 217,644 142 217,786
Notes: Mtat:
0 In accordance with the articles of association of the subsidiaries established in the 1} RIFRPEARFFE ([HE]) R 5?7/;/75 VAT o T ]
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and relevant PRC laws and regulations, Al E B, 55/251?2'&}5 Rl - ZE W@ 2 AR B AT A R

(i)

(i)

these subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10% of their profit after tax,
which is determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to a statutory reserve (including the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion
fund, where appropriate). Transfer to this statutory reserve is subject to the
approval of the respective board of directors, and is discretionary when the balance
of such fund has reached 50% of the registered capital of the respective company.
Statutory reserve can only be used to offset accumulated losses or to increase
capital of the relevant subsidiaries.

On 27 March 2019, Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.* (& Sk
HELHRAF) (“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye”) acquired the entire equity interest in
Beijjing Ruicheng with the consideration of RMB2 million when the then net assets
value of Beijing Ruicheng was approximately RMB92,734,000. The difference
amount of approximately RMB90, 734,000 was credit to merger reserve and the
then issued capital of Bejjing Ruicheng of RMB80,800,000 was transferred to
capital reserve upon the completion of the reorganisation.

Capital reserve represents i) the difference between the consideration paid for the
acquisition of additional equity interests in subsidiaries and the carrying value of the
additional equity interests of the subsidiaries acquired; fi) the difference between the
consideration received for the disposal of equity interests in subsidiaries and the
carrying value of the disposed equity interests of the subsidiaries; (i) the difference
between capital contribution from an owner of the Group and paid-in capital;
(iv) adjustment arising from the Group Reorganisation in note (iij); (v) deemed
distribution as part of the Group Reorganisation in note (iv); and (vi) distribution to
the former owners of the Group’s subsidiary.

English name is for identification purpose only

(i)

(i)

HIE - BT Fﬁ??ﬁf/ﬁmﬁﬁ?wé/ﬂ?ﬁ/ﬁf%ﬁ%( FEHE—
REBREXZRESD @ (8/F) - BEZZZE R HHENES
RAJEFERAME - BEZET FEHECEZ AL A7
ﬁz& #950%#5 F] BYISRETE © JAE 1 R AT A AR 8 2 mT
R AIEINES -

R20194F3 527 A 1L R i 09 & F B B A FH92,734,0007C
B BBz REEERA A ([ EEmzE]) U EAR
BB B TMIBIL R AT SR E - EMTHE  EBRARE
90,734,0007TEF A & GEE B M AL R im il 05 E BT ERA R
80,800,0005T #3818 = B @1 °

BB 1E) BT B 2 AIEE SN K1 BT (B R E KRBT B 2 7]
555/‘/16‘%%55@@2%55 C i) B R AR E B

NEVRIBARIEIES 57 | )R FEFETA L EEEHER
§5 iv) BT a2 (i) Tt 7K 55 (B EE A EE A 9B - v) 3R TE2 R (BB HT
APt A EE B —EF7) + R(vi) 73R T A E B8 2 AR
HANA °

BXEBELZS -

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-_r\ Iﬁlﬁ/ﬂbg%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
B2 2021F 12831 HIFFIZ

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property and equipment
Interest income
Finance costs
Write-off of a deposit paid
Write-off of a property and equipment
Government grants
Imputed interest income on other receivable
Impairment losses (reversed) recognised of financial assets

and contract assets

Gain on early termination of a lease

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital
Decrease in trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables
Increase in drama series production in progress
Increase in contract assets
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities
Decrease in trade and other payables

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Interest paid

Guarantee fee paid

Income tax paid

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Withdrawal of short-term bank deposit
Settlement of loan receivable
Placement of short-term bank deposit
Advance to related parties

Purchases of property and equipment
Repayments from related parties
Interest received

Refund of rental deposits

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

New bank and other borrowings raised
Receipts from government grants
Repayments of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of lease liabilities

Interest paid for lease liabilities

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER,
REPRESENTED BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH

REEH
BRI BRI

HUTREELAZ

B A ERH

MERBETE

FEMA

AR

M ES

6L ENE

BT 8N

HipEl BB EFR BWMA

SREERSNEEMNRERE
(B m) R

b Sl koliolle

LEESEPHNEETERE

BHRNFIE - BNFIER
HioEUsuand

SUERERBIE
ARAERD

AKaBEEmeRd)

B 5 R EMENFERD

g2mE R Re
ERFS
ENERE
ERMER

RETHHE (A REFE
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REEHRITIER

W EREE
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IF) B 7 243
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s 77 B R

BYA &
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2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR AREFT
4,302 4,376
6 5
1,385 1,434
(63) (1,223
11,872 8,519
- 943

- 267
(3,157) (9,726)
- (470)
(10,984) 14,031
- 1)
3,361 18,145
17,186 87,648
- (7,100)
(2,727) (14,697)
14,611 (391)
(7,055) (156,464)
25,376 (72,859)
(6,995) (5,099)
(5,065) (1,880)
(1,660) (10,032)
11,656 (89,870)
16,700 -
13,000 -
- (16,700)
(531) (30)

- (24)

- 2,549

63 1,223
152 151
29,384 (12,831)
65,984 129,511
3,157 9,726
(75,511) (102,349)
(867) (1,029)
(10) (120)
(7,247) 35,739
33,793 (66,962)
1,072 68,034
34,865 1,072




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

1.1

1.2

General information

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and registered as an exempted company in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability under Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, on 15 January 2019 and its shares
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 November 2019.

The address of the Company’s registered office is 190
Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands and the principal place of business is 1602,
13/F, Building 7, No. 63 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District,
Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or
“China”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the provision of
advertising services in the PRC.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. The Company and its subsidiaries
are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”.

Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements

Going concern

Notwithstanding that the Group has relatively low level of
bank balances and cash of approximately RMB34,865,000
compared to bank and other borrowings which is repayable
within one year of approximately RMB115,984,000 as at 31
December 2021, the consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis as the directors
of the Company are satisfied that the liquidity of the Group
can be maintained in the coming year as the directors
of the Company will continue to take active measures to
control costs through various channels including human
resources optimisation and also speed up the collection from
settlement of trade receivables to improve operating cash
flows and its financial position.

1.

—REBURGEMNBHERNERR 25 EE

11

1.2

—RER

(PR BEEEBRAR ([ARF )R
2019F 1 A15HIRBER SRS R FERFAS
HETMRILAEREERAR LEBRNHR
2019F 11 A12B B BB E R ZMER AT
(TB 32 P )) =R T -

AN E) S EE I A 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008,
Cayman Islands ;2 = B & ¥ B A 2E AR K
ANE (TR E ) 4 R A5 = 7 K 2 R 6355
7RIE13/E1602% ©

ARRABR—EREZERAR > MEMBAF
TERERPBIRHESRY -

AEBFEEFBHREAARE ([ARE]Z
7 MARBIRRARBWEEE - R TX
KRB REMBARGE A AERE] -

REMBRRNERREIEE

b i F

BEREHZ 2021 F12 A1 HEAR—FR
EENRITREMERHARE 115,984,000
JURALL - ANEEERTTA IR S B EBIEK
SEH) AR EE 34,865,000 7T 0 SRAMEHRED
BREREEERE  BARNREREALR
EEAIRRFHBZTESRDIE AQFES
HSEERIEGE - SRS EREESIK
N BESCANDEREINRAESESE
WaEh A IR AN EREESRER
HEFEHOR,
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

) For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

AND PRESENTATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1.2 Basis of preparation and presentation of consolidated
financial statements (Continued)

Going concern (Continued)

The validity of the going concern basis on which the
consolidated financial statements are prepared is dependent
on the successful and favourable outcomes of the above
measures being taken by the directors of the Company
and the outcome of these measures as described above.
Hence, the directors of the Company are of the view that
the Group would be able to generate sufficient funds to
meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis and do not include any adjustments relating to the
recognition of provisions or the realisation and reclassification
of non-current assets and non-current liabilities that may
be necessary if the Group is unable to continue as a going
concern.

Should the Group fail to achieve the above mentioned plans
and measures, it might not be able to continue operating as
a going concern, and adjustments would have to be made to
restate the values of the assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to classify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as
current assets and current liabilities respectively. The effects
of these potential adjustments have not been reflected in the
consolidated financial statements.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“IFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for its first time,
the following amendments to International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (the “IASB”) which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1 January 2021:

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4
and IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year has
had no material effect on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“IFRS(s)”) (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs issued but not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments
to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective.

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 3

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12

Amendments to IAS 16

Amendments to IAS 37

Amendments to IFRS 16

Amendment to IFRSs

Amendment to IFRS 17

Insurance Contracts and related
Amendments?®

Reference to Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction®

Property, plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

COVID-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
2021"

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018
— 2020 cycle?

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and
IFRS 9 — Comparative Information?
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! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the
above new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that are
measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the consolidated financial statements
is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 16 and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in IAS 2
Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its
entirety, which are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

108 Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

3.

FTESFEE

A MBREDREDR SNBSS AN
BB M AR - 1O - A B BRI
B PR L AR R R 2 Al B AL 8 R
HEAR -

RAMBHRRRELRAZERR  ERSRES
RERNAEFFENE TSR IAR -

RS XA —fREN L IR P BRI RS E ©

AR EREEH SRR ENFEE) TRETER Y
MHS2EENTIE (REN) HHENERFRSTH
EEEMRRIEREBEINOER  MTWZ
BRI AR BE R AE R A ERMEE -
EMS2RERGERNYHEEXRRGEEERSS
BEEXRENF  MARERGFEELRAR
MAREREEERSHH - WEFAFBRES
fEEt 8K/ HRE RGO QA BRI EEETE -
M T B B 75 S X E RSB 2SR AR 17 B E A1 34
BEAK AR SERONRRS - REBEMH
BEENFIHEARNEER S UAREDAERH
WHEEM T ELIFARENE - EWEEEE
RSB 28577 & S BIFR & 5 E R F 365K &2 R A R 13
EERRIN -

SN - HFBREBME - AR EFERBELAER
ENRABBTERRER AR EFENBASE
HHERNEZUSBRE M F-_AHE=
o FEBWS

. FE-RB A \BEBEILERRAEAYRITURE
MHREER B BENERTIZORE CREH

B)

. FoRRABBENAELABEELNE
1] B R A B (3 — 0 AR
5 i R

. FE-ZRB\BBELEERRENTIERES
A -

TESREHIIWMT -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4= A

e MR RRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains controls until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
(expense) are attributed to the owners of the Company and the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income (expense) of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised services
to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those services.
Specifically, the Group uses a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

° Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

o Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance

obligations in the contract

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a service that is distinct.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over
time by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Advertising services, including Television (“TV”), online, outdoor and
other advertising services, are principal activities from which the
Group generated its revenue.

(i) Revenue from TV advertising services is primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on TV channels or
variety shows. Revenue from services rendered is recognised
in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the
transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion
is determined by the actual broadcasted TV advertisements
and verified by reports issued by an independent third party
with relevant qualification and experience, which evidenced
the advertisement actually broadcasted.

(i) Revenue from online advertising services is primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on platforms such as
websites, mobile applications, social media platforms and
search engines. The Group utilised a pricing model based
on specific terms of the contract which are commonly based
on cost per click or cost per mille, which means the cost per
1,000 advertisement impressions regardless of whether the
advertisement is being clicked by the viewers. The revenue
from online advertising services on cost per click or cost per
mille basis is recognised over the service period based on
the actual clicks or views of the advertisement and verified
by reports issued by an independent third party with relevant
qualification and experience, which evidenced the actual
clicks or views of the advertisement actually performed.

(iii) Revenue from outdoor advertising services is primarily
derived from the placement of advertisements on outdoor
platforms such as LED screens on or in buildings, metros
or advertising light boxes in car shelters. The revenue is
recognised over the service period based on an advertising
schedule confirmed by customers.

(iv)  Revenue from other advertising services are primarily derived
from the placement of advertisements on radio channels,
newspapers or magazines. The revenue is recognised
over the service period based on an advertising schedule
confirmed by customers.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a customer
that is not yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the value
of the services transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

Leasing

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease,
at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease
arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases
(defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option) and
leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date, the Group measures lease liability at
the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that
date. The lease payments are discounted by using the interest rate
implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments).

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability (using the
effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to
reflect the lease payments made.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability.

Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liabilities. They are depreciated over
the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying
asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the
lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property and
equipment”, the same line item within which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset
is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9 and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments and
included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered services
entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when
employees rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits
are recognised as an expense unless another IFRSs requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as
wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liabilities is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing transactions
in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets and the
related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 Income Taxes
requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
assessed on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Current and deferred income tax are recognised in profit or loss.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment including right-of-use assets, leasehold
improvements, motor vehicles, and office equipment are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately
are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets
with finite useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Intangible assets of the Group comprise computer software and
are amortised on a straight line basis over an estimated useful life
of 10 years. The useful life of the computer software is estimated
based on the expected usage of the computer software and their
technological and commercial obsolescence.

Impairment losses on property and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment (including right-
of-use assets) and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, corporate assets are allocated to individual cash
generating units when a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The Group assesses
whether there is indication that corporate assets may be impaired. If
such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating
units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment on property and equipment (including right-of-
use assets) and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to a
cash-generating unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to that
group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
Group of cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment loss,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit
or the Group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of an
asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the Group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-
generating units) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or a cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial
position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term bank
deposits with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as defined
above.

Investment in a subsidiary

Investment in a subsidiary is stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss,
if any.

Drama series production in progress

Drama series production in progress is stated at cost less any
identified impairment loss, if any. Cost includes all direct costs
associated with the production of drama series. Drama series
production in progress is transferred to inventory upon completion
of production.
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets. Financial assets are classified,
at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(0

Amortised cost and interest income

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial assets, the effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses,
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount
of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the
principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using
the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is
the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included
in the "Other income, gains and losses" line item (note 6).
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets including contract assets,
trade receivables and other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, bank balances, short-term bank deposit and loan receivable
which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for contract assets
and trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
collectively by using a provision matrix taking into consideration
historical credit experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort. Forward-looking information considered includes
the future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
operations.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased

significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on a debt instrument has not increased significantly since
initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) the financial instrument
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term, and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument
to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit
rating of ‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not available,
the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’ or ‘Class A’.
Performing or Class A means that the counterparty has a
strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
for example, when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-
off constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default occurring
as the weights. The Group uses a practical expedient in
estimating ECL on trade receivables and contract assets
using a provision matrix taking into consideration historical
credit experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on
the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade
receivables and contract assets are each assessed as
a separate group. Loan receivable, other receivables
and deposits paid and amounts due from related
parties are assessed for expected credit losses on an
individual basis);

. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The Grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables and contract
assets, other receivables, amounts due from related parties
and loan receivable where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

FTEETEER (@)
SEIE (@
EHEE (H)

EREERRIRE B TR &R EIT T TIRE
FHEETE IR B )5 B (&)

v TEHEEESRENTERER
SAEEHEEERIEORE - BOBKAX
RE (A3 AR ONBRER) MEHRER
BVEKER o BA R KB LR K RIZE AT
RIEE PR ERTIE T BRI A B E L 8
RIEL - MEMEE BB MET T ERH R
VISR NBEERONERFEER
E o AREAEANELERERERR A
—RERNERZF  NABRBEREMGE
SRMFIERENEENTRMEEEE I
MBANBE AV ENRALE AR ESD
RIS ERHE L B2 -

—RBWME  BRHREEEEARBASNENR
SENAEANRSRE ®AKE R/
BHRERERMOEZER - WIRYHHERGE
FEHVERRFREAE

AR SRR BR824 B
TABENBETESTERNER - 8l
BT A TR -

. SRTANEE AAKENESEK
RERENEEDS B RBILAR -

JEUE R - BAtRURIR - 2RE R
JRE Y BRESE 77 SR IR IR B Bl B E R TREME
EEH)

o BHHOR

. BEBANIEE - RERTE R
. SNEMEERTAR (THA) -

BRKERETE PR - UWBRSERNKR
BN EROME MRS -

AEFRBRHERAENESERMEERT
AMRRERRNEE 8 ZERKIER
BWEE - HMEUIR - R BT FRIR
K 8 WO R B A e T B A R S 1R R AR TE R
RSN

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK

—_~

125

&



|

»
|

126

\

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n‘/T\

B RS R AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12431 HILFIE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, bank and
other borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised
cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised
in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY
SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND KEY

SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
and disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.

Going concern basis

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, these consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
the validity of which depends on the outcome of these measures,
which are subject to the successful implementation of its operation
plans for controlling costs and also speed up the collection from
settlement of trade receivables to generate adequate cash flow
from operations. Details are explained in note 1.

Key source of estimation uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Loss allowance for ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under ECL model
for the trade receivables and contract assets. The loss allowance
for ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates such as probability
of default and forward-looking information. The information about
the loss allowance for ECL of the Group’s trade receivables and
contract assets are disclosed in Note 29.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, loss allowances for ECL
in respect of trade receivables and contract assets of nil (2020:
RMB13,635,000) and nil (2020: RMB116,000) respectively have
been recognised. During the year ended 31 December 2021, loss
allowances for ECL in respect of trade receivables approximately
RMB8,229,000 (2020: nil) have been reversed.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amounts of
trade receivables and contract assets are approximately
RMB306,721,000 (2020: RMB340,323,000) and RMB23,960,000
(2020: RMB21,233,000), net of accumulated loss allowance for
ECL of approximately RMB13,109,000 (2020: RMB21,338,000)
and RMB488,000 (2020: RMB154,000) respectively.
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HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WHEkDEHER

(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with

() BEFENELRENFD

customers
Revenue by services nature BIRB M EE 5 B 2
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
Television (“TV”) advertising services BR(ER]) BERS
— Hard-sell TV advertising services (Note) — W ERES RS () 70,724 149,016
— Advertising solution packages involving — W RBMERESRENES
soft-sell TV advertising services (Note) R = A (M) 21,007 84,416
91,821 233,432
Online advertising services HFEERS 221,491 89,200
Outdoor advertising services FINES RIS 112,325 72,079
Other advertising services HAEE RS 15,414 52,282
441,051 446,993
Note: Hard-sell TV advertising service is the placement of traditional Wiat - MM BREERE AR EREE BRI Z

advertisements during TV advertising time slots; and soft-sell TV
aavertising service is the implantation of advertisements in variety

HESE  MEMEERESREBRAEEAH R

ELREIFEAES  WERBEA  BEEL -

shows and TV series such as product placement, title sponsorship, FEELROBESE -
sublitle advertisement and verbal slogan.
Revenue by customer types BEFEAE SN
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Advertisers BEE 82,746 214,358
Advertising agents vt 358,305 232,635
441,051 446,993
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5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. Wi K o ZRE ()

@i

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

Revenue by categories of products or services being
advertised

Household furnishing & electronics RERRE
Tissue B

Foods and beverages KRR
Telecommunications £

Internet and mobile games B A I T e,
Pharmaceuticals B

Automobile AE

Others Hib

Timing of revenue recognition

Over time R B

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
The Group principally earns revenue from the provision of
advertising services which usually range from one to twelve
months. Advertising services typically meet the criterion
where customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefit of the Group’s performance as the Group performs.
Therefore, such revenue is recognised as a performance
obligation satisfied over time, using output method.

The Group acts as the principal during the provision of
advertising services and therefore recognised revenue
earned and costs incurred related to these transactions on
a gross basis where the Group is the primary obligor and
are responsible for (1) identifying and contracting with third-
party advertiser which the Group views as customers; (2)
identifying and contracting with media platforms to provide
advertising time or space where the Group views media
platforms as suppliers; (3) establishing selling price for the
advertising services; and (4) bearing sole responsibility for
fulfillment of the advertising services.

() BEFENELRENTD (@

(i)

BEEZEmXREERE T K2

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
303,489 136,435
28,434 -
12,425 96,046
14,647 30,662
- 54,215
- 113,876
63,702 6,792
18,354 8,967
441,051 446,993
W BRI
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
441,051 446,993
HEFAHNNBHEF
AEEFZFRE—RER—Z=2T2M@EAN

BEERBMEBULE - BERB —RFEUAT

B BVARSERE QR S RS RIS
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HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(iii)

(iv)

Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation for contracts with customers
All advertising services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Segment information

Information reported to the directors of the Company, being
the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”), for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on types of services provided. During
the two years ended 31 December 2021, the CODM
assesses the operating performance and allocates resources
of the Group as a whole, as all of the Group’s activities
are considered to be primarily the provision of advertising
services. Accordingly, the CODM considers there is only
one operating segment under the requirements of IFRS 8
Operating Segments. In this regard, no segment information is
presented.

No geographic information is presented as the revenue, non-
current assets and operations of the Group are primarily
derived from its activities in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as
follows:

Customer A BERPA

Customer B?

BFE

! Revenue is from TV advertising services, online advertising
services, outdoor advertising services and other advertising

services.
2 Revenue is from online advertising services.
3 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the

total revenue of the Group in the respective year.
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6. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

6. HftKA - WERER

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFT

Interest income on bank deposits AT A BHA 63 86

Government grants (Note (i) ERATH B (B RE(G)) 3,157 9,726

Input tax additional deduction on value added tax ~ 32{EF B hnat 0k

(Note (ii)) (G 0) 885 636

Interest income on loan receivable FEUE A S A - 1,137

Imputed interest income on other receivable HAb RSB E R B UA - 470

Gain on early termination of a lease (Note (iii)) FRATAR LR A Ry s (B 5 Gif) - 11

Foreign exchange loss, net V& i B9 18 558 - (353)

Write-off of a deposit paid MR RS - (943)

Write-off of a property and equipment biEi L EY & - (267)

Others Hith (166) (134)

3,939 10,369

Notes: Hia -

1] The amounts represented subsidies received from the local governments U LB B AL AL EIAE BN ERIR LTS
for rewarding the Group’s contribution to local economies and for listing. BB AR Dui %fﬁ/%ﬂf#?%ﬂ# HRERA - '
There were no specific conditions attached to the grants and the amounts BB ER T BB T 1R AT
were recognised in profit or loss when the grants were received.

(i) The PRC subsidiaries were granted an input tax additional 10% deduction (i) RIF EIEETAGEVAE - o BINTE R 7] K20199F4 1
on value added tax from 1 April 2019 to 31 December 2021 according to 162202112731 6 #RZ THEE A BH BN
relevant law on value added tax of the PRC. 10%#1f

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, gain on early termination of (i) %755202055 12/31H 1k fF"_&* : f—fﬁﬂ’iﬁﬁ?ﬂ?%{ﬁ??ﬁ
a lease represented the net difference of approximately RMB155,000 FEFHIALRN1550007T © EFEEFEREHDLHA
comprising an approximately RMB1,743,000 decrease in right-of-use FR#1,743,0007T R 75 A #5 PAIA K #1,896,000
assets and an approximately RMB1,898,000 decrease in lease liabilities, TC + AEEE (FHEELIA KB 144,0007T BRI ©
in addition to an approximately RMB144,000 compensation paid by the
Group.

7. FINANCE COSTS BE R AR

2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT

Interests on: AT HEFE
Bank and other borrowings SRIT R HAbfE R 6,797 6,519
Lease liabilities HEBE 10 120
6,807 6,639
Guarantee fees on bank borrowings SRITIERIERE 5,065 1,880
11,872 8,519
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

B 22021F 12531 H1FF/E
8. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES (REVERSED) RECOGNISED OF 8. CRRA(CRO)ESHEEREBERSNEE
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Impairment losses recognised of financial assets BREMEERENEERERIE
and contract assets:
— Trade receivables — B S EWFIE - 13,635
— Other receivables — Efth FEUFRIR 185 4
— Loan receivable —ERE R - 2,853
— Contract assets —EHEE 334 116
519 16,645
Impairment losses reversed of financial assets BoermEERERE
— Trade receivables — & S EKGIE (8,229) -
— Loan receivable —ERE R (3,274) -
— Other receivables — E b FEY R IE - 2,614)
(11,503) (2,614)
Total impairment losses (reversed) recognised (B ) ERB BB IBEE (10,984) 14,031
Details of impairment assessment are set out in Note 29. BB RHE BB 29
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 9. PSR}
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Bl SRS ([ EEFTSR)
Current year taxation AEERIEB 1,017 5,492
Under (over)-provision in prior year BEFERET T (BEEEHE) 73 (440)
Deferred tax (Note 16): IRIERITE (H3E16) - 2,749 (3,502)
3,839 1,550

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (“EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is
25% for both years.

The applicable tax rate of Xizang Wanmei Advertising Co., Ltd.* (7§
BB ERE AR A F)(“Xizang Wanmei”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, is 156% according to Circular Zang Zheng Fa 2018
No. 25 (the “Circular”). According to the Circular, enterprises
located in Tibet and engaged in specific encouraged industries are
qualified for applying a preferential tax rate of 15% for the periods
from 2018 to 2020. As such, the EIT rate for Xizang Wanmei is 15%
for both years. Ministry of Finance in PRC issued 2020 notice no.
23 to extend the tax concession period to 31 December 2030.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands as
there is no income tax imposed in such jurisdiction.

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong.

*

English name is for identification purpose only.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 V (
2202112731 L& f {

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 9. FR8Bi5 > ()

REENAERMAXTEREFSBERAMEME
W R ARG B AR N E R T

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

&

2021 2020
20214 202045
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Profit before tax FRE AT & A 4,302 4,376
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 25% 15 P T R 25% 8 AR Y B 18 1,075 1,094
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax TR S &
purpose 284 600
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating ~ Hfh BlE R &S B A B TR =
in other jurisdictions Ve 202 250
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERTIEE BN RBTE 2,253 110
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised %’i}ﬁﬁ REERTTEEE (48) (64)
Under (over)-provision in prior year BEFEREBT R BRERE 73 (440)
Income tax expenses FR1STER X 3,839 1,550
Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 16. B BIRER EN F SR AKT 16 -
10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FREF
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging: PO R Ty & HBR A N &IBEH -
Staff costs BIKA
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EZRIFETBRAENNE
(Note 11) CESRD) 1,803 2,445
Other staff: HMBET :
— Salaries and other allowances — ¥ R HAbERL 6,118 7,337
— Performance related bonuses (Note) — RINEMFEAT (MIFE) 1,143 2171
— Retirement benefits scheme contributions —IRKIEFIFEI ALK
(excluding directors and chief executive) (TEREESERETETHRAE) 2,293 1,615
Total staff costs BB TR 11,357 13,568
Amortisation of intangible assets W EERH 6 5
Depreciation of property and equipment MERBEITE 1,385 1,434
Total depreciation and amortisation e R EE 1,391 1,439
Auditors’ remuneration (2 GllEaaT)| 1,100 1,000
Cost of revenue recognised relating to short-term AR AN EROK R KA
leases 41,099 30,126

Wit RBEBYGTEAT AR A EIEERER A LS - 166

AN R B 7 5 R AT B TSR IFEE

Notes: Performance related bonuses are determined by the management of the
Company based on the Group'’s performance, performance of the relevant
individual within the Group and comparable market statistics.
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» * #Z2021412831 A 1HF/F

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 11. EBRFETHAEMS
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the individuals (2020: REE - MBEAZNSERHOEB S (2020F : 21
including emoluments for services as senior management of the KRAARBEZEZZAERTEBSREEASRH
Group entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) for RIS HIENE) FFIB T
the year, are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE20215F12A310LFE
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
HeR EIREF
ok HAdEa FHEIHEX Fohy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR

Executive directors: HITES:
Ms. Wang Xin (Chairlady) (note (i) FRZ L (ER) PHEE() - 223 56 279
Mr. Feng Xing (Chief executive) ISESE A (TTHRAEEL) - 103 82 185
Mr. Leng Xuejun REBELE - 408 82 490
Ms. Li Na (note (ii) 4+ (BRE() - 411 82 493
- 1,145 302 1,447
Independent non-executive directors B FEHTES
Mr. Li Xue TERE 89 - - 89
Mr. Wu Ke (note (i) KB A (B (Gi) 89 - - 89
Mr. How Sze Ming ERBEE 178 - - 178
356 - - 356
Total Fob 356 1,145 302 1,803
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A31HILEE
Retirement
Salaries Performance benefits
and other related scheme
Fees allowances bonuses contributions Total
RN BRINER
ik HekE TEAL BE 5 @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note (i)
(%)
Executive directors: BTEE:
Ms. Li Na (Chairladly) L+ (ER) - 520 - 46 566
Mr. Feng Xing (Chief executive) BRI (TTHER) - 663 - 46 709
Mr. Leng Xuejun REERE - 41 100 46 557
Ms. Wang Xin Fat - 234 - 23 257
- 1,828 100 161 2,089
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES
Mr. Li Xue FERE 89 - - - 89
Mr. Zhao Gang (note (i) HR L A (PRE ) 89 - - - 89
Mr. How Sze Ming REBRE 178 - - - 178
356 - - - 356
Total st 356 1,828 100 161 2,445
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B E2021F 1231 HIFF/E

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 11.
(CONTINUED)
Notes:
@) Performance related bonuses are determined by the remuneration

12.

committee of the Company based on the Group’s performance,
performance of the relevant individual within the Group and comparable
market statistics.

(i) Ms. Wang Xin is the sister of Ms. Wang, the Controlling Shareholder. Ms.
Wang Xin was appointed and Ms. Li Na resigned as Chairlady of the board
of directors of the Company on 14 December 2021.

(i) Mr. Wu Ke was appointed as an independent non-execultive director of the
Company on 1 January 2021.

(iv) Mr. Zhao Gang resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company on 31 December 2020.

Mr. Feng Xing is also the chief executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as an chief executive.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the Company.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was
no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive of the
Company waived or agreed to waive any remuneration.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for lost of office.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 included two (2020: three) directors including
the chief executive of the Company, details of whose emoluments
are set out in Note 11 above. Details of the emoluments for the
remaining three (2020: two) individuals for the year are as follows:

e MoRRh
RIZENIEAL (HRE))
RIRTRNIFT SR

Salaries and other allowances
Performance related bonuses (note (i)
Retirement benefits scheme contributions

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid to the five highest paid employees by the
Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for lost of office.

12.

EERTETHRAEME (8

Hiat

) KBH AT R AIFNE R & BR A EFRE -
HARIEN R A E B R R ] A B TSR IEEE

(i) FIRZ +BIFRRE F 20945, 1 - R20214F 124
148 @+ TRX L BAIRRGEESEE - MEWL+#E
EHREFSLE

(i) REFELER2021F 1 H1 AEZEREATELINTE
E

(iv) HEISEER2020F 12531 H BHE B AL a] 7 FEH 7T
FEo

RS E TR RN RN BTIARE - B LA B ey i
RBEEERTHREHIRFIREOME -

EXE2IRTEENHE HRERERARERA
SEEBMIRHREAESHME -

EXPBSIFITEENME A EIERARRT]
BEENREHE -

HE2021F R2020F 12 A31HIEFE - #HERAT
EERTETHAEREXIRAERETNTNOZ
B

HE2021F N2020F 12 A31HIEFE » AEE I H
TRHMEMBE - (EABBINATMAKRERZALE
By sk EARERAE -

& S 5N
REZ2021F12A31HIEFE - AEBERURE T
MEEBE—REE (20205 : =4) » BIFEARAF

EBITRAR - HEFBEERN XA - 2
FEH# =% (20209 : MA) ALAOTBIFENT -

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBETTT
1,019 648

162 323

246 93

1,427 1,064

HZE2021F R2020F 12 A31 H ILFE - ANKE L &
A A& = # R B TR B S - (FREEMA
SINAZR SR & ) SR S R BB 18

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK

135



A\

)

h

136

)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2021
B2 2021F 12831 HIFFIZ

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB889,000 (2020: RMB889,000))

Note:
) Performance related bonuses are determined by the management of the

Company based on the Group'’s performance, performance of the relevant
individual within the Group and comparable market statistics.

13. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: nil), nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period.

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the following data:

Earnings for the purpose of basic and diluted
earnings per share representing profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company

Number of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings per
share as there was no diluted potential ordinary shares in existence
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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13.

14.

EEHH (3

FHAATHENEARFTBEENTSHFIEEA
EGNE

Z%1,000,0005 7T (KSR AREE
889,0007T (20204 : AR
889,0007T))

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETIT
3 2

Wizt

0 EEBEEALE AR SR E RN BT - 450
BRI B %5 R TE L B ERIETEE -

RE

HE2021F12A31BIEFE « 8RS SRR
BB (2020F : £8) + AREHREBIIEREZRTE
AR g »

BRER

AR TR AR S A R BR80T
B EGH,

SHEESREAR TR EN
(BADEHEA NEIEFRET)

SHESRARREARTIN
BT B

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F AREFIT
445 2,844
R AE
2021 2020
20214 20204
'000 '000
400,000 400,000

AR RE E2021F 2020F 12 A1 HILFEI &
BIEHELRK  WERBEANSERERELRR
F) o
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BZ20219F12H31 HIFF/E
15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15. YERZE
Right-of-use Leasehold Motor Office
assets improvements vehicles equipment Total
FRESEE HEXBER RE N st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT AREFT ARETFTT AREFT
COST A
At 1 January 2020 7202051 A1H 4,885 648 5,717 1,227 12,477
Early termination of a lease (Note i) RATAEAR A (P22 (2,489) - - - (2,489)
Write-off WA (68) (443) - - (511)
Additions NE - 24 - - 24
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 20205 20214
12A31H 2,328 229 5,717 1,227 9,501
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZEHE
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 814 72 5,276 1,081 7,243
Provided for the year FREE 1,164 177 47 46 1,434
Early termination of a lease (Note i) TR R (H5E) (746) - - - (746)
Eliminated on write-off pElE (68) (176) - - (244)
At 31 December 2020 #2020612A31H 1,164 73 5,323 1,127 7,687
Provided for the year FREE 1,164 128 47 46 1,385
At 31 December 2021 #®2021412A31A 2,328 201 5,370 1,173 9,072
CARRYING VALUES REE
31 December 2021 720215124311 - 28 347 54 429
31 December 2020 #2020612A31A 1,164 156 394 100 1,814
Notes: Kt -
1} On 9 June 2020, the Group signed a supplementary contract with the 10} R2020F6 H9H + AEBBEHNFZT ALK FIE

i H B 73202296 530 A 19 B I 18 B & #97°2020%6 5
20H B © EREAIEEIEL BA R 144,000
(R 3F6(i)H#7E) - %45 R2020F6 20 A48

lessor, and the current lease contract with original expiry date on 30 June
2022 would be early terminated on 20 June 2020. The compensation of
breach of contract amounted to approximately RMB144,000 as disclosed
in Note 6(iii). The lease had been terminated on 20 June 2020.
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property and equipment are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

over the lease term
over the lease term
5 years

3-5 years

Right-of-use assets
Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Office equipment

As at 31 December 2020, right-of-use assets represented leased
buildings whose carrying amounts is approximately RMB1,164,000
(81 December 2021: nil). These leases are generally ranged from 3
to 5 years.

The depreciation by classes of rights-of-use assets are set out as
below:

Depreciation recognised in profit or loss

— Leased buildings —HEETF

The Group’s lease agreements did not contain any contingent rent
nor any extension, or early termination option or purchase option
for lease.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for advertising
light boxes in car shelters and billboards. As at 31 December 2021,
the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of short-
term leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
Note 10.
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LTS AGY)

bt R AR TR B AR R AR RIS EERIZAT
AERFMAEREN RSN EREHANE :

EREERE BERES

HEREER E{EHEEH
E 5%
MAERRE 3E5F

20206124310 » FRABEEAFEEBOARKE
1,164,0007T (2021412 A318 : E)WHEETF -
ZEMREBRENTIEEF ©

ZEMEEEER SIS NITESIMT

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETTT
1,164 1,164

AEBERHEEBHE TS EAIAEE R EFELK
RAR IR BREBE SR

AEBEF R IRE = ESBERES BN EHE
o 2021 F£12 A31 H > EHAESHASEUR
ERE 10 I EEHEEERMEAEES -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
A IS RRMEE
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
16. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised and
movements thereon during the current and prior years:

202091 A1H
T A (0B B) 182 (I 3E9)

7420205123314
Nk B 1828 (M5E9)

At 1 January 2020
Credit (charge) to profit or loss (note 9)

At 31 December 2020
Charge to profit or loss (note 9)

At 31 December 2021 M2021412A31H

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB102,813,000
(31 December 2020: RMB104,850,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
approximately RMB9,301,000 (2020: RMB481,000), available
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of such losses (2020: nil), due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses will be expired as follow:

2025
2026

20254
20264

16.

IESERLIE

T AR BB F RN X BREREAE
BT TR

Timing

differences

in relation to

lease
ECL provision arrangements Total

HEZH

BHEE R
EERE BEER e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT ARETT AREFT
2,781 8 2,789
3,507 5) 3,502
6,288 3 6,291
(2,746) ©)) (2,749)
3,542 - 3,542

BRI EFREHE - B200851 51 H#E - EAMH B
AREEN PSR SEENTENH - AN AER
RO TR RREERERERAETS
RAITE B gk E - F W ERPEME AR Z2
FHER AR#102,813,0007T (2020412 5318 © A
R#104,850,0007T) FE(G s Z RN AR A SRR
VEH R E R TE R -

2021612 A31H » AEBMARFHARBEBLBA
R #9,301,0007T (20204 : AR#481,0007t) 7] 4
AR ARICET) o ARRIEFRAITER + #)
MERE EEIEERECERBEE (2020F : &) -
KIERFIBEBAS A AT BEfER

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETF T
189 481

9,112 -
9,301 481
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E22021F 12431 HILFIE

17.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables — contracts with customers

17.

EZ YR - ANRIARHE bW FIE

BHREFIR — BEFEH

Less: loss allowance for ECL

Receivable from a supplier (Note (i)
Receivable from Investment A (Note (i)
Rental and other deposits

Others (Note (iil))

Less: allowance for credit losses

Deductible value-added tax
Prepayments to suppliers (Note(iv))

Total trade receivables, prepayments and other
receivables
Less: long-term deposits

Analysed as current assets

Notes:

0

HehEWES
HoAy (B (i)

FTHUR IS ER

o RERS

As at 31 December 2020, a prepayment for acquisition of a script of
RMB7,100,000 was made by the Group to a drama series production
company. Details are set out in note 18. As a result of the postponement
of provision of draft script, the Group and the supplier entered into a
termination agreement, the supplier promised to terminate and refund
the whole amount of the prepayment to the Group. Accordingly, the
drama series production in progress was derecognised and a receivable
from a supplier was being recognised at the gross carrying amount of
approximately RMB7, 100,000 (2020: nil), net of ECL impairment of nil
(2020: nil) as at 31 December 2021. Settlement of RMB2,862,000 was
received during the year ended 31 December 2021. The remaining
balance of the receivable from the supplier, net of loss allowance for
ECL impairment of RMB127,000, is RMB4,111,000 (2020: nil) as at 31
December 2021, and the gross amount of RMB4,238,000 is settled
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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B EEERRE

DI RREEE

o FEHIEEERAEERE

8 R o R U R (BEE()
KB AR FEUGRIR (HTREGD)

SO TR RO TR R (BRE (V)

B RWGIR - BN FIER
HoAf & YRR AR RE

Wzt
)

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBEF T
306,721 340,323
(13,109) (21,338)
293,612 318,985
4,238 -
750 750
3,061 2,603
3,654 7,325
11,703 10,678
(575) (390)
11,128 10,288
4,293 4,167
32,067 9,854
36,360 14,021
341,100 343,294
- (152)
341,100 343,142

R2020%F 12431 H + FEB W EEIZ A B R EIRIE
REJF I HIBARKE 7,100,000 7T ° G IGE R K AT
18 o IR HIIE(RBI KR EFg + K5 BB ER 5T V48U
i - (R ARG T 1) A [ R 2 A A o
Bl - R20219F 12831 » BUER BHEEIAL I ER R
I B (R B 2 JE W B R T AR (E AT A R 15 7,100,0007T
(2020% - #) (71 FE H15 B A8 A (E Z (20209 - #E))
TEGR o B E20219F 12731 H 1L FEMFEEFBAR
2,862,000 ° KR20214E12H31H » 2 E L /EE £ /€
WA BT HIBR PR RS BT IE A BB R 127,000
#EIEFEEBA KL, 111,000 (20204 - #2) » 5 HE
AAFEH4,238,0007T + RIFEHAKEEE -
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HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E
17. TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

(i) As at 31 December 2018, the Group invested in a film (the “Investment
A”) with fair value of RMB1,050,000, which entitled the Group to share
certain percentage of income to be generated from the film based on the
proportion of investment amounts as specified in respective investment
agreement. The directors of the Company designated the investment as
FVTPL on initial recognition.

On 28 December 2019, a supplemental agreement in respect of
Investment A was signed which modified the investment into a 15% annual
fixed return rate investment. Out of the aggregate amount of principal
and interest receivable of RMB1,365,000, an amount of RMB444,000
was settled in 2019 and the remaining principal and interest receivable in
aggregate of RMB921,000 would be repaid on or before 30 April 2020. In
view that there is a significant modiffication of the contractual cash flows of
the investment, the financial asset at FVTPL with fair value of RMBS879,000
was derecognised and an other receivable was recognised accordingly as
at 31 December 2019. A gain of RMB264,000 was recognised from the
derecognition during the year ended 31 December 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an amount of RMB129,000 was
settled. The gross carrying amount of the receivable from Investment A was
RMB750,000 (2020: RMB750,000), net of ECL allowance of RMB23,000
(2020: RMB18,000), as at 31 December 2021. ECL impairment of
RMBS5,000 (2020: Reversal of ECL impairment of RMB11,000) had been
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) As at 31 December 2020, balance of approximately RMB4,000,000
(2021: nil) was prepayments to two suppliers in relation to provision of
aavertising services. The Group and the suppliers mutually agreed to
terminate the contract. Accordingly, the prepayments were derecognised
and receivables from the two suppliers were being recognised at the gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB4,000,000, net of ECL impairment
of nil as at 31 December 2020. The balance is fully settled during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

(iv) The prepayments were made to the suppliers for the supplying of provision
of advertising services to the Group.

The Group generally determines the credit period granted to
customers with reference to the financial position, credit record,
duration of business relationship and the types of services the
Group provides. Credit and payment terms may vary for different
customers and projects. The Group generally issues billings to
customers after performance of advertising services according to
the terms set out in the relevant contracts.

For TV advertising services, the Group generally provides credit
periods ranging from 15 to 90 days (2020: 15 to 90 days) after
issued billings to customers.

For online advertising services, the Group generally provides credit
periods of 90 days (2020: ranging from 15 to 90 days) after issued
billings to customers.

For outdoor advertising services, the Group generally sets the
contract terms by instalments within the contract period.

For other advertising services, the Group generally demands
payment by instalments or in full prior to services being provided.

17.

B 5 RWFEUR - BARIARHE YRR (8

Wizt : ()

(i) K2018F12/31H - FEERE A& ([REA]) -
RAERBALK1,050,0007T * 7 EEGRRBFES K
Bl# e ERRE R BIL YD Z BZELH—TFES
LA - EFIETZRE BRI ERIF LA EEA

R2019F 1228 » BHIR EAZL] — @ i « #H%
BIEKB15% BT FEIHERE o R EABEEREWF]
BAFEH1,865,0007TH + A K B444,0007T £ 2019
FLEE R T A EREHTFEABFEA 921,000 #
R2020F 4 H30 A 202 FTIETT - BRI EA A AIHE 2 T
EFAEEE SR EFAEm AERALEBAR
#879,0007T i) % i B AL L HERRL B R 2019F 12 5
31 HHERE M EWHIE - REZ2019F 12531 H1EF
JE + BRI HERHE R i A R #5264,000T °

RE[ZE2020F 1231 HIFFE - BAAEHBARE
129,0007T » R2021F 128318 + EWRIREAREAEE
AARK750,0007T (20209 - AR 750,000T) « #]
BRIEH S BEERE A K B523,0007T (2020 - AR
18,0007T) ° ELE20214 12431 A 1L F/E » B #7#EE]
FEHIE B BB A R #5,0007T (20204 : #[EIFEH =
EEEEEA LR 11,0000T)

(i) 2020125318 » #&#r#IA K #4,000,0007T (2020
F ) BRI RE SRS NI (ER A B (T30
I o FEERMPEFIFG EAUEEA Bt - BV
HEHK IR - I ERE R EREZRARENIARE
4,000,000 HIFENCIA - HIFRR20204F 12431 A &4
EEEERET - FHEREE2021F12H31HIFF
BRBAEE
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HEASEREORBEELEERTEPHNEER
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17.

18.

TRADE RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net of
allowance for credit losses presented based on the date of billing,
which approximates the respective revenue recognition dates, at
the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0Z30K

31 - 90 days 31E90X
91 - 180 days 91E180k
181 — 360 days 181E 360K
Over 365 days 360KA £
Total st

As at 31 December 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate net carrying
amount of approximately RMB293,612,000 (31 December
2020: RMB202,520,000), which are past due as at the reporting
date. Out of the past due balances, RMB128,376,000 (2020:
RMB142,014,000), has been past due over 90 days and within
two years and is not considered as in default because there is
no significant change in credit quality and the amounts are still
considered recoverable. The remaining past due balances of
RMB165,236,000 (2020: RMB60,506,000) have been past due
less than 90 days. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances or charge any interest thereon.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other receivables
are set out in Note 29.

DRAMA SERIES PRODUCTION IN PROGRESS

Drama series production in progress represents a prepayment
for acquisition of a script made by the Group to a drama series
production company. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group and the supplier entered into a supplementary
agreement with the supplier promised to repay whole amount of the
prepayment to the Group. Accordingly, the drama series production
in progress was derecognised and a receivable from a supplier.
Details are set out in Note 17()).
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B 5 RWFEUR - BARIARHE YRR (8

AT BREIRE B8 (BU s fERR H BARD) 27170
HEMREHREEBERRENE SRR
iR AT

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBTT
139,483 132,041
25,754 32,437
37,794 7,902
72,787 105,416
17,794 41,189
293,612 318,985

M2021F12A318 » REABEFERABEANAR
#02093,612,0007C (2020512 A3180 : ARM
202,520,0007T) B FEUGFIBRT AR E B & 5 fEGRIE
iy RIS PR R - £RSRHEsT 0 AR
#128,376,0007T (20204 : AR#142,014,0007T)
B HARBOOR MMM ER - B AR AEL - R
FAREEEETEEAEH A SBWRBNAIRE -
Flerd AL a2 A R 165,236,0007T (20204F : AR
60,506,0007T) B EITN B 0K » KNI E LS
KRS A AR s RIS, o

B 5 M EMEBGRIBHRERT S B R K29
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SUEPERBIIEAEERBBEE R RAEEEIRIER
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19. CONTRACT ASSETS
Current B
Contract assets ABHEE

20.

Upon entering into a service contract with customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer and
assumes performance obligations to perform advertising service
to customers. The service contract is an asset if the measure
of remaining conditional rights to consideration exceeds the
satisfied performance obligations. Contract asset is recognised
over the period of the contract in which the service is performed
representing the Group’s rights to receive consideration for the
service performed because the rights are conditioned on the
Group’s future performance of remaining advertising service. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when the rights
become unconditional, i.e. advertising services performed are
verified by an independent third party with relevant qualifications
and experience and confirmed by customers.

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of contract
assets is approximately RMB23,960,000 (2020: RMB21,233,000),
net of accumulated loss allowance for ECL of approximately
RMB488,000 (2020: RMB154,000).

Details of impairment assessment for the year are set out in Note
29.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

On 31 October 2017, Beijing Ruicheng entered into a contract with
an independent third party, pursuant to which Beijing Ruicheng
invested RMB13,000,000 in an internet drama and was entitled
to share certain percentage of income to be generated from the
internet drama distribution based on the proportion of investment
amount. The directors of the Company designated the investment as
FVTPL on initial recognition.

On 21 December 2018, a supplemental agreement was signed
which entitled Beijing Ruicheng to a fixed rate of return of 18% for
the period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2020. In view that
there is significant modification of the contractual cash flows of the
investment as of 21 December 2018, the financial asset at FVTPL
with a carrying amount of RMB13,000,000 was derecognised and
a loan receivable, was recognised accordingly. The loan receivable
was subsequently measured at amortised cost because the
Group’s business model was to hold the financial asset in order to
collect contractual cash flow, and the cash flow of the investment
met the IFRS 9 criteria as solely payment of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding. No gain or loss is recognised
from the derecognition.

19.

20.

BREE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
23,472 21,079

REEPIRE AR  AEEESAEPE
RENEN  TRERATPRBRITESRENENE
o MBS THARERERNEBBERTNE
WEME AIRBENA/EE - ANBEERETRS
MENHRER  RRARERETRBRERE
AER - AR A RENAESAEER B RETH
THESRBEDAIEE - BN AR E R (RIR
BAERERRERNEBEYE =T RECETNE
SIRBARTLHERR)  ANEEBBEESEK

H -

MR2021F12A31H - ANEERAREBENAARE
23,960,0007T (20204 : AR%21,233,0007T) * &
TEHE B EENEIEREFELN A ARE488,000
JC(2020%F © AR¥154,0007T) °

BEAFERENENFFIEHNME29 -

Bl ER

R2017F10A318 » bR — BB FE = 5]
Y—HAEH  EIL - RIS SR EIEE A
R#13,000,0007T * WHEENRESBLHIZ—
FAD LD ZZMEE D IRGEENRA  AQF
BHIETZINEEER AR AR BT AIEES ©

MR2018F 128218 » @ p#s - FihRisHE
HE2019F1 A1 HE2020F12 A31 HZH18%H)
EFRIHRE - R E2018F 12 821 BIRENE L
Be&REAANEES  RAABEFABZEEER
EARARE13,000,000THEBEERIEER - I
AR BN E R - ZEREIREREBIRE A
ATE DHRAEENESEXARESREEN
WHAHRESRE  MEENBESREFS HERE
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20.

21.

22.

LOAN RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 20.

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of loan
receivable is approximately RMB13,000,000 (2021: nil), net of
accumulated ECL impairment of RMB3,274,000 (2021: nil).
The loan receivable was fully settled during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Details of impairment assessment for the year are set out in Note
29.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/SHORT-TERM BANK 21.

DEPOSIT

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range from
0.30% to 1.10% (2020: 0.30% to 1.10%).

Short-term bank deposit represented the fixed bank deposits carry
interest at 1.75% per annum as at 31 December 2020 with original
maturity of more than 3 months but within 12 months.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22.
Trade payables B ZENRIE

Staff cost payables FERTBIRA

Other tax payables Hh FEABITE

Listing expenses payables R ETRAE

Interest payable FERTRILE

Accrued expenses FEEHFS

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables based on the
date of billing as at the end of each reporting period:

0 - 30 days 0Z30K
31 -90 days 31E90K
Over 90 days Q0KIA +

The Group is granted a credit period from 5 to 60 days from its
suppliers, unless prepayment to suppliers is specified on the
contract. The Group has financial risk management policies in place
to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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MR2020F12A31H  FEMGLENHNAARE
13,000,0007T (20214F : &) M EWE R E @ - 0
b RETTEEE B BB RE AR S,274,0007T (2021
F ) BWNERNEZ2021F12A31BILEE
BREEE -

FNRET S BERA 29 -
MITHABRRS RHRTER
RITEBDBIEN F0.30%21.10% (20204 :
0.30%Z£1.10%) KI5 & B ©

IR ITIERIE N 202012 A31 RIREFIER1.75%

FTEMEERITER - VIHREISE ARBAESEAER
12{@ AR -

ESREMENTIE
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBETF T
32,203 35,838
2,281 2,529
1,118 2,785
817 1,937
1,222 1,420
1,366 1,751
39,007 46,260

REREDR - UTRNSRERARIZIRE B HH
B RNFIENREA AT

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥F ARETT
11,237 13,654
17,352 6,438
3,614 15,846
32,203 35,838

REHEAHERE T EENRGECOXN - FRIFEH
SERENREHANTR - XEBCREUBRE
RERBE - UHERMABERNRBSEEESNRA
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23. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

24.

Current B
Contract liabilities aHarE

Contract liabilities are recognised when the Company receives an
amount from customers before services are provided, this will give
rise to contract liabilities at the beginning of a contract, until the
revenue recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount
received. The Company typically receives a deposit range from
20% to 50% of total consideration from certain customers when
they enter into the contracts with the Company.

Revenue recognised during each reporting period included
the whole amount of contract liabilities at the beginning of the
respective reporting period. There was no revenue recognised
during the year that related to performance obligations that were
satisfied in prior years.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

23. AHEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
16,612 2,001

AHBERAR R RS AT R P SR8 F
R MBREERANHESELANEE  EEN
BE MRS BEZRERLE « ARE—R
ETEPEAQNBNANBERELKEARERN
N F20%E50% LS -

REREPERNREENSREDTNANAE
M2 -  FALERBERBAEFECRITNE
HDEEREN Y

24. RMITREMER

Bank borrowings RITIER

— unsecured (Note (i) — AR (B 5E()
Other borrowings HABIER

— unsecured (Note (ii)) — R (PR Gi)

Carrying amounts repayable (based on scheduled — FEfE 1% B EI{E (IR I (E 7% AL

repayment dates set out in the borrowing FHEIEFAH) -
agreements):
Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FRERMTEA
Amounts shown under current liabilities RBBETHTSRE

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

Notes:

(i) The bank loans were guaranteed by six (31 December 2020: four) third
party guarantors, who charged the Group an upfront guarantee fees range
from 1.30% to 2.08% (2020: from 1.70% to 2.00%) of the corresponding
loan principal amounts. The effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) of these bank loans range from 3.85% to 6.50%
(31 December 2020: from 7.15% to 7.92%) per annum as at 31 December
2021.

FERBRBE TSR

Wzt
)

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
61,000 70,000
54,984 55,511
115,984 125,511
115,984 75,511

- 50,000

115,984 125,511
115,984 75,511

- 50,000

115,984 125,511

ZERITIEAABANE (2020 F 12 A31 H : FI5)E=
TERAIER - RIZIHRIR A % 8869 1.30% % 2.08%
(2020 F : 1.70% F 2.00%) M H K SE B (1 E(RE -

R2021 F 12 A 31 H - ZFRITE A BIRFFIE (I8
ERELFIE) BT 8.85% F 6.50% (2020 F 12 A
31 H : IMF 7.16% Z 7.92%) °
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24. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 24, SRITREMMER(E)
Notes: (Continued) Htat - (48)
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group borrowed additional (i) RELFE2020F 1231 H IFF/& - N EE5ENEL
loans of HKD11,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB9,511,000) L& — BB E=F BAFEIEF11,000,000/%
from an independent third party for capital injection in its subsidiary and T (HHERAIA K #9,611,0007T) % 4,626,000/ (47
HKD4,626,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,000,000) was settled ERAFE#4,000,0007T) B R2020%F 12431 H.2 Fide
before 31 December 2020. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 12% per VB o BB EEFFIF12%5+8 I #ER20214F105
annum and the remaining balance will be repayable on 23 October 2021. As 23AE#E o R20209F 1231 H + ZZE B K BE 5
at 31 December 2020, the outstanding balances of these loans amounted /36,374,000;8 7T (15 RAA K #56,611,0007T) (2021
to HKD6,374,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB5,511,000) (2021: ni). f# ) o BAERER20214F 12731 H 1L FEF2FT4
The loans have been settled during the year ended 31 December 2021. JE e
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group borrowed another B E2020F 12531 HILFE + KEBEAESLH B
loan of RMB50,000,000 with a repayable term of two years of which F) 5 —EEFHA R MEE0,000,0007T K fER2022F3 A
RMB20,000,000 is repayable on 16 March 2022 and RMB30,000,000 16 A 1E#EHE A K 420,000, 00075&/@%20224%9/?
is repayable on 16 September 2022, and guaranteed by the controlling 1615 E’?Ef}t’/ﬁﬁ' #30,000,0007T * I 1K 2
shareholder of the Company. The loan bears a fixed interest rate of 6.50% REIE(R o BAIZEE FFIF6.50%51E °
per annum.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group borrowed another REZ2021F12H31HILFE - AEEFEERFEA
loan of approximately RMB4,984,000 (2020: nil) from its shareholder with BEINE AN F#54,984,0007T (2020% - ##) -+ (EE 15
a repayable term of unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable on HAREEIT - BERZESIEE
demand.
The loan agreements do not impose any covenants. B T IR 224 o
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25, R
Number of
shares Share capital
RHEE fg 7R
000 HK$'000
/%713
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREE.OIEBTHNEER
Authorised: EE
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 720204F K2021F12531H 2,000,000 20,000
000 HK$'000
Issued and fully paid: ERITEHE
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 7R20204F K 2021F12 531 A& &4 400,000 4,000
As at
31 December 2021
and 2020
H2021F R
2020%F
12A31H
RMB’000
ARBFT
Presented as 2R 3,578

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at
general meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally
with regard to the Company’s residual assets.
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26.

27.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit plan
to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the Group
with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions. The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
approximately RMB2,595,000 (2020: RMB1,776,000) represents
contributions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the plan.

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group leases properties to operate its business. These leases
are generally ranged from 3 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain different payment terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants,
but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purpose.

The Group also leases advertising light boxes in car shelters and
billboards with contract terms of less than one year. These leases
are short-term and the Group has elected not to recognise right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities for these leases.

The exposure of the Group’s lease liabilities are as follows:

26.

27.

RGBS

REENDERES APBEBMEFNERKERRK
BAGEIMAKE - ARBH P BN EQRARZE
REfEr RN TERANEEA L - UBER
BAHBNED - AEBBERRERGEIWE—FE
REELEEHRN - MERBRANFRENARYE
2,595,000 (20204 : AK#1,776,0007T) 574
KB IR ER AR E R R A% F R SIS m ¢

=/
Moo

HERE

REBEEMERAREEERT - 2FHEBFERIE
SFMEH - MERFIREREERER - WBEESTRA
NG R G - HE R T IMERRL - 878
BEEETSREEENIERS -

AEETATR—FENEESNGTEERESRE
SREIESE ZFHEREHEE  MAKE
BRI ERIRSHERERAEEEREERRE -

AEEABORERENT

Analysed for reporting purposes as:

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

Lease liabilities payables:
Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but not
exceeding two years

Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months
(shown under current liabilities)

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
RERENOWA
BAE 307 867
EmEAE - 307
307 1,174
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
ENAEAE
—FR 307 867
—F A HETBBME A
- 307
307 1,174
B 12EARBIEEN S5
(RRBAEE TR (307) (867)
12/E AR BB E NS5 - 307
L (PE) EREBERAT « — T —FFH
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B 22021F 12531 H1FF/E
27. LEASE LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 27. HEEEBEW@E@E
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had signed REZE2020F12A31HEFE - AEEDHEHE
supplementary contract with the lessor to terminate lease contract, AR EH  BRIEEEEH - fHIEHNM
details are set out in note 15. 15 -
Lease liabilities of the Group were measured at the present value AEBEHESEMEEERFERZHRAIAMHEE
of the lease payments that are not yet paid using its incremental NRBBEE - MEHEEHKEFEREIL - K
borrowing rate. All leases are entered at fixed prices. The Group SETEGEAEsEEREARERR - HE
does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease BERAEEMNVBBEER - REIZ2021F12
liabilities. Lease liabilities are monitored within the Group’s treasury A31HILFE  EHAEEAGBNEHIOARE
function. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the interest 10,0007t (20204 : A #120,0007T) ©
expense on lease liabilities of approximately RMB10,000 (2020:
RMB120,000) is recognised.
The total cash outflows for leases amounted to approximately REE2021F12A31HLEFE Fr HERES RN
RMB41,976,000 (2020: RMB31,275,000) for the year ended 31 BEE B AR A41,976,0007T (20204F : AR
December 2021, including total cash outflow for short-term leases 31,275,0007T) + BIEEE2021F12A31B IEFE
amounted to RMB41,099,000 (2020: RMB30,126,000) for the year MEHEERSRLAEOARE41,099,0007T
ended 31 December 2021. (2020%F : AR#30,126,0007T) °
28. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 28. EXEBRER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to TEBEBEER  DUBREKEMAFELE - B
continue as a going concern while maximising the return to equity FEABtCERRER TEHRAMERFEALD
holders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. oo AEE MRS F NRFFTE o
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AEEREREERER TR (BRERITREAMER
includes bank and other borrowings and lease liabilities, net of MESBEIREERTFER  RIOTEBRERS))
short-term bank deposit, bank balances and cash, and equity RASEEHA AR (BIERA R 486 -
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising share capital and
reserves.
The directors of the Company reviews the capital structure ARBEBTRERNAR KBS BERNEENRR
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital BEBRTERERE ERAQFEFHEZR 5%
and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on B BRETHRNRETHESIERREER T
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the Group will B RSB ANGEHE -
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues as
well as the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debts.
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 20. £@TH
(@) Categories of financial instruments (a) €M AFR
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RS ENSREAE
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BREBeRBESEEY) 340,436 357,071
Financial liabilities =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost R AT EN SR AE 153,873 168,986
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include long-term
deposit, loan receivable, trade receivables, other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, short-term bank deposit,
bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, bank
and other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency
risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risk

) Currency risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC. All the Group’s
revenue and cost of revenue are denominated in the
functional currency of the Group (i.e. RMB). As at
the end of each reporting period, the Group had the
following financial assets and financial liabilities, which
are bank balances and cash and other payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB.

Assets: BE
- HKD — AT
—usD — %53
Liabilities: afE
- HKD — BT

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

29.

SRIA @

(b) BiFEEEE B ERBER

AEBTESR T ARERPZS BRE
o BHEMRIE - A EWGRIE - FEULE
7 RRIE - RERITER - IRITHABR KRR
- BHREMEMNZRIE  RITREME
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T RERZERR - AR REA S
FREE S -

m 5

G BEEE
REBTERPERLEER - MAELAS
B R IR A A RN R E T BE B
(EIARB)FHE - REMEHR - A%
BBEUTUARBIIMNMIEEFHEN S
REERTRAE  BRERITERLE
S REMERNKIEA -

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
130 207
- 29
130 236
- 5,611
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IR B IMNER BRI E BN H R
HHEBARINERL

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK

149



|

»
|

150

\

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
BT ERRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

n‘/T\

HZ2021F12H31 HIFFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Y

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis
The Group is mainly exposed to HKD and USD.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to foreign currency rates
and includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusted their
transaction at year end for a 5% (2020: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes bank balances and cash, other borrowing
and other payables. A 5% (2020: 5%) increase or
decrease is used when reporting foreign currency
rate risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.

If 5% weakening/strengthening of USD and HKD
against RMB, the Group’s post tax profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021 would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB5,000 (2020: increase/decrease
by approximately RMB239,000).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to certain fixed-rate other receivables, loan
receivables, short-term deposit, bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities. The Group’s policy is
to manage its interest rate exposures by assessing
the potential impact arising from any interest rate
movements based on interest rate level and outlook
SO as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
bank balances which carry prevailing market interest
rates. The management considers that the exposure
of cash flow interest rate risk arising from variable-
rate bank balances is insignificant, accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis is provided. It is the Group’s policy
to keep its bank balances at floating rate of interests
S0 as to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group’s credit risk exposures are
primarily attributable to long-term deposit, trade receivables
contract assets, short-term bank deposit, bank balances,
amounts due from related parties, other receivables and loan
receivable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with
its financial assets.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout the
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following indicators are
incorporated:

o internal credit rating
. external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse changes

in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations

. actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower

. significant increase in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the borrower

o significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers in the Group and
changes in the operating results of the borrower.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group monitors
closely the economic environment and where appropriate,
takes actions to limit its exposure to customers that are
severely impacted.

SRETA@ 4
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts
with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The
Group only accepts bills issued or guaranteed by reputable
PRC banks if trade receivables are settled by bills and
therefore the management of the Group considers the credit
risk arising from the endorsed bills is insignificant. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under ECL
model upon application of IFRS 9 on trade receivables and
contract assets.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The management of the Group
estimates the lifetime ECL of trade receivables and contract
assets by using a provision matrix, after considering credit
risk characteristics based on historical observed default rates
over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information.

In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts
with customers (Continued)

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, trade
receivables and contract assets have been grouped based
on the following credit risk characteristics:

29. ©ETAG@E

(b) MEEMERE B ERBUER (H)

EEEER BEF G (F)
EFEMELREZENNBARENEE

(&)
EAREBERENERN B - Ko
R R & AR DA TR BRI #S
8

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL

il it BREHEEBEBENEE

Class A Indicates the exposure at default ("EAD") is still current does not Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
have any past-due amounts )

AfE KRR (FEORR D DAFEL BEFTERESE 2 EEHEE SR (BEERE)

Class B The major portion of the EAD has been past due for less than 60 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
days.

BiE BRREEEHD 2@ BT EEE0K T HIEEEEEE (BEERE)

Class C The major portion of the EAD has been past due for less than 1 Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
year. The risk of non-payment increases as the time period is longer
than normal expected payment process.

CHa BRORBEERS DB TERE—F - BEREBALESEHRNR 2HEREEEE(BREERE)
TR - A SRRBRIE N o

Class D Indicates the past due aging of the debtor exceeding at least 1 year. Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
It indicates that the recovery of complete payments is likely to be
difficult.

D#R RABBEANBERRBRE D —F - ARAAGHIKE 2B 2HEHEEEHE(EBEEREBE)

Class E Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred

EXA BEREJANSRUZEENGAARRREREEETNTENSE 2HPRPEEEHE(EEREBE
HE - SREERTEREERE

Class F There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery

Fi8 BEBRPEBABBRENTBREE MAKERERENEH SEEME

AIS

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for 100% (31
December 2020: 100%) of the total trade receivable as at 31
December 2021.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 35.20% (2020:
29.59%) and 88.25% (2020: 49.98%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively.

BB ES S AEENTIEEERRT

DERRPE - (FR2021F12831HE 5
FEU R IE 4258/ 100% (2020F12 318 -
100%) °

R E 5 MW IBEFR35.20% (20204 :
29.59%) %:88.25% (20204F : 49.98%) 9 Bl 3k

ARKAERBATS REAEFRE - &
AEEE R SRR -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from contracts

with customers (Continued)

The Group’s current credit risk grading framework of loan
receivable, bank balances, other receivables and amounts
due from related parties comprises the following categories:

29. ©ETAG@E

(b) MEEMERE B ERBER (H)

EEE LR RE TG ()

EFEMELREZENHBERENEE
(&

REBEWER - RITHAS - HthEKFR
K e B R 77 SR E AT E B R i AP ARESR
BIEATERR

Category Description Basis for recognising ECL
il it BREHEEHBENEE
Performing For financial assets where there has low risk of default or has not 12m ECL
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition and
that are not credit impaired (refer to as Stage 1) !
B1T FENEREBEN B VREREERRRY ARE LA BYRER 12EABNEEER
BENSREE (BREIRER)
Doubtful For financial assets where there has been a significant increase in Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired)
credit risk since initial recognitio1n but that are not credit impaired
(refer to as Stage 2)\ ! ) )
RER HEVRERREERREE THETREEERENEREER 2HRHBGEEEE(EGEERE)
RE2MEER)
Default Financial assets are assessed as credit impaired when one or more  Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that asset have occurred (refer to as Stage 3) ) .
24X ERLSUSRMEEGHAARSREERTHNTEN —AXZE 2HPRREEEEEERE)
= AEESREERT T REERE(BREPLR)
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe financial Amount is written off
difficulty and the Group has no realistic prospect of recovery
g8 EERBBETEBABBRREN GRS  MASEWEKERIENER SBEME
Loan receivable JEWE K

For loan receivable, the Group has applied the general
approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance. The
measurement of loss allowance for ECL is Lifetime ECL (not
credit-impaired) as at 31 December 2020 since there was a
significant increase in credit risk. The Group actively monitors
the outstanding amounts owed by the debtor and identifies
any credit risks in a timely manner in order to reduce the risk

of a credit related loss.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the whole
amount of loan receivable is due from the producer of an

internet drama as set out in note 20.

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Bank balances and short-term bank deposit

Credit risk on bank balances and short-term bank deposit is
limited because the counterparties are reputable banks with
good credit ratings assigned by international credit agencies.
The Group assessed 12m ECL for bank balances and short-
term bank deposit by reference to information relating to
probability of default and loss given default of the respective
credit rating grades published by external credit rating
agencies. The 12m ECL on bank balances and short-term
bank deposit is considered to be insignificant.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as approximately
55.96% and nil (2020: 52.02% and 100%) of the Group’s
bank balances and short-term bank deposit is placed with a
bank at 31 December 2021.

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and
long term deposit

The directors of the Company make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables,
amounts due from related parties and long term deposit
based on historical settlement records, past experience, and
also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information. The Group
measures the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.

The 12m ECL on amounts due from related parties is
considered as insignificant for the year ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 as the counterparties involved are
considered with limited credit risk and the ECL involved is
not material. The disclosure of loss allowance recognised for
other receivables was made below in this note for the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as approximately
36.21% (2020: 51.80%) of the Group’s other receivables is
due from a counterparty at 31 December 2021.

SRMIA @ (

(b) MEEMERE B ERBUER (H)

EEm LR RETE ()

IRTTASER RIGEIIRTT 77K
HREF I RABHEBEEFEREL TR
fif*ﬁ ARHEERIFORTT - BERITAR
REROTERNEERRER - AEEZ
%*ﬁ?ﬁki’]—f%@&%?@%ﬁlk&ﬁl\*lﬂz
HERELHOEEEENREREN 8
RITAESR N2 AR 1T 17 5K ??12 IH?EHM*
EEERHE o RITAERNEHRITERA12
BEAEMEEERRERBLTERX °

R2021F12 4318 + AEEHI55.96% % ZH)
IRITHE R R HASRTT T S IO — R ERTT -
MALEEBEREFEERK (2020%F : 52.02%
100%) °

HEbEWFOR - ER 7R R AR
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TR F AR AEEEREERK
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202012 A31 B 1L F E 3t E A fE SR IERER
RIS TR ANM 5 R SR EE o

R2021F12 318 + AEE4136.21% 8 HAb
FEWGRERAEN —BEF HHE - A%
BB SR EERB (20204 : 51.80%) °
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

29.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Other receivables, amounts due from related parties and
long term deposit (Continued)
As the Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past due
status is not further distinguished between the Group’s

(b) FrEERE R

SRIA @

EEEERBE (&)

EEE LR RE TG ()

E WA - JEWRIR D R R R e
(&)
AAEENBEEREEREHRIERTTRE
BEPOHMEEAEZRNBELE - HURAH
REAENBEREBLEEASETRAZRP
HRAE—FED - TRFAVAKESREE

different customer bases. The tables below detail the credit REWEEZFERE  ZEEMBERETE
risk exposures of the Group’s financial assets and contract BB R ¢
assets, which are subject to ECL assessment:
Gross Net
carrying carrying
amount amount
as at 31 as at 31
Credit risk Average  December December
characteristic ~ 12m or lifetime ECL loss rate 2021  Total ECL 2021
20216 202145
12A31HK BHEE 128318
FERRSE  12@AR2HRENEEER THERER fREAE BESE MNRERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR AR%TR
Trade receivables (Note 17)
H 5 RENGRIA (H1517)
Class B Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 1.4% 100,545 1,420 99,125
B PHEDEEEE(BEERE)
Class C Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2.2% 153,603 3,404 150,199
CH FHREBEEEE (BEERE)
Class D Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 15.8% 52,573 8,285 44,288
DfE 2 HEBEEEE (BEERA)
306,721 13,109 293,612
Contract assets (Note 19) Class A Lifetime ECL (not credit- impaired) 2.0% 23,960 488 23,472
BREE (iE19) A FHREBEEEE(BEERE)
Other receivables (Note 17)  Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired) 2.4% 10,653 252 10,401
At RENGERIE (13T 17) BT 128 AEBEEEHE (BEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 3.1% 750 23 727
RER ZHEREEEE (BREERE)
Default Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 100.0% 300 300 -
EL 2HRHEEHE(EERE)
11,703 575 11,128

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. £@MIAE
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIREBREEBERBEE (@)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= EE R R E 1S (48)

Gross Net
carrying carrying
amount amount
as at 31 as at 31

Credit risk Average  December December
characteristic 12m or lifetime ECL loss rate 2020 Total ECL 2020
720205 720205

12H318#) EHEE 12A31H

EERMBE 12 A2 BB HEERE HhEEx RHEAE BEAE HEDFE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARETT ARETRT

Trade receivables (Note 17)

2 5 U IE (17117)
Class A Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 0.8% 86,988 682 86,306
A FHREBEEEE (BEERE)
Class B Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 3.2% 117,586 3,789 113,797
BfE PHENEEEE(BEERE)
Class C Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 10.8% 113,977 12,348 101,629
CH T HREBEEEE (BEERE)
Class D Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 20.8% 21,772 4,519 17,253
DR 2 HRBEEEE (BEERA)
340,323 21,338 318,985
Loan receivable (Note 20) Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit impaired) 25.2% 13,000 3,274 9,726
PR E SR (Ff5E20) R FHREBEEEE (BEERE)
Contract assets (Note 19) Class A Lifetime ECL\(not credit-impaired) 0.7% 21,233 154 21,079
BREE (MiE19) A 2HENEEEE(BEERE)
Other receivables (Note 17)  Performing 12m ECL (not credit-impaired) 0.7% 9,628 72 9,556
HoA REMGRIE (B 5E17) BT 128 ATEEMEEE R (BEERE)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired) 2.4% 750 18 732
R 2 HRBEEHE(BEERE)
Default Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired) 100.0% 300 300 -
X 2 HRBEEEE(EERE)
10,678 390 10,288
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 29. £@MIAE
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIREBREREBERBEE (@)

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =B R R E S ()
The following tables show the movements in lifetime ECL TRITEIRELERE S REUBGIERER K
that has been recognised for trade receivables under the 2 HBHEERBEZS -

simplified approach:

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH 2 HATEHA
FEBE FEBIR
(BiEERE) (EERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 7,703 - 7,703
Impairment losses recognised BRI AR 13,635 - 13,635
As at 31 December 2020 H2020F12A31H 21,338 - 21,338
Impairment losses reversed BRI EE B (8,229) - (8,229)
As at 31 December 2021 M2021412A31H 13,109 - 13,109
The significant decrease in impairment loss during the year HZE2021F12A31HIEFE © REESEARE
ended 31 December 2021 is mainly attributable to improved RO EERHRNEFCEMDERSERBREFR
settlement record in 2021 related to the customers with K& P R2021 FHER TSR B kE -
credit risk characteristic of Class C and D.
The following tables show the movements in lifetime ECL that TREHREBICERAOEEEZN T H
has been recognised for contract assets under the simplified Rz EER s &
approach:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITEH ZHITEH
FEEE FEEE
(BREERE) (EERE) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR¥TT AR¥TF R
As at 1 January 2020 720201 A1H 38 - 38
Impairment losses recognised BRI EEE 116 - 116
As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 154 - 154
Impairment losses recognised B HERR AR 334 - 334
As at 31 December 2021 HR2021F12A31H 488 - 488
The increase in impairment loss during the year ended 31 HZE2021F12A31BIEFE - BEESEEN
December 2021 is mainly attributable to shift of customer FERAR2021F AR REERBRIFEMN
base with higher credit risk characteristic in 2021. BEBREEBRE -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 20, S@MIEG#E
(b)  Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MIFEREE B R R BUEK ()
(Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) =5 /EI‘E‘:& /ﬁf E ¥ /Ei (%%i i o .
The following table shows the movement in loss allowances TRIIRE 5t 8 W SR 8 0 s 18 5 2
that has been recognised for loan receivable: #:

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit
12m ECL impaired) -impaired) Total

2HEY 2HES

12184 FEFR FEEE
BHEERRE (BEERE (RERE) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®EFT AREFT ARBTT AREFT

As at 1 January 2020 R2020F1A18 421 - - 421
Transfer to Lifetime ECL BEHBHEEER
(not credit-impaired) (note () (EEERE) (1) (421) 421 - -

Impairment losses recognised ERRREER - 2,853 - 2,853

As at 31 December 2020 202012 A31H - 3,274 - 3,274

Impairment losses reversed BRRAEEE - (3,274) - (3,274)

As at 31 December 2021 720216124318 - - - -

Notes: HiaE -

1] The loan receivable with gross carrying amount of RMB13,000,000 0 R GBYF T REE b 15 E B S JEINE
for which the counterparty failed to make demanded repayments BRETHEE A FE#13,000,0000T » KEEFET -
on time, the Group determined that the loan receivable became JEW B Sk AR - JEWE S EHEEEA
doubtful and measured the loan receivable from 12m ECL with 3.2%H920194 12 /31 H 1216 5 7 Bz B /155
3.2% loss rate as at 31 December 2019 to Lifetime ECL (not BAEEERB25.2%H2020F 12431 HZ iz
credit-impaired) with 25.2% loss rate as at 31 December 2020. BB (EEERE) -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2021, ECL on loan receivable (i) REFE2021F12H31 HIFF/E  ENEFAEEE
of approximately RMB3,274,000 has been reversed since the HIA 3,274, 0007z57f5€§/§§/§?f§5%@ ’
gross amount of the loan receivable has fully settled. Y E AR C AR o
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 29.

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
The following table shows of the movement in loss

SRIA @

(b) MEEMERE B ERBER (H)

EEm LR RE TG ()
TRIIRE st A BN RIR R E G

allowances that has been recognised for other receivables: #3) -

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

(not credit- (credit-
12m ECL impaired) impaired) Total

I 2HIEH

12f8A FEFE FEFR
BHEEFRE (BEERE) (fE&wE) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT  ARETT AREFTT ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 A2020F1A18 660 2,003 300 2,963
Impairment losses recognised BRRAEEE - - 4
Impairment losses reversed (note) BREEREEE () (629) (1,985) - (2,614)
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 72 18 300 390
Impairment losses recognised BRRAEEE 180 5 - 185
As at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A31H 252 23 300 575

Note: Loss allowance for ECL in respect of other receivables of
approximately RMB2,614,000 (2021: nil) has been reversed
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as the respective
gross amount of receivable from a supplier, Investment A and
Investment B of approximately RMB30,048,000, RMB129,000 and
RMB19,530,000 respectively were settled during the year ended
31 December 2020.

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group’s management
monitors and maintains a reasonable level of bank balances
and cash which deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the impacts
of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on the cash
generated from operating activities and bank and other
borrowings as the main source of liquidity.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company have given careful consideration
to the future liquidity of the Group. While recognising that
the Group has relatively low level of bank balances and
cash of approximately RMB34,865,000 compared to bank
and borrowings which is repayable within one year of
approximately RMB115,984,000 as at 31 December 2021.

Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue, The directors of the Company
are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they fall due for
the foreseeable future, after taking into consideration of the
measures as stated in note 1.
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I - B JEW I TE B = BB A E G AN R
2,614,0007T (20214 : £F) ERE 2202012
F31H 1L FEREE - TR EREER - KEA
R EBE B IHEE 5 FIZIA FE#30,048,000
TC - ARHE129,0007T R A B #519,630,0007T 2
REFE2020%F 12 A31 A 1L FEAE °

mBELmER

EERDAESRRE AEBEREERT
HRHEEERRRHANGBKTHRITHER
RBEAR/AEENZERIES MRER
ERERPNTE - FEEFRELEHE
EMREALRITREMETERRDES
EBEHR -

RBEREEHBHRES  AQREECTHA
EREREERRRBES - BEE2021F12
AS1HZER —FANEEMNRITERNARE
115,984,000 CABLL + AEBERITEHB LIRS
HFRFBIEKF L AR 34,865,0007T °

BEZSHAVBRREZENERY £
NRABREZRMTIMEEREER - A%
EEEA T RMBERBITERA R ARKE
WP BEY -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

n-/T\

B RS R AR BT AL

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12H31HIFF/E

29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can

be required to pay.

As at 31 December 2021

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Total

Lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2020

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Bank borrowings

Other borrowings

Total

Lease liabilities

#2021F12A31H

tRaE
B 5 REMERNTIE
RITER
HfER

it

HEAE

R2020512A31R

SREE
BoRAMENTIE
RITRR
HifE0

29. ©ETAG@E

(b) FrEERE R

EEEERBE (&)

R EL/EE ()
TRANAEEGRMABNBRTIEHNFL -
ZRIVEAEE A 2 RN R RE BN
TRIBERBBASRERE -

—_~

Total
Less than undiscounted Carrying
1 month 1-3months  4-12 months cash flows amount
mERZE ABRRE
R—1ERR —-E=f8A +=f88 mEERE REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARWT R AR¥TR
37,889 - - 37,889 37,889
2,090 20,810 40,567 63,467 61,000
- 20,000 38,234 58,234 54,984
39,979 40,810 78,801 159,590 153,873
96 194 19 309 307
Over 1 year Total
Less than and less than - undiscounted Carrying
1month  1-3months  4-12 months Syears  cash flows amount
mERE BB-Fk AURRAS
R—EAR —ZE=fEA T={EA PRAFE mEERE REE
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR
43,100 125 250 - 43,475 43,475
- 853 71,236 - 72,089 70,000
- 1,625 1,625 59,309 62,559 55,511
43,100 2,603 73,111 59,309 178,123 168,986
- 288 617 309 1,214 1,174
Wi (HED) EREEBRAT o —FFR 161
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29.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
uses market-observable data to the extent it is available.
Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the management
establishes the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurement.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis
The carrying amount of other borrowing as set out in note 24
was approximate to its fair values as the discounting effect is
insignificant.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and financial
liabilities measured at amortised cost in the consolidated
financial statements approximate their fair values due to their
short-term maturities.
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A EREEHEAEENMEESEE/ME
ERRERER

R —REEXREBENAAER - K&EE
RARERN TS A BRRENE - MERES
F—RBAYE  MEEEEREENGE
il R ABUEST B AAE -

AEEFMEANGERTERELIEERAE
ETISEENRARE - UEEETHEES
BMTEAMAAE-
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5 DHRTEEZELTEK -
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30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from

30. REEBAELBBENEEK

TRENFEEREEDNEEEE2EBFIE
BREACIIFRSEY - RERVMELNEER
ReRnet SR ERRREREFERAEE RS
fﬁ%m%i’%”*ﬁﬁmﬂé/ﬁ@}E’Jﬁ%uu%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ% °

financing activities.

At 1 January 2020

Decrease in deferred listing expenses
Finance costs

Financing cash flow

Early termination of a lease

At 31 December 2020
Finance costs
Financing cash flow

At 31 December 2021

20201 A1H
ERE_ETRASR A
BhE RN
RERSTRE
RATARIETRA
202012 A31H
A& A
MERESRE
7H2021F12 A31H

Transaction

costs
attributable
to issue of
new ordinary Bank and
shares Lease other
payables liabilities  borrowings Total
BITHEBR
BAERB R BITR
EARE HEAE Hibfa™R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARBFT
1,375 4,101 98,349 103,825
(1,375) - - (1,375)
- 120 - 120
- (1,149) 27,162 26,013
- (1,898) - (1,898)
- 1,174 125,511 126,685
- 10 - 10
- (877) (9,527) (10,404)
- 307 115,984 116,291

31. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the drama series
production in progress was derecognised and a receivable from
a supplier was being recognised at the gross carrying amount of
approximately RMB7,100,000. Further details are set out in note
17().

During the years ended 31 December 2020, the Group early
terminated a lease contract, the respective right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities are derecognised accordingly. Further details of the
early termination of lease contracts are set out in notes 15 and 27.

During the years ended 31 December 2020, some of lease
contracts expired, the respective right-of-use assets are
derecognised accordingly. Further details of the expired lease
contracts are set out in note 15.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, transaction
costs attributable to issue of new ordinary share payables of
approximately RMB1,375,000 (2021: nil) was set off with the
respective prepayment by the same amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, trade receivable backed
by bills of RMB38,000,000 (2021: nil) was set off with trade payable
by the same amount.

31. FEFREXRSH

REZE2021F12A31BIEFE - EEPEREIR
IEEREREHRERFERFEREEENARE
7,100,0007CHERR © #E— FEEIESRMIFE17() ©

REE2020F12A31B IEEE » AEBIRPRIEHE
EAH SERAREENIEABAILKIERER -
BRIRERIEAESONFBEHNRM E15&27

REZE2020F12A31BIEFE - B THEANEE
B SEAREEREKIEER - AE2SHHEES
KR E— P F BRI E15 o

HZE2020F 1231 B IEFE - BITHEBRREGR
SR ER RIBH AR EE1,375,0007T (20214F « 4E)
HISEAIB N FRIB Y o

HZE2020F12A31H IFEE T#%ﬁmf%ﬁ%

I AEH38,000,0007T (20214F : i) HAZEFHE 5
e FRIRIRSY -
(T E) EEEEERDR o —FFR
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements, during the year, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties:

(a)

(b)

Name and relationship

BREGAMBRREMBOMBEEIN  NF
N AEEEREB TR LATRS -

(a) HEEKEEE

Name Relationship ®H

Ms. Wang Controlling Shareholder Tzt PERRAR R

Qingdao Economic and A company controlled by BB BRI B A A 4
Technological Development Ms. Wang XL BRAT] NG|
Zone Chaogqun Culture Co.,

Ltd.* & S4B A6 22 8
B BR AR (*Qingdao
Chaoqun”)

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye Public A company controlled by bRl = E A RN A 24
Relations Consulting Co., Ltd.*  Ms. Wang ARAA oPNG]|
IR REE A AEERERA
7] (“Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye”)

Beijing Yuehe Management A company controlled by IR AERZABR AR BEZTES
Consulting Co., Ltd.* b 1% Ms. Wang EOPNG]
MERTEABER AT (“Beiing
Yuehe”)

Related party balances (b) EBEE S AEER

Amounts due from related parties: JEYW B T 500R

Maximum amount outstanding
during the year
FAGZEREERE
2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 20204 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFT AR¥TF R ARETT

Qingdao Chaogun & BB 650 2,719 650 170

Beijing Ruicheng Jiaye b E 2 100 100 100 100

Beijing Yuehe L5t 81 30 81 30

Total et 831 300

These amounts were non-trade nature, unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand.

The Group measures the loss allowance for amounts due
from related parties at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
The directors of the Company considered that the amounts
due from related parties to be low credit risk and no recent
history of default, and thus no impairment losses recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

* English name is for identification purpose only

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited ® Annual Report 2021

ZEFEARFEZMNE - BER  RERAE
RERMBEE -

AEEZEMNM2EBBHEEHENS B
SRR S RENBERE - AARES
RE - EREMRBEARKEERR - B
BN mELFESE - B R E Z=20214F &£2020
F12A31H L FE W EERRERIE

. HXHEHHE



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
E22021F 12431 HILFIE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(c) Remuneration of key management personnel of the
Group
The emoluments of key management during the reporting

32. BEHAEXS (&
(c) AEBETEEEAS M

AEBTEZEREANB RN WG EAZ B0

period are as follows: N
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Salaries and allowances B KRR 1,145 1,828
Performance related bonuses i‘%fﬁﬁf@*ﬁl - 100
Retirement benefits scheme contributions IRIEFIFEI R 302 161
1,447 2,089
The remuneration of directors of the Company and key ARABEERTETRAENTMHEFIE
executives is determined by the remuneration committee EeL2EZAARB LTS BREETE -

having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.

33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the subsidiaries directly and indirectly held by the
Company at the end of the reporting period are set out below:

33. ARQFEMBARFE

RIERARATEE REZESENRBARFE
AT

Place of Percentage of equity interest and voting power
establishment  Issued and fully paid/ attributable to the Company
Name of subsidiary and operation  registered share capital FAAEEREA AL RRERE
2021 2020 Principal activities
i GRS RUREELS ERTRER/EFERE 20215 20005 TEEY
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
E# % E#% filf
% % % %
Ruicheng BVI BVI USDO0.01 100 - 100 - Investment holding
hAEBERES EREREE  001ER REER
Ruicheng HK Hong Kong HKD100 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
HHER B 100% 7T RAZR
Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye (Note (i) The PRC RMB170,368,520 - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
ERmARE () P ARHE170,368,5207 R EERS
Beijing Ruicheng (Note (i) The PRC RMB169,992,000.00 - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
3RS () i AR%169,992,000.007C REEERS
LBERESHERAT Shanghai Kalun  The PRC RMBS5,000,000 - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
Advertising Co., Ltd.* (Note (if)
LEslRBEERRAR () h AR 5,000,000 REERS
Xizang Wanmei (Note (ii) The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100 - 100 Provision of advertising services
i & 5 (Pfski) e AR 5,000,0007C REESRE
BB LR U EEERAR Lngyu  ThePRC RMB1,000,000 - 88 - 88 Provision of advertising services

(Beijing) Cultural Media Co., Ltd.*
(Note (i)
FA R X

EEARAR )  FE AR#1,000,0007T

REESR

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK
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33. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 33.
(CONTINUED)
Notes:
) The entity was established in the PRC as a sino-foreign investment
enterprise.

(i) The entity was established in the PRC as a company with limited liability

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of both years or at any time during both years.

*

English name is for identification purpose only

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 34.

OF THE COMPANY

Non-current asset kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KB AR A E
Current assets RENEE
Prepayments BB
Amount due from a subsidiary e — M B A RIFRIE
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHB LIRS
Total assets BERE
Capital and reserves BARFiE
Share capital &N
Reserves i)
Total equity i Eny ]
Current liabilities REAE
Other borrowing HAb &K
Other payables EAtbfETER
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIFHB A R0
Total equity and liabilities Ewm R AaGEEE
Note:
(a) The amount(s) are unsecured, non-interesting bearing and repayable on

demand.
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U ZERRPEK LB —RFINEBLE -

(i) ZEBRRFEZMALEFRAF]

KA S E AR M EFEAERRRE - SEAEL

RIR BT ERE S -
T EXEBELRS -

MBRRRRARDRAOREE

2021 2020
20214 20204

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE ARET T ARETIT
94,665 94,665

130 129

(@) 5,731 1,150
51 43

5,912 1,322

100,577 95,087

3,578 3,578

84,988 87,571

88,566 91,149

4,984 -

1,334 1,176

(@) 5,693 3,662
12,011 4,838

100,577 95,087

et

@ BB RAELER - T B RBILESEE
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES 34. BBERRERRAATNFE(E ‘
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Movement in the Company’s reserves AATRRENES ‘
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
R EE ERfE RitER st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETR

(Note)
(P5E)
At 1 January 2020 #2020%1A1AH 89,940 23,114 (22,858) 90,196
Loss and total comprehensive expense FABEREZERAZEE
for the year - - (2,625) (2,625)
At 31 December 2020 2020128311 89,940 23,114 (25,483) 87,571
Loss and total comprehensive expense FREBREERIEE
for the year - - (2,583) (2,583)
At 31 December 2021 202112 A31H 89,940 23,114 (28,066) 84,988
Note:  Capital reserve represents waiver of listing expense paid by a subsidiary of Wiat : EARREEREL L AN B a2 (T8I LT o
the Company.
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Five Years Financial Summary
RFMBHE

N\,
1 |

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

—BE-—-fF ZTTF ZT-NEF ZT-)N\F ZT—+F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETT AREBFT ARETT ARETT

Results 4
Revenue e 441,051 446,993 845,820 783,364 660,612
Gross Profit EF 17,299 40,299 106,828 95,611 83,365
Finance costs RERA (11,872) (8,519) (7,576) (6,043) (1,803)
Profit before tax B A& ) 4,302 4,376 56,134 62,469 51,355
Income tax expense FriSfiF (3,839) (1,550) (19,830) (15,846) (13,615)
Profit for the year from B FHECE B

continuing operations F A 463 2,826 36,304 46,623 37,740
Attributable to: TS IEFES

Equity shareholders of the A TSR

Company 445 2,844 36,282 46,149 37,740

Non-controlling interests PR 18 (18) 22 - -
Profit for the year F 5 Fl 463 2,826 36,304 46,149 37,740
Assets and liabilities EEREE
Property and equipment LIEYSEEL] 429 1,814 5,234 5,493 50,873
Other intangible assets Hibvmp aE 27 33 38 43 39
Goodwill GES - - - - 60
Deferred tax assets EEIRE = 3,542 6,291 2,789 638 131
Trade receivables, prepayments B S RIGE - FENFRIER

and other receivables H s s E 341,100 343,142 443,700 208,515 182,759
Net current assets/(liabilities) nRBEE/(BE)FE 213,788 259,340 208,597 65,101 82,276
Total assets less current liabilites ~ BELER I EE 217,786 267,630 216,961 90,726 148,280
Net assets BEE 217,786 217,323 214,497 87,931 135,042
Capital and reserves ERRHE 217,644 217,199 214,355 87,811 135,042
Share capital &2 3,678 3,578 3,578 80,800 80,000
Reserves 15 214,066 213,621 210,777 7,011 55,042
Total equity attributable to equity — ZNA B AR R FE(L

shareholders of the Company R 4BE 217,644 217,199 214,355 87,811 135,042
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R 142 124 142 120 -
Total equity DB 217,786 217,323 214,497 87,931 135,042
Earnings per share BREF
From continuing and discontinued 2R B 1548 &k B 42 IHAS & 275

operations — Basic (RMB) — ER(ARE) 0.11 0.01 0.12 0.16 0.14
From continuing operations REFBECEER

- Basic (RMB) — EAR(ARE) 0.11 0.01 0.12 0.16 0.13
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Glossary
FsAR

ABBREVIATIONS

‘affiliate(s)”

K=Yl

“AGM”
[BERBFEAE]

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”

[#RA sk (4 =2 4R ]
“Audit Committee”
[BZEE"]

“Beijing Lingyu”

[HEREE]

“Beijing Ruicheng”

Blgzst poll
“Board”
[EEg]

“BVI’
[RBEREE]

“CG Code”
[{2ER<PAl]

“China” or “PRC”
[ B

“Company” or “we” or “our Company”
or “the Company”

NGl

"Controlling Shareholders"

[ERARER

{

“// ,

any person(s), directly or indirectly, controlling, controlled by or under direct or indirect common
control with another person(s)

HEXMEEREGS - ATHRE - ATEHINEMAL @ EAS— AL ZRHEEREELR
TH| R AL

the forthcoming annual general meeting for the year 2022 of the Company
AR E20224F FE R AR A F A G

the amended and restated articles of association of our Company conditionally adopted on

22 October 2019 which became effective upon the date on which our Shares are listed and
Shares first commence dealing on the Main Board being 12 November 2019, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

ARAFHR2019F10 H22 B A FHHRAEERT M EF BB EIZMBY - LARHERT - fFETIA
Hiv s Ugek - WM E R EIRREREE B H (B12019811 B128) £

the audit committee under the Board

BEEeE IBE%LES

Lingyu (Beijing) Cultural Media Co., Ltd.* (?E8& (3t ) X{H{EHAB R A F)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 29 October 2018 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of our Company, and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Beijing Ruicheng as at the Latest
Practicable Date

EA L) UEEEER AR - 72018510 A29B KRB I MAREEAR - AEAARN
ME2EMBEAT  REREERATAY  AEREHZENEAR

Beijing Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (3t =l 3 & & B BR 2 7l) (formerly known as Beijing
Ruicheng Advertising Co., Ltd.* (At 23 58 & &5 B (0 B BR 2 &), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 9 April 2003 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

ERImHESARA R R RIRHES RO ER AT - K2003F4 A9B MBI HH
REMAAR  ARQRNEE2EHBAR

board of directors of the Company
KRREEG

the British Virgin Islands
REERES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

ERAIM SR AR E R DR E AT R

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purposes of this annual report and for geographical
reference only (unless otherwise indicated), excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

PEARKANE - ERAFRRERASENS - TREEE  FERPIBITRERS

N53

Ruicheng (China) Media Group Limited (33 (1 Bl) {2 &= B B FR A 7), an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 15 January 2019

Bl (R B EERE AR AT - 12019F1 16 BN SR BT MA I HER 2 AR AR

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules and unless the context requires
otherwise, refer to Ms. Wang and Yingheng

BB ETRAME T 28%E - BXESEMEIN 5T LT RAE

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK 169



170

Glossary
FsAR

“Director(s)”
[EE]

“Global Offering”

[2EREE]

“Group”, “the Group”, “we”, “
“Ruicheng”

our”, “us” or

(NS ) 3k [ #h AP ok 3t

“HK$” or “HKD”
[%&7t]

“Hong Kong”
[&%]

“IFRS”

[ER B A Y A

“Independent Non-executive Directors”
DB IEITE S

“Independent Third Party(ies)”

“Jujia”

[Ef£]

“Listing Date”
[T B
“Listing Rules”

[ LAl

director(s) of the Company
RATMES

the Hong Kong Public Offer and the International Placing (as defined in the Prospectus)
BEELHBEEREREE (EERBRER)

our Company and our subsidiaries at the relevant time or, where the context refers to any
time prior to our Company becoming the holding company of our present subsidiaries, such
subsidiaries and the business carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) our
predecessors, and “we”, “our” or “us” shall be construed accordingly
RRRREMBRRINE@RERE - SN EMER AR BN REIREHE D RMIER A EA
R - RIFEZ 5B A B A ez S B & Al sk (R B M E) BAMEY AT & A R Pras & H
55 - m A B APy IMEMR R

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

EREEERET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PREEBRFRIITTHR

International Financial Reporting Standards, which include standards, amendments and
interpretations promulgated by the IASB and the International Accounting Standards and
interpretation issued by the International Accounting Standards Committee
BRI B EER  REERSFHER B ESRANER BT REE - UKERSE
ZEEEMNBR S L RRE

3

the independent non-executive Directors of the Company
RATNELIFMITES

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent of and not connected

with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) any Directors, chief executive or substantial
Shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), of our Company, our subsidiaries or any
of their respective associates

BURARE - HNBARRREEMEEHEAEMNES FETHRAEXFERR(CE
HE R EFTRA B RESEHETREE(EER ETRA 2 AL

Jing Gen Holdings Limited ((¢ E 5% 5 R A A1), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 52.43%, 18.65%, 21.96%
and 6.96% by Mr. Leng Xuejun, Ms. Lin Zi, employees of Beijing Ruicheng and an Independent
Third Party, respectively

REEBRABRAT - K2018F 12 19 REBERFS M AREERR - DHlEL
BEEA MELZT - RUhRIEE R — BB E = HE52.43% * 18.65% * 21.96% &
6.96%

Jujia Co., Ltd (EfEHBR A R)), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Li Na

EFEARAT - R2018F 12 A 19N EB# R HEAMKUIMBEREEAR - AEPr+2
]

the date on which our Shares are listed and Shares first commence dealing on the Main Board,
being 12 November 2019
BRORER EHRRGERXES 2 BE - B12019F11 A 12H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, as
amended from time to time
BEBAERXHBERRAGEF MR REET)
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Glossary
FsAR

“Model Code”
[E4E=FA

“Ms. Wang”
(£t

“Nomination Committee”

REZE®

“Prospectus”

(B =R

“Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye”
(% Simus L)
“Remuneration Committee”
[FHEZEE

“Renminbi” or “RMB”
[AREE]

“Reporting Period”
[ H)
“Ruichengdemao”
k]
“Ruichengtianhe”

EE N

“Ruicheng BVI”

[ e R S |
“Ruicheng HK”
EoE e

“SFO”

(&7 R EE %D

—~—

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules
FRAIEER10PAE E T EITAEFETES R HMIRETR

Ms. Wang Lei (%), one of our Controlling Shareholders

FTEZL  BEMOERERZ —

the nomination committee under the Board

EFgRTRRZEY

the prospectus of the Company dated 31 October 2019 in connection with the Hong Kong
public offering of the Company
RATHE/B019F10A31 B AR RIER B AREENHRERE

Qingdao Ruicheng Jiaye Advertising Co., Ltd.* (& S¥nili s % E 45 AR 2 7)), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on 7 December 2018, and an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of our Company

EEmNEERSERAR - M2018F 12 A7 ARFEK I HBRETLRR © AEAARKM
E2EME AR

the remuneration committee under the Board
EEGE TFNEES

the lawful currency of the PRC
FEIEEEBARE

the year ended 31 December 2021
HZ=E2021F12A31HIEFE

Ruichengdemao Co., Ltd (#2858 R A ), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 83.33% by Mr. Feng Xing
and 16.67% by Ms. Liu Yang, respectively

IR AR AT - KR2018F 12 19 REBERFST M AREERF - RISEE
& R BIFG 2+ 5 Bl £983.33% 52 16.67%

Ruichengtianhe Co., Ltd ARG R A7), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 19 December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 32.17% by Ms. Wang Zeli
and 67.83% by Independent Third Parties, respectively

W AARER AR R2018F12 A19R RN RBHRESEMKAINEREERR - HTERE
L+ RIFBILE=T 5 RIEA£)32.17%267.83%

Ruicheng Media Co., Ltd (w#{E & AR A 7)), a company with limited liability incorporated in
the BVI on 28 January 2019 and a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

IR EEERAR - B2019F1 A28HRNABH RS AMA LN BRETAR + BAQTA
HEREWBAT

Ruicheng (Hong Kong) Media Co., Limited (i (&78) @54 R A 7)), a limited company
incorporated in Hong Kong on 21 February 2019 and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of
our Company

IR (B BIEAR AR - R201962 A21 AR EBEMEIMER AR - ARARIEES
Bt @A

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
EREDIESTI BEF LABIGD (A RHERT » fFR s A=  th 75 =S 20

Wi (T E) FEEEERLR « T —FFK 171



172

—_

Glossary
FsAR

“Shanghai Kailun”
ESEE

Share(s)”
[R& 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[ 3R ]

“Share Option Scheme”
[ he st Sl

“Stock Exchange”
[B5E 22 PfT

“Yingheng”

B8]

“Youyi”

“gp
1%

Shanghai Kailun Advertising Co., Ltd.* (E/83lfm &S BRA 7)), a limited liability company
established in the PRC on 17 June 2010 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our
Company

PEEmESEERAR - R2010F6 A17TBERFRKZIHAREEAR - BRAAAREES
YN

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company

AR PR AR EREEO.01E TTEY E AL

holder(s) of the Shares
A A

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by our Company on 22 October 2019, the
principal terms of which are summarised in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in
Appendix IV to the Prospectus

RATR2019F10 A22 B A IR TS - B X ZRRBIURR B E 28R
[D.fERET & — £

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEBERZHERATR

Yingheng Co., Ltd (B/1EFBR A F)), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is wholly-owned by Ms. Wang, and one of our Controlling Shareholders
BIEFARAR - P2018F12A19A N RBHERHESHEMKZMNBEREEAF  BELXLRA
RAER—EBERER2EES

Youyi Co., Ltd ((B= B BR A 7l), a company with limited liability incorporated in the BVI on 19
December 2018 and is owned as to approximately 53.38% by Ms. Wang Xin and 46.62% by
Mr. Wang Pingpin, respectively

BEERARF - N2018F 12 19 LR BRARHEHMAIHEREEAR  BEMLZ LR
F T HB5 4 Bl £953.38% K 46.62%

per cent.
AL
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